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Turnover reached a record high of HK$95,174,000,000 in 201 3
with over 4,600 stores. We signed an agreement with Tesco to form
a joint venture in October 2013.
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We completed the acquisition of Kingway Brewery's beer
business in September 2013. Our “SE1E Snow” brand has been the
pest-selling single beer prand in China for the consecutive eighth
year by sales volume since 2005. Overall sales volume was
approximately 11,722,000 kilolitres in 2013.
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We completed the acquisition of rice distribution, production
and processing businesses in 2013, endeavoured to consolidate
the reputation of “F % Ng Fung” branded rice products; we also
acquired the fruit processing and distribution businesses, to forge
a vertically-integrated supply chain spanning from sources to
distribution.
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We achieved robust growth with turnover and sales volume
up by 53.3% and 41.0%. “}4%8 C’estbon” purified water propelled
its expansion plan nationally and maintained its place in the
top tier of the purified water market in China.
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Concept of the Design

With comprehensive planning and clear objectives, China Resources Enterprise, Limited (“CRE”) is well prepared for
and excited about its new journey. Travel experience is the design concept of this annual report. We make use of a
travel diary to display the development and results of our four businesses in 2013, creating the experience of traveling
together with you on a fruitful journey. This annual report conveys you a sense of familiarity while highlighting daily
lives image of CRE.

After thorough market evaluation with a tactical plan, we successfully acquired Kingway Brewery’s business in
September 2013 and signed an agreement to form a joint venture with Tesco PLC, the largest retailer in UK, in
October 2013. Leveraging the complementary advantages of solid local expertise and extensive distribution network
of CRE, as well as the innovative technologies of our joint venture partners, we are fully equipped to take a further
step to strengthen our market share with synergy and operational efficiency in order to generate higher value for
shareholders and investors over the long term.

“Get Ready for the next Journey.” \We invite you to join our journey to success!
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is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and is one of the constituent stocks
of Hang Seng Index. Building on the strategy of “market leadership with outstanding
brands, operational excellence and synergies among its businesses”, the Group
focuses on its four consumer goods businesses in China - retail, beer, food and
beverage — with the mission of becoming the largest consumer goods company in
China. Our multi-format chain stores include “ZBEZX CR Vanguard”, “#k % Suguo’,
“EREEDE Fun?”, “Ole’”, “blt”, “V>nGO”, “Voi_lal”, “F £ Chinese Arts & Crafts”, “ZE 8%
CRCare”, “3¥7& VIVO” and “XFFHBE Pacific Coffee”, etc., which form an extensive
retail network of 4,600 stores across China. Our beer division has maintained its
market leadership, with our flagship “Z1& Snow” brand remaining as the best-selling
single beer brand in China in terms of volume for eight consecutive years starting from
2005. Committed to providing “Safe, Healthy and Convenient” food products, our food
division is expanding its presence in the China market by leveraging the “fi2 Ng Fung”
brand’s reputation in food quality. The division is primarily engaged in the businesses
of rice, fruit and vegetable, meat, frozen food and modern agricultural plantation, as
well as the operation of the China Resources Hope Town development project. As for
the Group’s beverage division, our flagship purified water brand “l/4% C’estbon” has
a leading market position in southern China, creating synergies with our “BEEf## Kirin”
beverage products and building a strong position in China’s non-alcoholic drinks
market. As a member of China Resources Group, we are dedicated to the corporate
mission of “Better Life Together”, with our pursuit of excellence and to bring quality life
to our customers.
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Mclestones and Awards In 2013

REEE TFERSERBERAF TEEBREMENER [EEER
AR FEAEBER ARG AL CR Vanguard| #@mPEERFHZE -
ek - WBESHARE - SR
BE% - ZKBEER 2013 F 9 A% The Group's retail arm “ ZEH&Z CR
PR o Vanguard” opened its first supermarket
store in Guizhou Province.
o AREBENR mESBIOUEE Rk AEE The Group’s beer division, China

EERARAT » AEBKREKE Resources Snow Breweries Limited,

RS2 5E R AP ELAE - entered into an agreement with
Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited,

The Group’s food division completed in relation to the acquisition of its beer

acquisition of Shenzhen Yonghua production, distribution and sales

Agricultural Products Co., Ltd., laying businesses. The acquisition was

a solid foundation for the development completed in September 2013.

of its fresh fruit business.

—A JAN FEB
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i Asian Excellence Recognition Awards 2013:
i Asia's Best CEO (Investor Relations)
i Asia's Best CFO (Investor Relations)
Asia's Best Corporate Social Responsibility
¢ Best Investor Relations Company
Best Investor Relations Professional
Best Environmental Responsibility

BEtEreEFE
Outstanding Corporate Social
Responsibility Award
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According to the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, both the Group’s
beer business and its “ ZE7E Snow”
brand were the country’s top sellers
in 2012 by sales volume. In addition,
“ FEIE Snow” brand was named as
“Most Trusted Brand by Consumers”
in 2012. Sales volume of the Group’s
beer business reached 10.64 million
KL.

CEAEHED

Fortune China
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Ranked 44th on Fortune China CSR
Ranking

CEEMBFIY

Yazhou Zhoukan

2 IREM 1000 Z ARG RE AR
The Largest Conglomerates
Company Award in Global Chinese
Business 1000
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“#F &K CR Vanguard” was ranked No. 1 on the “ 2012 Top 100 Fast Moving
Consumer Goods Chain Store in China” and No. 4 in the “2012 Top 100 Chain
Store in China ” by the China Chain Store & Franchise Association.
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The Group’s beverage division laid the foundation stone for its production plant

in Zhaoqing of Guangzhou Province and Lu’an of Anhui Province, reinforcing its

competitive strengths in southern and eastern China.
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The “ X Fire” coffee, one of the “ it Kirin” products,
repositioned its brand and appointed Mr. Yang Kun, a famous
actor in China, to endorse its products. Another product
“Afternoon Tea” also launched new packaging design to raise
its brand awareness.
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The Group’s ranking on Forbes' Global 2000 list climbed from
861st last year to 800th.
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“ #FE S CR Vanguard” celebrated
the grand opening of its first modified
metropolitan hypermarket in High-tech
District in Dalian. The new hypermarket
enhanced the customer experience
with interaction.

AR Awards
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“Z={E Snow” ranked 28th on the World Brand

Laboratory’s list of “China’s 500 Most Valuable

Brands”. Its brand value surged to RMB73.536
billion in 2013.
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i Corporate Governance Asia
2013 FERERMEE PR EIRHEE

P 2013 FEMERES

i The Best of Asia - Icon on Corporate
i Governance 2013

i Asian Corporate Director 2013

P (IBREE)

i Institutional Investor

{2013 FHMEAREEEY RS
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The All-Asia Executive Team Survey 2013:

i Best Investor Relations Company

i (Both Buy and Sell Side - Consumer sector)

Best CEO (Sell Side - Consumer sector)

i Best CFO (Sell Side - Consumer sector)

i Best Investor Relations Professional (Both Buy and Sell Side - Consumer sector)

i Ranked 2nd for Best Investor Relations Professional (Sell Side - Consumer sector)
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“ 258 E % CR Vanguard” ranked
No.1 on Guangdong Chain Operation
Association’s “2012 Top 50 Chain in
Guangdong” ranking.

= RMEBEINHIBRETILT —EK
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The food division acquired a rice
production and processing businesses
at Wuchang in Heilongjiang. This
acquisition will strengthen the
division’s quality rice paddy fields
business in northeastern China.

Z1

(EXHRR) R(EXEA)
CAPITAL and CAPITAL
WEEKLY

2013 FEHGHEKRSE
Corporate Social Responsibility
Awards 2013

—E—-=F B 18 Milestones and Awards In 2013
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The Group’s ranking on Fortune
China’s Fortune China 500 list jumped
to 37th from 46th last year.
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(EXRH)

CAPITAL
SENEERTR L ERE 2
[EANBGHE M ]
“Outstanding Consumer Goods
Enterprise Award” in the 8th CAPITAL
Outstanding China Enterprise Awards

CENEZEE)
Retail Asia
TERESE (PEHR)

Top Retailer Gold Award (China)
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MerComm, Inc.
MerComm, Inc.

BIF ARC AR - 2012 3 :
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5% - ERI SR BUE - B ER1TEE - Em R RASAE R
International Annual Report

Competition (ARC) Awards -

Annual Report 2012:

Gold Winner - Traditional Format,

Retail: Supermarkets

Silver Winner - Interior Design,

Retail: Supermarkets

Bronze Winner - Printing and Production,
Retail: Supermarkets

Bronze Winner - Printing and Production,
Multi-Industry: Products & Services
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m BELEIEE RIS TS  SEEMRE - BRESRE] | e Group signed an agreement with Tesco to forma

EIRET - RSB EEEIR0E - 545 [ - S8 - 8l joiAtventure engaging in the business of multi-category

7 0 20 - retall i

ey EAETH o ¢ retailing through hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience
} - . . stores, cash and carry business and liquor stores with the

The Group successfully held “The Great Expedition with - purpose of driving rapid growth and creating synergistic

SNOW - Adventures in Himalayas” flagship campaign and . opportunities.

has run for nine consecutive years, which advocated its

enterprise spirit of "ambitious, challenging and innovative". E BTSN E R TR N T A5 TR | A=t s A
M BEXIE— P M TG -

TERRMEB D HIESHE P RBERE BRI

m [FRERmERLER] - &tﬁélﬁgﬁﬁiﬁj}%ﬁ& 3??& The food division started construction of pomelo processing
Q%?@%{?ﬁg%mﬁ%ﬁ% ' %fﬁ%%—;%ﬂ’g%%ﬁ : bases in Pinghe, Fujian, signaling the further expansion of its
Bz — MRMAESEFRUAKEFALERLLE TG fresh produces industry chain to its processing business.

FTROBERSERR

, - = RAFEFTERFBANEEEN—ERERERNTIAR ,
Both retail and food division won the “Seven Star Awards for M 0 FRESFSRICR BE - BE AR R ERTHKE

Outstanding Contribution in Food Safety & Public Health” co- GHEIEE - BB NS BN R B E o

organized by Yicai and Ecolab Inc.. This award is one of the :

highest recognitions in the Chinese food industry, and serves © The food division completed an acquisition of a rice

to promote food safety and recognize food enterprises which procurement and processing business in Liaoning. Together
make significant contributions to public health. It also reflected it the acquisition of rice businesses in Shanghai, Wuhan,
society’s recognition of the Group’s continuous efforts to © Xan and Heilongjiang in the year before, its national

ensure food safety. . expansion plan are poised to accelerate.

MerComm, Inc.

ﬁ’ﬁ AWd/f MerComm, Inc.

Galaxy A% - 2012 G4k :

BEE - RmRkBFEHEERAR

Galaxy Awards - Annual Report 2012:

Honors Winner - Food & Consumer Packaged Goods

*7 ;-': ,
GALAXY
AWARDS
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pR S R D E4E e EE4ER - The food division’s China Resources Ng Fung Agricultural

FeMAEe RN [2013EENE%E | Product (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. was named the “Vegetable
SR | - BITENME— TR ¢ Basket Base in Guangdong Province”.
2 5hhe -

The beverage division was awarded
“China Beverage Industry
Association—Outstanding Enterprise
20 Years” by China Beverage
Industry Association. Meanwhile,
“}Ma8 C'estbon” brand was named
“China’s Consumer Trusted Brand
2013” at the China Business Leaders
& Media Leaders Annual Conference,
the only brand won this honor in the
industry.
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25 50 e s - T}F%Eﬁ 19 i1 Bt nvesier REEemS - Gpld Award for All-Round Excellence in
Global Top 50 2013: Consumer Goods & Services FlEEEE REOEeE) CRIE EonEmEres)
Winner of Global Top Mid-Cap Best Investor Relations Social Rgspon&blllty, Enwronmeptal
Global Top 50 Gold - Ranked 19th by a Hong Kong Company Responsibility and Investor Relations
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Asian Company Secretary 2013 Hong Kong Outstanding el ommentators
of the Year 2013 Enterprise Award Limited
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Outstanding Listed
Company Award
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HEZT—=F+=A=+—HIL%E For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E-= —E-—F —E——fF
2013 2012 2011
BEBEET BEEER BEEER
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
e Turnover 146,413 126,236 110,164
AR AIR% B FE Ak 58 A Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company 1,908 3,945 3,013
FREAREF (BT Basic earnings per share' (HK$) $0.79 $1.64 $1.25
TR B (B TT) Dividend per share (HK$)
— R Hf — interim $0.13 $0.15 $0.15
—RHA — final $0.14 $0.15 $0.32
$0.27 $0.30 $0.47
FEL: SRESRF
Turnover Basic Earnings Per Share
B &0 HKS million BT HKS
2013 146,413 2013 0.79
2012 126,236 2012 1.64
2011 110,164 2011 1.25

ARTRREGERS
Equity Attributable to Shareholders
of the Company

A BT HKS million
2013 44,073
2012 40,742

2011 37,839

BREEFE : REE

Net Assets Per Share: Book Value

BT HKS

2013 18.34
2012 16.97
2011 16.77
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As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2011

BEBEET BEEET BEEET
HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million

AN B R R RS Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 44,073 40,742 37,839
FE AR R A 2 Non-controlling interests 15,538 13,042 12,633
MRS Total equity 59,611 53,784 50,472
A ERFERE Consolidated net borrowings 1,167 1,330 -
&L &2 Gearing ratio? 2.0% 2.5% SFIE S N
Net Cash g@
c
BN LE 2 Current ratio 0.86 0.89 0.96 = 3
EREESE Net assets per share: z.")
—BREME(EETT) — book value (HK$) $18.34 $16.97 $15.77 £
f5E - Notes:
1. BE-_ZT— =% - —_FT——Fh_FT——F 1. Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2013, 2012
+ZA=t—BIEEEREERNNDRAE and 2011 are HK$0.79, HK$1.64 and HK$1.25, respectively.
FE#50.797T © B .64 RABHE1.257T ©
2. BERIEGEEEEBARESAOLT - 2. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total

equity.



EEBRAGFIE  BIE  TERBHEABT DR = AI%£ 5 R A 7 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
Analysis of Turnover and EBITDA'

EEHBBRANYNE WA TEEMATHEN T4
AWM 7{ Tumover and EBITDA

HEZT—=F+=A=+—HIL%E For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEEKRZEXE
Turnover by segment
5%
65%
n TE 2D B R
Retail Beer Food Beverage
2= —E——F #mCHD)
2013 2012 Increased/
BEHET BB EHERT (Decreased)
RIEEBCEEE Turnover by segment HK$ million  HK$ million %
BOFEH Core Businesses
=& Retail 95,174 83,506 14.0%
L2y Beer 32,994 28,064 17.6%
B Food 12,069 10,379 16.3%
B h Beverage 7,305 4,766 53.3%
147,542 126,715 16.4%
HIHEBB 25 Elimination of inter-segment
transactions (1,129) (479) 135.7%

#zE Total 146,413 126,236 16.0%
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Analysis of Turnover and EBITDA'

BEEBZAFE - HE TERBENER
EBITDA by segment

dnouy ayj noqy
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n =F b B e
Retail Beer Food Beverage
—B-=F CZB-=f #n/0EP)
2013 2012 Increased/
BEEBZAFHFE - BETET BEEHEBRT (Decreased)
BiE - ITEREGAER EBITDA' by segment HK$ million  HK$ million %
BOEHE Core Businesses
= Retail 3,726 5,228 (28.7%)
i Beer 4,415 3,824 15.5%
R Food 409 722 (43.4%)
R Beverage 324 263 23.2%
8,874 10,037 (11.6%)
NAEHER Corporate overheads (169) (116) 45.7%
BN ER 2B Total from core busniesses 8,705 9,921 (12.3%)
HiEH% Other Businesses
WEMEMER Investments and Others - (1) (100.0%)
Hith 7 2 %8 Total from other businesses - 1) (100.0%)
@ Total 8,705 9,920 (12.2%)
B3E - Note:
1. EBITDAG A= F B ~ F1E - 1 LA 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and

BF| o amortization.
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WA % A% 57 3.
Analyses gﬁ Pmﬁt Attributalble to Sharetolders

HEZT—=F+=A=+—HIL%E For the year ended 31 December 2013

IR 2 RREAL =

Profit attributable to shareholders by segment
2%
— 5%

45% 20%

48%

B H: @2 B
Retail Beer Food Beverage

—E-= —E—ZF #imnCED)

2013 2012 Increased/

Profit attributable to BETET BEEHET (Decreased)

RIBEB 2 RRME(LZHF  shareholders by segment HK$ million  HK$ million %
BOEH Core Businesses

=& Retail 1,000 2,871 (65.2%)

L] Beer 943 823 14.6%

B Food 53 331 (84.0%)

R Beverage 106 86 23.3%

2,102 4111 (48.9%)

NREIR S FENER  Net corporate interest and
expenses (194) (166) 16.9%

#HzE Total 1,908 3,945 (51.6%)
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BEEBHNREEEAREETEFRRVEE REFEZRREG TR
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of asset revaluation
and major disposal of non-core assets/investments by segment

49%

dnouy ayj noqy
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n =& i = B k R
Retail Beer Food Beverage

Profit attributable to shareholders

excluding the effect of asset —B-—= —E——F #mCRD)
BREEBEHNMREEEZEMNE revaluation and major disposal 2013 2012 Increased/
HEXTEFRRLEE, of non-core assets/investments BEHET B EHET  (Decreased)
REFERREMGRF by segment HK$ million  HK$ million %
BEHE Core Businesses
3 Retail’ 734 525 39.8%
ngE Beer 943 823 14.6%
B2 Food? 53 259 (79.5%)
5 Beverage 106 86 23.3%
1,836 1,693 8.4%
NEEEAEFENER  Net corporate interest and
expenses (194) (166) 16.9%
k-0 Total 1,642 1,627 7.5%
B 5E Notes:
1. TEEBNEETBIESEATHBB 2066 1. Net gain on disposal of non-core investments and valuation surplus
(=T —— % : B#23.46 L) (HE K on investment properties with an aggregate amount of approximately
DIREFSFA R E M EFHERLR - HK$266 million (2012: HK$2,346 million) have been excluded from the

results of Retail division.

2. T FRAXBOXETEELESHO 2 Net gain on disposal of non-core investments and valuation surplus on
BEE0. 72T & IF L B TS F R % investment properties with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$72
B FEERR - million have been excluded from the 2012 results of the Food division.
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Final Results

In 2013, China’s economy was full of challenges, with a slowdown
in growth momentum. In view of this, the Group continued to
optimize its business strategies and to identify opportunities
arising from the restructuring of China’s economy with continuous
commitment to developing its core businesses - retail, beer, food
and beverage. During the year under review, we successfully
concluded the formation of a joint venture with Tesco PLC
(“Tesco”) involving the retail business, and also completed the
acquisition of Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited’s (“Kingway
Brewery”) beer business. These strategic moves not only
expanded our businesses in a steady and sustainable manner,
but also enhanced our core competitiveness and consolidated
our leading position in the industry, which will deliver long term
sustainable profitability. We are ready for our future growth with
the goal of becoming the largest consumer goods company in
China.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$146,413 million,
representing an increase of 16.0% year-on-year. Consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders amounted to
HK$1,908 million, representing a decrease of 51.6% year-on-
year. Excluding the after-tax effect of asset revaluation and major
disposals, the Group’s underlying consolidated profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2013 would have increased by 7.5%.
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Dividends

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.14 per share for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$0.15 per share) to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 6 June 2014. The final dividend, if approved, is
to be payable in cash, with an option to receive new and fully paid
shares in lieu of cash (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”). Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.13 per share, the total dividend
for 2013 will amount to HK$0.27 per share (2012: HK$0.30 per
share).

Subject to the approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, a circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend
Scheme together with the relevant election form will be sent to
shareholders on or around 13 June 2014. The Scrip Dividend
Scheme is conditional upon the granting by the Listing Committee
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the listing of and
permission to deal in the new shares to be issued under the Scrip
Dividend Scheme. It is expected that the dividend warrants and
the share certificates for the Scrip Dividend Scheme will be sent to
shareholders on or around 10 July 2014.
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Change of Address of Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

With effect from 31 March 2014, the Company’s Share Registrar
and Transfer Office, Tricor Standard Limited will change its
address from 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong. All telephone and facsimile numbers of the
Company’s Share Registrar will remain unchanged.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 26 May 2014 to Friday, 30 May 2014, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be effected. In order to determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held on 30 May 2014, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited at
26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (which will be relocated to Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with effect from 31 March 2014
(Monday)) not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23 May 2014 for
registration.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the meeting, the
proposed final dividend will be payable to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company after
the close of business at 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6 June 2014 and the
register of members of the Company will be closed on Friday, 6
June 2014, during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (which will be relocated to Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong with
effect from 31 March 2014 (Monday)) not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 5 June 2014 for registration.
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EfE$RE Chairman’s Statement

Strategy Implementation

Building on the successful strategy of “market leadership with
outstanding brands, operational excellence and synergies among
its businesses”, the Group achieved sustainable results which
propelled it to further pursue its aspiration to be one of the largest
consumer goods company in China.

On the retail front, hypermarkets will remain the main format of
the Group’s retail division. The division will continue to develop
in regions in which the Group has dominant market share and to
increase market share by expanding the multi-format business
platform. The Group stepped up its effort in the national expansion
of its multi-format stores to create synergistic opportunities
between its businesses, leveraging its extensive retail network
of 4,600 stores across China with the aim of giving impetus to
its organic growth. In addition, the division achieved a significant
strategic milestone in 2013 - the Group and international retail
giant Tesco concluded an agreement in October 2013 to form a
joint venture to engage in the business of multi-category retailing
while also securing significant cost and operational synergies from
a compelling combination of local expertise and international best
practices. By combining the extensive national retail networks of
both companies, the Joint Venture aims to become the leading
multi-format retailer in Greater China and to crystallize faster
growth and enhanced profitability.

The Group’s beer division exhibited strong growth momentum
thanks to its continued efforts in enhancing production
capacity, effective sales and marketing strategies, as well as the
strengthening of its distribution network. The Group’s flagship “=
1£ Snow” brand remained the best-selling single beer brand in
China in terms of volume with a market share of approximately
23% in China. To extend its market leading position, the Group’s
beer division completed the acquisition of Kingway Brewery
assets during the year under review. We are confident that the
competitive advantage of the division will be further enhanced
after the seamless integration with Kingway Brewery leveraging
its reputation and market share in China, especially in Guangdong
Province.
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The food division pushed forward its expansion plan and focused
on the development of high potential businesses in China through
various mergers and acquisitions so as to broaden its income
stream. In 2013, the division’s assorted foodstuff operation in
China acquired rice distribution, production and processing
businesses, as well as fruit processing and distribution businesses,
to forge a vertically-integrated supply chain spanning from sources
to distribution. The expansion will also enhance the synergies with
the retail division and secure sustainable improvement in both
divisions in the long run.

In respect of the beverage division, it achieved robust growth in
both sales volume and turnover. The “/8E C’estbon” purified
water products propelled its expansion plan across the country
during the year under review. Stepping up its effective promotion
campaigns, and with growing its sales network, “/48 C’estbon”
maintained its place in the top tier of the purified water market in
China. Furthermore, the division’s “B2f# Kirin” products focused
on certain key cities to boost synergistic investment in sales and
engaged in brand localization in order to broaden its customer
base. Looking ahead, the division will continue its involvement in
the research and development of new products to take advantage
of the changing customer preferences in beverage products.

Confronting the ever changing business environment, the Group
is dedicated to building specialized IT systems for systematic
information analysis, thus enhancing operational efficiency and
cost effectiveness. The IT systems include the Enterprise Resource
Planning (“ERP”) system, Customer Relationship Management
(“CRM”) system, as well as other systems relating to the consumer
goods industries, with more than 800 professionals engaged to
support this special project. The Group will continue to invest in
these revolutionary IT systems.

Prospects

Pursuant to the Chinese government’s rolling out of the “steady
growth” policy, the economy is expected to stabilize. We believe
there is immense untapped potential in China’s retail market that
has yet to be realised. With the benefits arising from acquisitions in
2013, we are confident in our capability to grow through adversity
in the long term and to seize growth opportunities in the market
when the economy rebounds.
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FERE Chairman’s Statement

We will continue to implement our stated strategy of growing our
four pillar consumer goods businesses by deepening penetration
and expanding our markets nationally. We will also leverage
our economies of scale to enhance operational efficiency and
strengthen our profitability as a whole.

We have formed a strong bond with SABMiller PLC, one of
the world’s largest brewery companies, for approximately 20
years. We also had another fruitful achievement in 2011 with the
establishment of a joint venture with Kirin Holdings Company,
Limited, a leading Asian food and beverage company. The valuable
experience we have gained from such partnerships gives us
confidence in our joint venture with Tesco. Nevertheless, we will
continue to explore opportunities in each of our businesses and
implement our win-win strategy to cooperate with international
players in China so as to enhance synergy and operating efficiency
in future.

Appreciation

On behalf of the board, | would like to show my earnest gratitude
for all the trust and support from our valued shareholders,
customers and business partners. | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my appreciation for all the contributions
and dedication given by our professional management and staff.
We will get ready to make our greatest efforts to enrich our
customers’ lives with high quality products and services through
our sincere commitment.

Chen Lang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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As part of our commitment to maintaining the highest standard
of corporate governance, the Group spares no efforts to
maintaining a well-structured communications framework to
support the Group’s aim of achieving long term and sustainable
shareholder value. The Group has always been committed to
ensuring transparent and timely information disclosure with the
investment community with regard to its operational performance
and major business development. It was through this belief that
the Group became a pioneer as one of the first Hong Kong listed
companies to voluntarily disclose quarterly financial information
and operational review.

In 2013, the Group conducted more than 400 meetings with
approximately 1,400 analysts and fund managers aside from its
regular investor presentations for results announcements and the
annual general meeting. The Group also conducted roadshows
during the year and met with institutional investors in certain Asian
countries and presented updates on our business expansion. In
June 2013, the Group hosted a two-day site visit in Shenyang for
approximately 60 investors to showcase the scale and operations
of its beer manufacturing plant, distribution channel of beer and
beverage businesses, as well as various retail store formats.
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Our commitment to creating open communications with the
investor community and ensuring fair disclosure has earned us
considerable recognition. In 2013, the Group was recognised
by a number of prestigious international organisations, and was
honoured as “Best Investor Relations Company”, “Best CEO”,
“Best CFO”, and “Best Investor Relations Professional” by
Institutional Investor magazine; named “Best Investor Relations
Company”, “Best Environmental Responsibility”, “Asia’s Best
Corporate Social Responsibility”, “Asia’s Best CEO (Investor
Relations)”, “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)” and “Best
Investor Relations Professional” by Corporate Governance
Asia and awarded as “Global Top Mid-Cap”, “Best in Sector —
Consumer Goods & Services” and “Best Investor Relations by a
Hong Kong Company” from IR Magazine.

ARNAH-FENE-F—=FH
%&Eﬂ&%hhm

Earnings and dividend per share
of the Company for 2009-2013

o
2013
0.27
BB BT HKS milion (T{& Market capitalization)
0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000 70,000 80,000 2012 _ 1.64
1
2013 [T £ 61887 os0
2012 | o705 67,122 201, I 125
0.47
20m | zi i ]
2010 245
0.52
2010 . 76,384
. 10
2009 | 28.35 w67914 2009 0.49
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 0.0 05 1.0 15 20 25
BT HKS (Y8 Closing price) AT HKS

B {HfE Closing price ™ T{& Market capitalization

BREFN (REREMESH N SRAHRKERS
REEFROEE REVE) Interim and final
Earnings per share (including
the effect of asset revaluation
and major disposal of non-core
assets/investment).

dividend per share

slep|oyaleys Jno o]
G Y



2% % RJ1% Investor Relations

RERR

RZE—=F  2FERMASXEEEBHF
HREREEBERERELERBEY
2 mEPREEEERME - ATIBIERT
BEE BE_T—=F+-A=+—8"
AEBRREWRABEE25.757T - BB D
7.87% - M{EAEE618.87E T

kL=

ARABREBRFAEEEAERE &
R - RZE—=F ' AQAIHRBLLE
739.5% o AN E) AR A BN #E IR AR AR
B E  BREEERNAERNGIE S HEE
ERRAFEEEMENE S 2HAIUEF
15 o

=M A AR 8 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Share Performance

In 2013, the outlook of global equity market has been affected by
the tapering of US Federal Reserve asset purchases or quantitative
easing. Together with market invisibility brought by slower
economic growth in China, the Group’s share price dropped by
7.87% to HK$25.75 while its market capitalization amounted to
HK$61,887 million as at 31 December 2013.

Dividend Payout Ratio

The Company is dedicated to driving sustainable growth and
bringing ample returns to its shareholders. In 20183, its dividend
payout ratio amounted to 39.5%. The Company strives to adhere
to a respectable dividend payout ratio that balances the cash
generated from its earnings and to set aside an appropriate level of
cash to drive sustainable growth in the future.

AARAH—FENE_F—=FHEARSRENRLE"
Basic cash dividend payout ratio™ of the Company for 2009-2013

2013 [SeE
2012 47.2%

2011 59.7%
2010 65.0%
2009 63.1%

B &t

Note:

(1) FEERKRESAEBNRRENESEHREE
TEFROEEREFEZRREMEEH -
Calculation is based on profit attributable to
shareholders excluding the effect of asset
revaluation and major disposal of non-core

assets/investments by segment.
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Total Shareholder Return

The Group’s expansion plan to achieve organic growth paid off
in 2013 with a total return of 6.8% during the year, as measured
by share price appreciation and the reinvested dividend. The
Company’s total shareholder return over the past five years
increased by 107.5%, ahead of the Hang Seng Index and the Hang
Seng Commerce & Industry Index.

ARFAH-ZENEZE-=FHRREFAF AN AT EBRNRR

Total shareholder return of the Company relative to market indices for 2009-2013

B9t Percentage (%)

200

08%F 09%F 09 1045
12A 6A 128 64
Dec 08 Jun 09 Dec 09 Jun 10

AR B EETHAREN

The Company

Hang Seng Commerce & Industry Index

106 114 1MF 126 12 13F 13F
124 64 128 67 128 64 124
Dec 10 Jun 11 Dec 11 Jun 12 Dec 12 Jun 13 Dec 13

L REEE ERRR : %18

Hang Seng Index Source: Bloomberg

slepjoyaleys 4no oy
M G N






slep|oyaleys Jno o]

B G XE NS



B35 #T Management Discussion and Analysis #HAIEHPR A 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED




F 3R 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

#™ Supermarkets

SO R

BT U ‘)

vanguard
9

O bt

betterlifetogether

VonGO

B ¥ 70 Shopping Centres

Fun?
LI

E¥JE Specialist Stores

Vg
2
CHINESE “‘F %‘ ARTS & CRAFTS

Ewivoss Voilg]

Packle L

NEFNTELEBRR S —FHNEEER
75 95,174,000,0007T * B8 - T — —F i
n14.0% - SIBRTREGEERSREEIEZD
BENTZERE AEBR_ZT—=FmEHL
AR DT — ZFIEIN39.8% © NEBNZ
= — = FHE(E % F &% % 1,000,000,000
L BT F R 65.2% °

AEBNZTEXEK T ER [EHERCR
Vanguard [ 35 « [ Chinese Arts &
Crafts| * [E 8= CRCare] * ZEALJE [ )&
VIVO | % [ KF#UBE Pacific Coffee | 57
R e RZE—=FFK  NEBEREHH
MBI 4,600fH 54 - ERA83% - EE
g HRRARRTEE -

The Group’s retail division reported turnover of HK$95,174
million in 2013, representing an increase of 14.0% year-on-year.
Excluding the after-tax revaluation surplus and the disposal of
the non-core assets, the division’s attributable profit for 2013
increased by 39.8% as compared to 2012 while its attributable
profit of HK$1,000 million in 2013, decreased by 65.2% as
compared to 2012.

The Group’s retail division mainly consists of “ZH&% CR
Vanguard” supermarkets, “f 2% Chinese Arts & Crafts” stores,
“#EF % CRCare” stores, “X)& VIVO” health and beauty stores
and “AFFMBE Pacific Coffee” shops. As at the end of 2013,
the Group operated over 4,600 stores in China, of which
approximately 83% were self-operated while the rest were
franchised.
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During the year under review, a balanced for better economic
development was achieved and a stabilized society was expected
to remain in China, which was driven by its “steady growth” policy.
Secondary and tertiary industries became the main growth driver
of the economy as the initial result of economic restructuring.
Same store sales growth of the Group’s retail division increased by
4.7% year-on-year. The growth in turnover was mainly attributable
to new store openings. Nevertheless, the increases in minimum
wage levels across various regions and normal salary increments
in the industry exerted pressure on the profitability of the division.
As such, the Company implemented various initiatives to control
operating costs in a comprehensive manner in order to absorb
costs over time such as establishing an energy management
system to optimize energy savings at its retail stores, enhancing
bargaining power over leases by leveraging synergies arising from
its multi-format business, as well as improving its labor structure
and hiring system.

2013 95,174
2012 83,506
2011 70,088
—E—=F —E——F  E/OED)
2013 2012 Increased/
TEEK BEEET BEHERT (Decreased)
Retail division HKS$ million  HK$ million %
[ Turnover 83,506 14.0%
JEAG 5 T Attributable profit 2,871 (65.2%)
REPFILE - BB - & EBITDA
KB H AT & T 5,228 (28.7%)
BRI REFKREEE Capital expenditure and
new acquisitions 9,686 (87.5%)
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To reinforce the national influence of the Group’s retail business, as
well as to further enhance its market share, the division continued
to extend its network into new regions and to review its product
mix and operational strategy. During the year under review, “%
J& VIVO” expanded into new markets such as Wuxi, Hangzhou
and Foshan in accordance with the Group’s strategy of leveraging
synergies arising from its multi-format business. “Ole’ ” debuted its
new-concept store in eastern China at the Jing An Kerry Center,
Shanghai. The stores under Jiangxi Hongkelong Department
Store Investment Company Limited, which have been integrated
into the Group since 2012, were rebranded as “FE/HER CR
Vanguard” stores. Amid the backdrop of the transformation within
the industry, the division deployed various interactive activities
with suppliers across the nation so as to optimize supply chain
integration and achieve a mutually beneficial situation.

Geographical turnover breakdown of supermarket operation
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Furthermore, in October 2013, the Group and Tesco PLC
(“Tesco”) signed an agreement to form a Joint Venture to
consolidate the retail business in China. Completion of the
agreement is subject to regulatory approval. Pursuant to the
agreement, Tesco will inject the 134 stores and 19 shopping malls
it currently operates in mainland China into the Joint Venture.
Tesco will inject these assets and allocate an aggregate cash
sum of HK$4,325 million to subscribe for the new shares of the
Joint Venture so that the Group and Tesco will hold interests in
the Joint Venture amounting to 80% and 20%, respectively. The
Joint Venture will be the exclusive platform for the Group and
Tesco to engage in the business of multi-category retailing through
hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience stores, cash and carry
business and liquor stores (as well as the online/internet equivalent
of any of the foregoing businesses) in Greater China. The Joint
Venture aims to become the leading multi-format retailer in Greater
China, and targets faster growth and enhanced profitability. It is
also a compelling combination of local expertise and international
best practices. The Joint Venture is set to improve retail services
for consumers in China while securing significant cost and
operational synergies from the combination of the two operations.

Looking ahead, the retail division will continue to adopt
hypermarkets as its main retail format and to expand its multi-
format store network in regions where the Group has already
established a presence. By enhancing resource allocation,
operational balance and efficiency, the division aims to become
the market leader in the retail industry. To further consolidate its
leading position in major regional markets in China and capture
a greater market share, the division will continue to speed up its
expansion into third-to-fourth tier cities, as well as into counties,
towns and villages. The division will also establish direct trading
bases with farmers, food safety model shops and environmental
protection with energy saving model shops. Moreover, the division
will accelerate the renovation and brand transition of newly-
acquired stores in order to improve store image and provide a
better shopping experience to customers. Meanwhile, the division
will push forward its supply chain integration to pave the way for
future development while implementing various lean management
measures comprehensively to stimulate organic growth.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s retail network as at 31 December 2013
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Sales volume of beer division

over the last three years
"000F 7’000 kiloliters

2013 11,722
2012 10,639

2011 10,235

The Group’s beer division reported turnover and attributable
profit of HK$32,994 million and HK$943 million, respectively in
2013, representing increases of 17.6% and 14.6% year-on-year,
respectively.

The Group’s beer sales volume increased by 10% year-on-year
to approximately 11,722,000 kiloliters in 2013, of which the sales
volume of the Group’s national “EJE Snow” brand increased by
10% to approximately 10,620,000 kiloliters, accounting for more
than 90% of the Group’s total beer sales volume. During the year
under review, the growth momentum in beer sales volume was
mainly attributable to the Group’s continuous efforts to enhance
its production capacity, effective brand promotions, as well as
the strengthening of its distribution network and enhancement
of management services to points of sale. During the year under
review, higher-than-usual temperatures nationwide accelerated
the growth of overall capacity in the beer market, which along with
rapid growth in the sales volume of premium beers, in turn boosted
the division’s sales volume.

During the year under review, in response to the intensifying
market competition, the division ramped up investment in some
of its promotions and marketing activities in a moderate manner.
As such, the significant growth in sales boosted the division’s
operating profit. At the same time, by leveraging its economies
of scale and centralized procurement, the Group’s beer division
further enhanced its production efficiency so as to relieve cost
pressures. Meanwhile, the division continued to enhance its
product mix in the hopes of lifting the average selling prices of its
products and to consolidate overall profitability.

BE=F[ZT Snow |EEIEE
Sales volume of “E 7 Snow” beer

over the last three years
"000F 7 *000 kiloliters

2013 10,620
2012 9,667
2011 9,172
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—E-=F —ET--—F Emn/OED)

2013 2012 Increased/
g2 5 3£ 75 BEEET BEEHET (Decreased)
Beer division HK$ million  HK$ million %
[ Turnover 28,064 17.6%
P& 5 F) Attributable profit 823 14.6%
RETFIE BRI 8 EBITDA

K sH AT &R 3,824 15.5%
BEAREAT RFKREEE Capital expenditure
and new acquisitions 3,859 142.1%

R-E—=F+-"A=+—HAKEEERNHELED#H

Geographical distribution of the Group’s breweries as at 31 December 2013
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The division’s newly-built breweries in Guangxi, Anhui, Hubei,
Zhejiang and Guizhou commenced operation during the year
under review. As at the end of 2013, the Group operated more
than 95 breweries in China with an aggregate annual production
capacity of over 19,000,000 kiloliters.

In addition, in September 2013, the Group’s beer division
completed the acquisition of Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited
(“Kingway Brewery”)’s seven breweries in relation to its beer
production, distribution and sales businesses, with an annual
production capacity of 1.45 million tonnes. With the strong
brand reputation of Kingway Brewery in China, especially in
Guangdong Province, as well as its strong market share, extensive
sales network and established manufacturing facilities, the
acquisition will not only strengthen the division’s market position
in Guangdong Province, but will also further optimize the Group’s
sales network in China, enhancing the Group’s leading position in
China’s beer industry.

Looking ahead, the Group’s beer division will continue to carry
out marketing campaigns for the “E{E Snow” brand in order
to strengthen the brand’s reputation and customer loyalty.
The division will reinforce the promotion of its premium beers
to optimize its product mix. At the same time, the division will
continue to seek and evaluate investment opportunities in a
prudent manner while pursuing organic growth in order to expand

its market share and to consolidate its leading market position.
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Turnover of food division
over the last three years

B H E T HKS million

{
¥ A

The Group’s food division reported turnover of HK$12,069 million
and attributable profit of HK$53 million in 2013, representing
an increase of 16.3% and a decrease of 84.0% year-on-year,
respectively. Excluding the after-tax revaluation surplus and
the gain on the disposal of non-core investments, the division’s
attributable profit would have decreased by 79.5% year-on-year in
2013. The division is undergoing business transition, with the new
businesses establishing its economies of scale, thus affecting the
overall profitability of the division.

In respect of the division’s operation in Hong Kong, affected
by cyclical effects on production, the selling prices of live
pigs decreased as compared to last year while costs of raw
materials remained at a high level, which in turn put pressure
on the profitability of the livestock rearing operation. In future,
the division will step up construction of its Hong Kong breeding
base in Southern China, enhance the quality and sources of live
pig procurement and strengthen management so as to mitigate
negative effects brought by lower selling prices and rising costs.

2013 12,069
2012 10,379
2011 10,706
—E-=fF —E--F  #BhH/CED)
2013 2012 Increased/
BmEX BEEEBT BEHEBT (Decreased)
Food division HK$ million  HK$ million %
X Turnover 12,069 10,379 16.3%
FEAE & A Attributable profit 58 331 (84.0%)
REFILE - BiE - 8 EBITDA
Ko 1 SH Al & A 409 722 (43.4%)

BRI LHWIBEIEE

Capital expenditure

and new acquisitions 1,283 495 159.2%
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As for the meat operation in China, domestic live pig prices
remained low, which stabilized the demand for pork. Through the
vigorous expansion of the division’s meat wholesale business and
carved meat business and increasing the number of specialized
meat retail stores in various cities, the division achieved
satisfactory growth in both turnover and gross profit margin.

The division’s assorted foodstuff operation in China increased
awareness of the “F & 241" brand through various initiatives such
as promotional activities and inviting distributors to site visits,
which in turn led to a significant improvement in profitability. In
addition, the rice distribution business completed the acquisitions
of distribution businesses in Shanghai, Shaanxi, Hubei and
Liaoning provinces during the year under review. It also completed
the acquisitions of rice production and processing businesses
in quality rice production areas at Wuchang in Heilongjiang and
in Liaoning, with annual production capacities of 100,000 tons
and 200,000 tons, respectively. Leveraging its sales network
and brand reputation, the rice distribution business endeavoured
to consolidate the reputation of “H ¥ Ng Fung” branded rice
products nationwide.

During the year under review, the division acquired a fruit
processing and distribution business and built pomelo bases in
Meizhou and Pinghe for farming, production and processing,
laying a solid foundation for the formation of a vertically-integrated
industry chain spanning from sources to retail stores. The division
will continue to push the vigorous nationwide expansion of its
quality agricultural bases, and will spare no effort to become one
of the leading brands in the fruit and vegetable industry in China.

Looking ahead, the Group’s food division will continue to focus
on the domestic market and will enhance operational efficiency to
accommodate its development strategy. Through the promotion
and marketing of the “i¥ Ng Fung” brand, expansion into new
markets and mergers and acquisitions, the Group will further
enhance the division’s scale and profitability.
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The Group’s beverage division reported turnover of HK$7,305
million and attributable profit of HK$106 million in 2013,
representing increases of 53.3% and 23.3% year-on-year,
respectively.

Thanks to the remarkable growth in the sales volume of “1&
# C’estbon” purified water, as well as the active promotion of
beverage products, the division’s total sales volume increased by
41% year-on-year to approximately 4,930,000 kiloliters in 2013.
During the year under review, the division further enhanced the
market-leading position of its purified water business in southern
China by focusing on its core markets such as Guangdong
Province, Hunan Province and Sichuan Province and expanding
its sales network in their adjacent regions. At the same time,
the purified water business propelled the expansion of the “/&8 8
C’estbon” brand across the country through television and internet
advertisements, as well as offline marketing and promotional
activities such as sponsorship of the “World Water Day” event,
which contributed to continuous sales growth for the division.

Sales volume of beverage division

over the last three years
'000FF ’000 kiloliters

2013 4,930
2012 3,507
2011 2,642
—E-=fF —E-F #Bhi/CED)
2013 2012 Increased/
NTES BEEET BEEHET (Decreased)
Beverage division HK$ million  HK$ million %
EERE Turnover 4,766 53.3%
JEAE 5 T Attributable profit 86 23.3%
REPFIE - BB - & EBITDA
KB H AT AT 263 23.2%
EARR S M EEIEE Capital expenditure
and new acquisitions 70 934.3%
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Facing market competition in the industry as well as the early
investment stage of the beverage products from “Bif Kirin”,
the division actively strengthened its marketing and promotional
efforts for “fi## Kirin” beverage products during the year under
review and focused on certain key cities to boost synergistic
investment in sales channels with that of the packaged water. It
also engaged in a moderate degree of brand localization in order
to broaden its customer base. This enhanced product recognition
and awareness, which sharpened the competitive edge of the
division in the market and also maintained continuous sales growth
of beverage products.

Looking ahead, China’s beverage industry will maintain its
relatively strong growth momentum, in particular for the packaged
water segment. In the face of further market consolidation
and intensifying competition, the division will further enhance
operational efficiency and reinforce its efforts in research and
development and in promotional activities to meet the customer
demand. The division will also optimize its marketing strategy to
enhance its brand image so as to increase its market share.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s beverage plants as at 31 December 2013
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Capital and Funding

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s consolidated cash and
bank balance amounted to HK$21,536 million. The Group’s
borrowings as at 31 December 2013 were HK$22,703 million with
HK$3,357 million repayable within one year, HK$19,343 million
repayable after one year but within five years and HK$3 million
repayable after five years.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the
shareholders’ funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing
was approximately at 2.0% as at 31 December 2013.

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars.
As at 31 December 2013, 17.7% of the Group’s cash deposit
balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, 76.7% in Renminbi and
5.6% in US dollars; whereas 72.5% of the Group’s borrowings
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and 1.6% in Renminbi and
25.9% in US dollars. The Group’s borrowings are principally on a
floating rate basis.

As the majority of the Group’s assets, liabilities, revenue and
payments are denominated in functional currencies of the
respective group entity, the expected foreign currency exposure is
minimal.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2013, assets with a carrying value of HK$514
million (31 December 2012: HK$391 million) were pledged for
bank borrowings and notes payable.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2013.

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group, excluding its associated
companies, had a staff size of around 217,000, amongst which
about 98% were employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the
rest were mainly in Hong Kong and overseas. Remuneration
packages are assessed in accordance with the nature of job
duties, individual performance and market trends with built-in merit
components, paid in the form of cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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Mr. Chen Lang aged 48

was appointed as Chairman of the Board of the Company in
August 2012. Mr. Chen was Chief Executive Officer (previously
named as Managing Director) of the Company from January
2009 to August 2012. He is Executive Director of the Company,
Director and Vice President of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, and Director of China Resources National
Corporation as well as the Chairman of China Resources Snow
Breweries (China) Investment Co., Ltd., China Resources Ng
Fung Limited and China Resources C’estbon Beverage (Holdings)
Company Limited. He was previously the Chief Executive Officer
of China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd., and Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Logic Limited (now
renamed as China Resources Gas Group Limited). Prior to that,
he was Chairman and General Manager of China Resources
Development and Investment Co., Limited and was in charge of
a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a
Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui University, China and
a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of San Francisco, USA. He is currently the visiting professor of
Anhui University, China and also the part-time teacher of Master of
International Business of Fudan University, China. He joined China
Resources National Corporation and China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1986 and 1989 respectively.
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Mr. Hong Jie aged 46

was appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the Company in August 2012. He was Vice President of the
Company from September 2009 to August 2012. Mr. Hong
has been Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard
Company Limited since June 2009. Mr. Hong was Chief Operating
Officer of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited between
June 2006 and May 2009 and prior to that, he had been its Chief
Financial Officer since April 2003. In addition, Mr. Hong is the
Vice Chairman of China Chain Store & Franchise Association
since November 2012. Mr. Hong holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from the Hangzhou University of Commerce (now
known as Zhejiang Gongshang University). Mr. Hong has extensive
experience in financial and corporate management. Mr. Hong
joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1992 and
was Assistant General Manager of its Finance Department.

Mr. Liu Hongji aged 53

was appointed as Vice Chairman of the Board and Executive
Director of the Company in August 2012. He was Vice President
of the Company from May 2011 to August 2012. Mr. Liu has been
Managing Director of China Resources C’estbon Beverage (China)
Co., Ltd. (previously named as China Resources C’estbon Food
& Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd./C’estbon Food & Beverage
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd./Shenzhen C’estbon Food and Drink
Company Limited) since January 1997. Mr. Liu was Marketing
Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited between
September 2000 and January 2003. Mr. Liu had also held key
positions in two Shenzhen based enterprises. Mr. Liu majored in
Industrial Economics at the People’s University of China. He has
extensive experience in marketing and corporate management of
fast moving consumer goods especially beverages. Mr. Liu joined
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in March 1996.
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Mr. Du Wenmin

Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank aged 52

has been an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company since June 2009 and Company Secretary since
August 2009. Mr. Lai was previously the Executive Director, Non-
Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of China Resources Microelectronics Limited. Prior to that, he
served as the Chief Financial Officer of Eagle Brand Holdings
Ltd., which is a company listed in Singapore and before then, he
served as the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Logic International Holdings Ltd. (now known as China Resources
Gas Group Limited). Mr. Lai has a Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Western Australia and a graduate diploma
in Business and Administration from the Curtin University of
Technology of Western Australia. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and a fellow member
of CPA Australia. Mr. Lai joined the Company in 2009.

Mr. Du Wenmin aged 50

was appointed Director of the Company in September 2007.
He is the Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. He is also a Non-
Executive Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited, China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited, China Resources Gas Group Limited and
China Resources Microelectronics Limited (its listing position was
withdrawn on 2 November 2011), and Director of China Resources
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Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and China Resources
Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. He was previously the
Managing Director of China Resources Construction (Holdings)
Limited and the Chief Audit Executive of the Internal Audit and
Supervision Department of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. Mr. Du obtained a Master’s Degree in Business and
Administration from the University of San Francisco, USA. He
joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. Wei Bin aged 44

was appointed Director of the Company in November 2010. He
has been appointed the Chief Financial Officer of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and is the General Manager of its
Finance Department. He is also a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Gas Group Limited, China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited, China Resources Power Holdings Company
Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limited and China
Resources Land Limited, which are companies listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange except China Resources
Microelectronics Limited whose listing position was withdrawn
on 2 November 2011. He is also a Director of China Resources
Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Shan Dong Dong-E
E-Jiao Co., Ltd and China Vanke Co., Ltd., which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and China Resources Double-
crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wei holds a Bachelor’s degree in Auditing
from Zhongnan University of Economics in China and a Master’s
degree in Finance from Jinan University in China, and is a Senior
Accountant and a Senior Auditor in China. He is also a non-
practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wei joined China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 2001.
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Mr. Yan Biao aged 52

was appointed Executive Director of the Company in December
1994 and was re-designated as Non-Executive Director in March
2006. Mr. Yan is the Chief Legal Officer of the China Resources
Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Land Limited and a supervisor of China Resources Sanjiu Medical
& Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Mr. Yan has a Bachelor of Laws degree
from the Peking University, China and an MBA degree from the
University of San Francisco, USA.

Mr. Huang Daoguo aged 59

was appointed Director of the Company in May 2012. He is the
Audit Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.
He has been a Non-Executive Director of China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited (a listed company on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange) since May 2012 and has been a Non-Executive
Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited,
China Resources Land Limited and China Resources Gas Group
Limited (all three companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) since June 2012. Mr. Huang graduated from the
Renmin University of China in 1987 and specialized in finance.
He obtained a Master’s degree of Regional Economics from the
Central China Normal University in 1996. He is a Certified Public
Accountant and a Senior Auditor in the People’s Republic of
China. He joined the National Audit Office of the PRC (CNAO)
in 2000 and was the Commissioner of the Wuhan Resident
Office and Guangzhou Resident Office of CNAO, and Director
of the Department of Agriculture, Resources and Environmental
Protection Audit of CNAO. Mr. Huang joined China Resources
Group in 2011.
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Mr. Chen Ying aged 43

was appointed Director of the Company in May 2012. He is Chief
Strategy Management Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited since July 2013 and the General Manager
of Strategy Management Department since October 2011. Mr.
Chen is also a Non-executive Director of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited, China Resources Land Limited and China Resources Gas
Group Limited, which are listed on the main board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. He is also a Director of China Resources
Double-crane Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, and China Resources Sanjiu Medical
& Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and China Vanke Co., Ltd., which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen obtained a
Bachelor’s degree of Architectural Management from the Tsinghua
University, China in 1993 and a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from University of Oxford, the United Kingdom,
in 2007. Mr. Chen joined China Resources Group in 1993 and
has worked as Project Engineer, Project Manager and Manager
of Procurement Department and Executive Director of China
Resources Construction (Holdings) Company Limited, a fellow
subsidiary of the Company, from September 1993 to March 2002.
He was also the Director and President of China Resources Land
(Beijing) Limited from March 2002 to October 2011 and a Director
of China Resources Land Limited from March 2003 to February
2006, both are fellow subsidiaries of the Company and the latter is
listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Houang Tai Ninh aged 60

has been a Director of the Company since 1988. He is also a
Director and Chairman of Sino Resources and Energy Holdings
Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited, Sino Mining
Investments Limited and a Director of China & Overseas
Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business
Studies degree from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire,
United Kingdom.

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric FCPA(Practising), GBS,
OBE, JP, aged 60

has been a Director of the Company since March 2003. He
is Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), member of the Twelve National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and former member of the Legislative Council of the
Hong Kong SAR. Dr. Li holds directorships in a number of listed
companies including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng
Bank Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
Transport International Holdings Limited, Wong’s International
(Holdings) Limited, and RoadShow Holdings Limited. Dr. Li was a
Director of Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.



F 3R 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

EENSEEEAESZEE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

B k15

Dr. CW Mo chy

HREEHLT s2MeEs . ®wTHAE
EBE  ATH+  BEANTNE

RZEERF+—ARZERARRES -
BETRAEEMRAEEEMELMER
BN BEEBLERFEE - MABEE
FEENEEEE  RAZENREGERR
BELXR S TRECREEBREEBR
A7 FEBHERAF BEBERPEAE
RAR(FIEHTEMERE)GRRA)
BERRBRAA  HESBEBRAA -
BEIEMEERAR - BEKREGRAA
RRZHEFZEBRAR(HAESELETA
ANMEERE - BIH IR INEFARA Asset
Management Limited(&¥T % EHAG]) Z
BUFRITES - B E=FURERES
WEMETRARBRIEEER I REEMER
AR R EEFIERENDERAR -

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi GBS, OBE, JP, aged 64

has been a Director of the Company since November 2005. Dr.
Cheng is a practising solicitor and the senior partner of Messrs.
P.C. Woo & Co. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong. He is the founder chairman of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary
President and Chairman Emeritus. Dr. Cheng currently holds
directorships in K. Wah International Holdings Limited, China
Mobile Limited, Hong Kong Television Network Limited (formerly
known as City Telecom (H.K.) Limited), Towngas China Company
Limited, Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited and Tian
An China Investments Company Limited, all being public listed
companies in Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of ARA Asset Management Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on Singapore Exchange Limited. His other
directorships in public listed companies in the last 3 years include
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and China COSCO
Holdings Company Limited, both being public listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan GBS, JP, aged 49

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He
is the Executive Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings
Limited and Asia Insurance Company Limited. He also acts as
an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong
Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business community,
Mr. Chan also serves as a Hong Kong Deputy to The National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China and a
member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He is
also a former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
SAR. In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings Limited,
City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage Holdings Limited and
Yau Lee Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan was a Director of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited.

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon GBS, CBE, JP, aged 68

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He
had been a career civil servant for over 36 years before retiring
from the civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary,
Government Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high-
ranking government positions, namely the Secretary for Economic
Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and
eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for Planning,
Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited and
two of its subsidiaries and Television Broadcasts Limited.
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aged 48

was appointed as Senior Vice President of the Company in
November 2013. He was Vice President of the Company from May
2011 to October 2013. Mr. Wang has been the Chief Executive
Officer of China Resources Ng Fung Limited since 2011. He was
previously the Senior Vice President of China Resources Retail
(Group) Company Limited. He joined China Resources National
Corporation in 1988. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science
degree and a Bachelor’s degree in Management Science from
the University of Science and Technology of China, as well as
a Master’s degree in Engineering from Tsinghua University. He
has extensive experience in strategic planning and corporate
management.

aged 53

was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources
Officer of the Company in January 2014. He was Deputy Chief
Human Resources Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited from October 2010 to December 2013. Prior
to joining China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, he
was Director of Corporate Transformation and Transactions at
Hewitt Associates, General Manager at Mercer North China, Chief
Solutions Officer and Director of M&A Consulting at Mercer China.
He was also Principal at Mercer Human Resources in New York.
Prior to that, Dr. Wang was a Senior Analyst at National Economic
Research Associates (New York) and Consultant at the World
Bank in Washington DC. Dr. Wang holds a PhD in Economics from
Northwestern University in the US and an MS degree from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

aged 57

has been appointed as Vice President of the Company since
November 2010. He was an Executive Director of the Company
from January 2000 to November 2010, and Deputy Managing
Director from March 2006 to November 2010. Mr. Wang is a
Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
China Resources National Corporation. He is also an Executive
Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is
responsible for the entire operation of the Company’s beer
operation. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the
People’s University of China. He has previously worked in the
China National Economic Committee and held key management
positions in a Shenzhen based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined
China Resources National Corporation and China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in 1994.
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Management Philosophy

The Board believes that risk management is an integral part
of corporate governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk
management will facilitate the Group’s business development and
operation by setting the appropriate risk appetite, maintaining an
optimal risk level and more importantly, proactively responding to
risks. It therefore helps protect shareholder value and safeguard
the Group’s reputation. Through putting in place proper risk
management control over key businesses and carrying out regular
reviews and updates, the Group strives to reduce the likelihood
and the effect of risks before they occur, and deal with problems
effectively when they arise. While the Group’s risk management
is the responsibility of every management team member and is
embedded in the daily operation of every business unit, our risk
management process is based on a decentralized model with a

HARERERM YR - DWW AMEEKZTE  centralized monitoring system. The Group’s strategy is to maintain

[ a streamlined risk management process to identify, analyze and
mitigate various risks in an efficient and effective manner.

TtERBRERRF Corporate Risk Management Process

=8 Board of Directors

[ B BE 22 Risk monitoring

TEHA M ZR B RS Reporting on regular and ad hoc basis

EREN Business Units
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EFEEE Corporate Risk Management

Step One - Risk Identification

We identify and assess risks both at group and individual business
unit levels, and incorporate risk management into our business
planning. At the end of each year, each business unit undertakes
a review of potential risks which fall within their respective
business and operation area. The business unit then performs risk
reviews including risk mapping and evaluation of their probability
of occurrence and impact. Identified risks are reported together
with the explanation of its nature and proposed risk management
strategies to the Group during the business plan review session
at the beginning of each year. In addition to the annual exercise,
our regular reporting system of each business unit also facilitates
ongoing risk identification and the reporting of risks.

Step Two - Risk Analysis and Mitigation

When risks are identified, the assigned risk owner is responsible
for analyzing the probability of their occurrence and potential
impact. Priority will be given to risks with high probability and
negative impact. The risk owner then designs appropriate
procedures and actions for risk mitigation and acts accordingly.
Implementation cost is also taken into account when devising
the action plan. During the implementation, we also emphasize
the balance of risks and benefits to ensure long-term business
success.

Step Three - Risk Monitoring and Performance Evaluation

After risk identification, analysis and mitigation, evaluation
reports are submitted to the Group through the regular reporting
mechanism. To prevent the same risks from occurring again,
preventive actions and procedures to improve operational
efficiency are also incorporated into the internal control system.
In addition, our Internal Audit and Supervision Department
undertakes independent reviews on internal control system, and
our management is responsible for ensuring appropriate actions
are taken to rectify any control deficiencies highlighted in the audit
reports within a reasonable period of time.
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Leveraging its competitive advantages and extensive business
network, the Group has always lived up to its mission of “Better
Life Together” with a view to creating a better future for and
reverting to the community. As a leading consumer goods
company in China, we endeavor to embrace the principles of
corporate social responsibility and sustainable development into
our operations in four core business units, namely retail, beer,
food and beverage, and to share responsibility towards our
shareholders, customers, staff, partners, the environment and the
community by making full use of our good corporate image and
maximizing our social value.

Community Care

The Group is committed to building a corporate culture that
emphasizes its care for the community through active participation
in community services and social welfare activities, thereby
offering helping hands to those in needs. Apart from donation of
cash and relief supplies, we also encouraged our staff, customers
and suppliers to participate in various voluntary services and
incorporate social services to be part of our team culture. It cannot
only revert to the community, but also raise the sense of belonging
to the Company and improve the quality of our staff.

Community Services

In 2013, the Group continued to actively take part in the China
Resources Hope Town project, an initiative organized by our
parent company China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, by
transforming traditional economic model for local farmers with the
aim of boosting their income and living standards. During the year
under review, our food division achieved various breakthroughs
in the development of the agricultural industry in the project.
These included the establishment of a tomato and cherry tomato
plantation together with chicken farm in Baise, Guangxi Province
and its neighboring areas, which together generated over 1,000
jobs for local farmers. As for the China Resources Hope Town
in Shaoshan, Hunan, we cooperated with business partners to
acquire whole grain products from local farmers in the hopes of
boosting the sales and increasing their incomes.

e
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BEEEEE RS 2/NEE L REEER
Cherry tomato plantation, China Resources
Hope Town in Baise, Guangxi Province

To help the underprivileged groups such as low income families,
singleton elderly and the physically disadvantaged, our retail
division continued to support the Hong Kong Agency for Volunteer
Service’s “Share-to-Care Volunteer Campaign” for the eighth
year, with preparation work throughout the year. Nearly 100
supermarket outlets in Hong Kong have engaged simultaneously
and formed volunteer teams to process 30,000 gift packs and
distributed them to those in need through 400 organizations,
sending them blessings and regards in person.

2330 AR ZEBER CR Vanguard [ [R
BRA - X HF EWAITE

Nearly 100 “Z£E &% CR Vanguard”

supermarkets in Hong Kong have engaged
simultaneously to support “Share-to-Care
Volunteer Campaign”

9oUBUIBAOK) 81eI0dI0D)

HEXT



f# & & {F Corporate Social Responsibility

AEEBEBEIZATE  fFRTZHEE
B BE[EHE CRCare |EBHHERE
B AFRATERIUALZREDEEE
CRCare] 21k » AJEFEEE - RIFFER
RE TEEBEZEAHERERLSERE
aim- —HEAMEAREETE] - W
BUSHEAMERE  BTRERDL AT
HRIEEMERENEEFMUETEER -

AEENHRREEIINRETE @ HBWE
% [#EBE R CR Vanguard | E &+ F 4%
BEXHeRBHMEHAR MARBEIERE
[ %8 = CRCare ] & [ K FFMYE Pacific
Coffee | I DRI BERER = FRBZE

A

BERBERELTE  RERLGRRK
R-AEBEHDHEEERCELGEL
MEE—R - RANKREBE _TTLF
MR EBREAMBEEHEE] - ZatE
EERBFEREZWENT/ NBREEE
5 U RB—ARE  BEMISEKIN
AR BETRBEREEETERMES
B FRERTE-FTHSRABEERED -

[ERRE B EETE
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Libraries Program”

=M A AR 8 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

The Group launched an array of community activities to help senior
citizens. “Z¥ B % CRCare” continued its long-standing practice
by offering 50% discounts on its Chinese medical services to
patrons aged over 65. The Group’s retail division co-organized
the “4.2 Autism Awareness Day Light It Up Blue Campaign” with
various academies and social organizations with the aim to raising
awareness of autism, during which an exhibition with charity sale
of more than 60 paintings drawn by autistic children.

Our community work has earned us wide recognition. The Group’s
supermarket chain “#H&%R CR Vanguard” was presented the
“Caring Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for seven consecutive years, while our “¥£ 8% CRCare”
and “AFFMIBE Pacific Coffee” have also been named a “Caring
Company” by the same organization for five and three consecutive
years, respectively.
years+

PR AR

caringcompany

‘Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

. A ERBHERE

Education

We believe that education is the key to improving children’s lives
and children are future leaders of society. Education is one of
the key focuses of our corporate social responsibility programs.
The Group’s beverage business initiated the “China Resources
C’estbon 100 Libraries Program” in 2007 to build libraries
in primary and secondary schools in poor areas that lack of
educational resources. The program gave “one bottle of C’estbon

water for one spare book” to encourage donation of spare books
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to children living in those areas. During the year under review, the
division held approximately 2,000 book donation activities and
collected approximately 380,000 books. As at the end of 2013, the
division established 105 libraries in 15 provinces or cities across
the nation and collected 730,000 books, enabling over 1 million
children to benefit from the program.

In April and May of 2013, the beer division cooperated with the
media in Heilongjiang to launch the “SNOW - Dreams Come
True” scholarship program. The activity has sponsored 40
underprivileged students with the aims of helping them by raising
money for their education, and arising public concerns on those
underprivileged. In addition, the division has been organizing
its flagship “Great Expedition with SNOW” campaign for many
years. In June 2013, the campaign gave out free drinking water
to parents of the candidates outside examination sites for the
entry of the college and high school with more than 50 districts in
Heilongjiang, showed its support to them.

Disaster Relief

In April 2013, a magnitude 7.0 earthquake struck Ya’an, Sichuan
Province. The Group quickly responded to the call for support after
the earthquake and launched a series of activities that included
fund raising and the donation of relief supplies such as tents to
the victims. The southwestern regional company of the Group’s
beverage division immediately transported drinking water to the
affected areas on the day of the earthquake, while the Group’s
supermarkets, shopping malls and “A ¥ WBE Pacific Coffee”
shops also helped the earthquake victims by organizing various
charity sales and posting notices of missing persons in shops.
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The Group quickly responded to the call

for support after the earthquake in Ya'an,

Sichuan Province
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The Group successfully held the fifth
"SNOW Draft Beer — Photo Competition

on Chinese Ancient Building" to promote
Chinese cultural heritage

Cultural Conservation

The Group is committed to cultural conservation to preserve
and raise awareness of cultural heritage. Since 2008, our beer
division has partnered with The School of Architecture of Tsinghua
University to organize the “Popularization and Inheritance —
China’s Ancient Buildings Series” program with an investment of
more than RMB10 million. As at the end of 2013, the program
published five sets of 31 books on ancient architectural to enrich
public knowledge of ancient buildings. In addition, the Group
successfully held the fifth “SNOW Draft Beer — Photo Competition
on Chinese Ancient Building” to promote Chinese cultural heritage.
In 2013, the Contest was held in Moscow, outside China for the
first time. The Group partnered with Tsinghua University to shoot
the leading documentary program “Ancient Chinese Buildings” on
CCTV. The overall project received wide recognition and has been
successful in raising public concerns about the conservation of
China’s ancient buildings.

Environmental Protection

The Group is committed to promoting awareness of environmental
protection to its customers, suppliers and the society by
organizing and supporting different environmental protection
activities. By integrating various forces within the society, the
Group aims to preserve the Earth’s precious resources to
create a greener environment. The Group strives to mitigate the
environmental impact caused by its business operations through
our implementation on policies about environmental management
and energy saving.
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Energy Conservation and Waste Reduction

In 2013, the Group’s retail division stepped up its efforts in
technological transformation to promote energy conservation and
waste reduction by introducing changes such as environmentally-
friendly light bulbs and energy-saving cooling systems. All “Ole’ ”
outlets across the nation participated in the “Care for the Earth
Campaign” which promotes the use of fully-degradable eco-
friendly bags, which effectively reduced the use of approximately
two million plastic bags. The Group’s beer division has established
standards of energy conservation and emissions reduction which
are much stricter than the national standard. In addition, the
division ramped up resources in promoting recycling behavior.
During the year, the division continued to promote the application
of new technologies in energy conservation and waste reduction
and implemented more than 200 projects with a total investment of
approximately RMB90 million in environmental protection projects.

As for our food division, we continued to carry out technological
transformation and the enhancement of our production
equipments during the year under review. For instance, our
Nanning, Sichuan and Jiangxi units discontinued the use of coal-
burning boilers, thereby eliminating sulfur dioxide emissions. Our
Zhejiang cold food unit adopted an advanced management system
to reduce energy consumption, which earned it the recognition
of “Clean Production Audit Outstanding Sub-enterprise”. As for
our beverage division, it implemented various measures such as
upgrading its pump system and facilities, reducing water usage
and electricity consumption, as well as using the eco-friendly
package bags to reduce disposable plastic bags usage.

IR — /N IBRREED

Retail division took part in “Earth Hour” campaign
for the fifth consecutive year
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Environmental Protection Campaigns

The Group is committed to promoting environmental protection
by launching activities in the hope of raising awareness on
energy conservation and environmental protection. To spread
this message to our customers, our retail division took part in the
WWEF’s “Earth Hour” campaign for the fifth consecutive year, in
which all shops turned off their unnecessary lights. Furthermore,
various “#E B &R CR Vanguard” stores in different regions carried
out a mooncake box and gift box recycling campaign during
the Chinese New Year and Mid-Autumn Festival. The Group co-
organized the “Empty Bottle in Exchange for Water Campaign”
with Coca Cola in which the campaign received an overwhelming
response by the media community and our customers, so as to
raise awareness of recycling. Meanwhile, “A % WIBE Pacific
Coffee” shops promoted the recycling of resources by re-using
coffee grounds to produce outer casings of thermo mugs.

Human Resources

The Group upholds the belief that its people are the most valuable
asset of the organization, and that they are the cornerstone
of the continued success of our business development. We
are committed to providing a safe and harmonious working
environment to our staff. We not only established various
communication channels to solidify effective communications, but
also cared about our staff’'s health both physically and mentally,
and held an array of work-life-balance activities. Furthermore, we
endeavored to nurture and retain the talents by offering training
and development opportunities in the hope of boosting the
Group’s competitiveness and productivity.

BN A E TREIEIIRE
BB T H LR
We offered training and development

opportunities for staff and cared about
their health and work-life-balance
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In 2013, the Group provided numerous training opportunities
to staff of different levels. To sharpen the competitive edge
of its management team, the Group is devoted to providing
lean management training for over 30,000 staffs, including the
Green Belt, the Yellow Belt and the Blue Belt. The Group’s retalil
business established “CR Vanguard Institute”, which provides
comprehensive learning opportunities to staff at different levels to
cater for the needs of different positions. As for the beer division, it
has actively provided learning and training opportunities to its staff,
resulting in 100% coverage of staff training.

Staff Care

The Group is committed to implementing caring measures for
its staff. In August 2013, the beverage division initiated a series
of caring activities for its staff, including “Touching C’estbon -
Finding Our Beloved Around Us”. The activities aim to care for,
help and encourage its staff by listening to their feelings and
understanding their needs, enabling them to truly feel the warmth
and care of the division which in turn raise the staff morale and
increase their sense of belonging. As for the food division, regular
health checks are provided to its staff. To strengthen the team
cohesion, the division organized various activities such as sports
day, interest classes and other recreational activities to facilitate
the communication between its staff. All of our divisions also set
up its charity fund to help those staff who are in need or are ill so
as to build up solidarity in the work environment and culture.
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The activity of “Touching C’estbon- Finding Our
Beloved Around Us” enabled the staff to truely feel
the warmth and care of the company
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Food Safety and Product Quality

Public awareness of food safety and product quality has increased
over time. As the leading consumer goods company in China, the
Group requires all of its business units to meet the relevant quality
indicators and to provide better products and services, in order to
maintain the Group’s brand reputation.

The Group’s food division is committed to providing safe, healthy
and convenient products to its customers. The production
process of the division’s various breeding, slaughtering and food
processing businesses complied with the HACCP, 1ISO9001,
ISO22000 and Good Agricultural Practices (GAP) standards, and
received all of the related certifications. During the year under
review, the division achieved a passing rate of 100% in all of its trial
tests on its products. As a well-known brand in China’s drinking
water industry, the brand value of the Group’s beverage division
lies in its responsibility. All the 36 beverage plants across the
country implemented the quality safety audit, thus ensuring the
products to surpass national standards.

In 2013, our retail division won the “Seven Star Awards for
Outstanding Contribution in Food Safety & Public Health” co-
organized by Yicai and Ecolab Inc., for two consecutive years,
whereas our food division also won this recognition for the first
time. This award is one of the highest recognitions in the Chinese
food industry, and serves to promote food safety and recognize
food enterprises which make significant contributions to public
health. It also reflected society’s recognition of the Group’s
continuous efforts to ensure food safety.

RMEBARELZE - @F  BENRGZAMED

Our food division is committed to providing safe,

healthy and convenient products to its customers
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All the 36 beverage plants across the country
implemented the quality safety audit

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established stringent internal guidelines for supply
chain management for all its business units in order to secure the
quality of its products. For instance, our beer division has modified
its assessment on selection of suppliers such that the product
quality, promptness and services provided by the suppliers
have been improved. In the meantime, the Group terminated
its cooperation with unqualified suppliers so as to mitigate risks
arising from the procurement.

The Group’s food division strived to enhance its supply chain
management. Its fresh produce business covering agricultural
farming, procurement, distribution and retail leveraging its own
agricultural base and close ties with China Resources Hope Town
and “ZEHER CR Vanguard” to enable the Group building a
vertically-integrated industry chain spanning from sources to retail
channels and boosting the efficiency of its integration process
involving planting, harvesting and distribution.

i B B IE 4L [7)

Our food division strived to build a vertically-

integrated industry chain spanning from sources

to retail channels
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“FR# Chinese Arts & Crafts” was named the
“2013 Service Retailers of the Year — Department
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Store Category” for the ninth consecutive year
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Customer Satisfaction

The Group has always been customer oriented and is committed
to pursuing excellent management. For instance, our retail division
has held multiple customer conferences last year to enhance
communication with our customers. This enabled us to tailor
plans which meet customer demand while enhancing the quality
of our services, and hence building a popular customer-oriented
operating philosophy.

Our quality products and services continued to earn recognition
from the industry. “# 2 Chinese Arts & Crafts” has been
participating in the annual “Mystery Shopper Program” organized
by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association each year, and
was named the “2013 Service Retailers of the Year — Department
Store Category” for the ninth consecutive year since 2005. The
Group’s beverage division was awarded as the “China Beverage
Industry Association—OQutstanding 20-Year Enterprise” by the
China Beverage Industry Association. Meanwhile, the “/68&
C’estbon” brand was named “China’s Consumer Trusted Brand
2013” at the China Business Leaders & Media Leaders Annual
Conference, the only brand won this honor in the industry. “
% CRCare” won “Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards” for the
third consecutive year, demonstrating recognition for its success
in providing excellent services.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate
governance framework is essential to the successful growth
of the Company and the enhancement of shareholder value.
The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and adopts principles of
corporate governance emphasising a quality Board, accountability
to all stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

Corporate Governance

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance
Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual which was revised
on 31 March 2009, 18 November 2010 and 21 March 2012,
incorporates almost all the Code Provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and includes
the implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where
appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual
can be downloaded from our website and copies are available on
request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013, save
and except the following:

In respect of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-
executive directors are not appointed for a fixed term. The Board
does not believe in any arbitrary term of office. The current
arrangement will give the Company sufficient flexibility to organize
the composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group.
Further, the Articles of Association of the Company requires that
one-third of the directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire each year and every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
directors to retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since
their election or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-
election.

In respect of Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Board did
not have a policy concerning diversity of Board members but the
Board is actively considering the adoption of the relevant policy.

In respect of Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company
has not provided all members of the Board with monthly updates
to enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties. However, the Company has based on business

9oUBUIBAOY) 81eI0dI0D)

HKEFXT



EERIRE Corporate Governance Report

ERERHENEN  R2REFTSNES
[BITHE -

FFTTRIED1ABATAEXME - ARAL
BERNEFZTHEANEEZEE  HEREAR

REARFEBEREZANNEE  E08=
FWERE—R - I ERAZERDA

AMELRZ(EFTETEID) HEEES
Behkz(ESHE) R(ER )83
WITESREM)PIRZEIBITREER
ARBAEEZBENAE - ME BFTA
BT ETRA  ERREMERZER

ARRFRATIEALEERRE - —TE
AmELTHRAMER  Z—FTHE/AKER
BE  ARARBREFRANTLEERAER
REER  UBFRRERER -

EEg

BEEEeRRRETEAQNNEL - EER
A RABREBEUARAREZER BHT
= PEENAEMT-

RREFGIANIZZEEIE

1. AKEREREKEH

2. BBARAEIZEBLMBEZEOK
SRHIE

3. EREEEMRR:

4. HEAKBEBARE KRE HE -
BEREREMEREAFMX ;

5. WHRERBEAMMNAMEITRR
6. BWEAQAMBREERE R

7. MARBBRRELRBEREZZELE
IR HR -

ZBAIE 5 R A 7 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

situation, provided to the Board from time to time, updated
business information to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties.

In respect of Code Provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company
did not have formal letters of appointment for directors. However,
the directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company. In addition, the directors are required to refer
to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued
by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors”,
and, if applicable, “Guide for Independent Non-Executive
Directors” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in
performing their duties and responsibilities as directors of the
Company. Besides, the directors are required to comply with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual
Report is intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the
corporate governance practices of the Company and their
development throughout the reporting year and to invite our
shareholders’ views thereon.

The Board

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s
affairs. The directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance
shareholder value and to conduct themselves in accordance with
their duty of care and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their
decisions include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4, Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments,
disposal of assets or any significant capital expenditure of
the Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;

6. Review of the financial performance and results of the
Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final
dividend and the declaration of any interim dividends.
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code, and in this
regard the duties of the Board shall include:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and the senior
management;

(c)  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as referred
to in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

o Approval of the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company; and

° Review of the guidance about information disclosure to
public as provided by the Company.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts
of each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. Since November 2002, to enable the shareholders to
appraise the operations and performance of the Group, the Group
has been releasing quarterly financial and operational review.
The financial statements are prepared and presented to enable
a clear and balanced assessment of the financial position of the
Group. Regular management reports on the financial position and
prospects of each business unit of the Group are reviewed by the
Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2013, and up to the date
of this Report, there was no change to the membership of the
Board.
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As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 14 directors,
including four executive directors (which contain the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer, Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer),
five non-executive directors and five independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 52 to 60 of this Annual Report and can also be found on our
website. The relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of
the Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive directors confirming his independence from the
Company, and considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard and contribute to the effective
direction of the Group. Throughout the year of 2013, the Company
complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules by
maintaining the proportion of its independent non-executive
directors to at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme
for its newly appointed directors. Continuing development and
information are provided to the directors to keep them abreast
of the latest developments involving the Group’s businesses and
operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Company. Appointments
are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to
the full Board for decision.

All directors (including executive and non-executive directors) are
not appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any
arbitrary term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility
to organise the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least once every three years on a rotation
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basis. The Articles of Association of the Company require that
one-third of the directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire each year. The directors who are required to
retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the
year and those who have been longest in office since their election
or re-election. A retiring director is eligible for re-election.

During the year of 2013, the positions of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of Chairman
was held by Mr. Chen Lang and Mr. Hong Jie held the position of
Chief Executive Officer. The segregation of duties of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear distinction in the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Mr. Chen Lang, the Chairman, and Mr. Hong Jie, the Chief
Executive Officer have attended the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 24 May 2013. The Chief Financial Officer
and either the chairman or at least one member of the Audit
Committee, Compensation Committee and Nomination Committee
attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company. Separate
resolution was proposed at the annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including re-election of each retiring
director and was put to vote at the meeting by way of poll. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the meeting.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals to review the financial
performance of the Group. Between these regular meetings, the
Board meets to discuss and consider major issues (whether or not
required by the Listing Rules) and also on other occasions when
Board decisions are required. With respect to regular meetings of
the Board, directors usually receive at least 14 days prior written
notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting Board
papers no less than 3 days prior to the meeting. With respect to
other meetings called, directors are given as much notice as is
reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The directors
have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the directors.
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BEEN _T-=FEH#HBMATREZ(BEE  During the year of 2013, 7 meetings (including meetings by way

HR#HFZER) BEEN_T—=FHFEZE of circulation of written resolutions) were held by the Board. The

CEENTEZRESLENFBIRTE attendance of the directors at Board meetings and principal Board
committee meetings held in 2013 is set out in the table below:

#1TEE Executive Directors

BE%4E  Mr. Chenlang 17 a4 01 22 21/21 34/34

MAKE  MrHong Jie 17 oA 14 2P 21/21 20/34

BtELLE  Mr. Liu Hongj 0 a4 11 2P 21/21

TRTESE My, Lai NiHium, Frank 11 a4 A1 22 21/21 34/34 1h
#2172 % Non-Executive Directors

HXEELE  Mr. DuWenmin 1 3411 2P

BEEE M. WeiBin 0 oAt A1 22

BEEE  Mr. YanBiao 11 34 A1

FEHA%E  Mr. Huang Daoguo 1 3411 2

%4 Mr. Chen Ying 1 4 A2

B U 3EHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAELE  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh 17 4411 22 4/4 33 17
FZHEBL  Dr. LiKa Cheung, Bric 1N 44 A 2R 444 33 1
HE2E+  Dr. Cheng Mo Chi 1 3401 2 2/4 213

BS54 Mr. Bemard Charnwut Chan 1 34 A2 3/4 1"
EMESEE  Mr. SiuKwing Chue, Gordon 17 4411 22 33 17
“E-EENHERY

Total number of meetings held in 2013 1 7 4 3 210 340 1
Bzt -

Notes:

R: TE €% Regular Meeting
S: 155 € 5% Special Meeting
W:  EZECRFEZR Written Resolutions
(1) ZE-=ZFEZROTZESRE  2TUSTERERVAES -
All of the Executive Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions in 2013.
(2 ZE-=FEZUBEESRE  HPTHRUASHETNET  HB - TRAEMRABERTAES -

Twenty of the Finance Committee resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions and fourteen of the Finance Committee
resolutions were passed by way of physical meeting in 2013.
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Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and
professional development program for directors.

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. The Company also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the directors’ knowledge and skill.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has sent reading materials to directors on
regulatory updates or information relevant to the Company or its
business.

The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development trainings during the year.
Details of which are set out in below table:

# 1T == Executive Directors

PREA ST 4 Mr. Chen Lang
HARSTAE Mr. Hong Jie
ZIEL A Mr. Liu Hongji
FamESe A Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank

#1TE=2= Non-Executive Directors
HXES%LE  Mr. DuWenmin

P Mr. Wei Bin

BB T Mr. Yan Biao

Ei@EE %L Mr. Huang Daoguo
PR & 5 4 Mr. Chen Ying

AN N NN
AN NI NN

SSSS S
SSSS S

B HITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAEHLE  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
FREMEL  Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
g+ Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

FRES B4 Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
EMESEE  Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

SSSS
SSSSS
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Delegation by the Board

While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board
are delegated as follows:

(@ Committees — various committees have been established
by the Board to administer certain specified functions
of the Company’s affairs. The main committees include:
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee which set out,
among other things, the duties, functions and composition of
these committees are set out in the CG Manual and available
on the Company’s website;

(b)  Chief Executive Officer — the day-to-day management of the
Company’s business is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer who is accountable to the Board; and

() Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate
and operating management are delegated to senior
management of the Company within the parameters as
specified by the Board.

Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang
Tai Ninh (chairman), Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut
Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank. The duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to make recommendation after such review
and to assess the suitability and qualification of any proposed
director candidate. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee are then put forward for consideration and adoption,
where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee setting out its duties and procedures was
revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board.
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Compensation Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Compensation Committee
comprised four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh,
Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr. Cheng Mo Chi. The duties of the
Compensation Committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of remuneration
of directors and senior management, establishing a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on remuneration
and determining the specific remuneration packages for all
directors and senior management. The terms of reference of the
Compensation Committee setting out its duties and procedures
was revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration of the directors and senior executives is
determined with reference to the performance and responsibilities
of the individual, the performance of the Group, prevailing market
conditions and remuneration benchmarks from comparable
companies. Directors and employees also participate in bonus
arrangements based on the performance of the Group and the
individual.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met
three times on matters including:

° Approval of the Restricted Incentive Award Scheme of the
Company; and

o Approval of the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not directors are
within the following bands:

3,500,001 - 4,000,000
4,500,001 - 5,000,000
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Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee comprised
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka
Cheung, Eric (chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi and Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan. One of its members has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. No member of this Committee
is a member of the former or existing auditors of the Company.
The membership of the Audit Committee has complied with
the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualification. The existing terms of reference of the
Audit Committee which was revised on 18 November 2010, are
modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and have also
adopted the principles set out in the CG Code for the time being in
force. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee was further
revised on 21 March 2012 and are available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors, review of the
Company'’s financial information and oversight of the Company’s
financial report system and internal control procedures. During the
year under review, the Audit Committee met on four occasions.
The work of the Audit Committee in 2013 included reviews of:

o the external auditor’s report to the Audit Committee in
respect of 2012 audit;

° the 2012 annual report and annual results announcement;

° audit strategy memorandum in respect of the 2013 audit by
the external auditor;

° connected party transactions;

° the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March
2013 and the related results announcement;

° the 2013 interim report and interim results announcement;

o the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30
September 2013 and the related results announcement;

° the quarterly reports of internal audit activities;

° the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal Audit and
Supervision Department; and

° the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.



%3k 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

RBEFEAN  BERZEGHE

BRZXGH o

J8 37 1% BUEm

BEREEYEERADAZEANERIERE
Ve BREZEER/EMNEREADAIZE
MAAEBEEITIEEZRGEBEE I -
B ZHMREEREE—_T—=F+=_A8
=+ —BUEFENMEREOBREEME
HHZBEHNEI15BEFE 116 B BH LI
FisReE - REEFE @ MAR AR
R A% BB 4) 8 #533,000,000 0 (—F— =
& ¢ %78 22,000,0007T) ¢ M IEFAZ AR
P S /9 B A R 493E 48 #56,000,0007T (=
T— T4 : #7%8%1,000,0007T) °

ESERSFXZBRETEH

%%F_ﬁ—zi‘f'_ﬂ:‘f’—ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬂ

BEHREREBEN  ERFHEICAEFE100
Emﬁ%@iﬁi‘?ﬁﬁs c ZEZRFMAN
H ARRHRET [BEEEZAHEZHTH
(AT rEm=sal) - H#J:I'D%Eﬁ'lﬁﬁﬁ’
TRE [ LB ITAEEZSFIFEETA ]
(ATEEEETADBEEERN - RZZTZT
ANEMNAARA ZEELFOANBE=F
TENF=ZA=1+—H ARAIFESEEBHR
B R B ERERTAGWITEE - Hig
RZZEZEANF=A=+—HBRZ=ZZ%— §¢
FT—ATNBRIEE] - BETAANELR
SRR ERRECERNMERNEEAL
E%$E.%i&’;¢i¥)\§\&—f§%$$
FRESRRE BB A LT o BIET AR ERAE
15 TRAEE #E'Jﬁﬁxiﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ%" APINTN
REHE  2REFDEREE_Z—=
F+Z A=+ —ALENFEAN—EETIRES
AR FTAIE B FE E LR ©

B B4

EFEE2HARRURERREREOARE
B ABMEERERE  BREMEEXK
KWERCEXBREARE  REAESEEE
RBRME - ARERMBREXRENA
Sl -BEFERR  BULARLHITAR

{EEEIR4E Corporate Governance Report

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor on three occasions.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and
independence of the external auditor of the Company. The Audit
Committee concludes that the independence of the external
auditor of the Company has not been compromised by non-audit
services performed for the Group. The statement by the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities relating to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 115 to 116. During the
year under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s
external auditor amount to approximately HK$33 million (2012:
approximately HK$22 million); fees related to non-audit services
paid and payable amount to approximately HK$6 million (2012:
approximately HK$1 million).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The interests held by the directors in the Company’s securities
as at 31 December 2013 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report
on pages 96 to 100 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005,
the Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Code of Ethics has been amended, approved and reconfirmed
by the Board of directors of the Company on 6 April 2006, 4
April 2007, 31 March 2008 and further revised on 31 March
2009 and 18 November 2010, respectively. The prohibitions on
securities dealing and disclosure requirements in the Code of
Ethics also apply to specified individuals who include the Group’s
senior management and persons who are privy to price sensitive
information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry with the directors, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Internal Control

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and
maintain sound systems in risk management, internal control and
governance to ensure the effective and efficient accomplishment
of corporate goals and objectives, safeguard the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the reliability of
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financial and corporate reporting. The Board confirms that
it is the overall responsibility of the Board to establish and
effectively implement the internal control system to ensure the
smooth operation of business, safeguard he Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the reliability of financial
statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the
frameworks recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission in the United States
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as the
standards in establishing risk management and control systems
among our Group companies. The Group’s internal control system
includes five key elements, namely the existence of an effective
control environment, risk management, communication and
information system, cost effective control activities and monitoring
mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks
and impact on the respective business unit at least once every
year. The executive management team of each business unit is
accountable for the conduct and performance of each operation
in the business unit within the agreed strategies and similarly the
management of each operation is accountable for its conduct
and performance. Policies and procedures are designed for
safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining proper accounting
records and ensuring transactions are executed in accordance
with management authorisation. Monthly management reports on
the financial results and key operation indicators are reviewed by
the Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings are held
with the executive management team of each business unit to
review the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit and Supervision Department, reporting to
the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Board respectively,
is responsible for assessing the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, formulating an impartial opinion on the
effectiveness and efficiency of the systems, and reporting its
findings to the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee.
Follow-up audits will be conducted in due course to ensure that
audit recommendations are being properly implemented. The
Internal Audit and Supervision Department conducts independent
reviews on the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an on-going basis.

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of
individual business units, the scope of work performed by the
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internal audit function covers all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit
Committee at least once every quarter and the corrective actions
are taken by the relevant business units. The Board conducts
regular reviews of the Group’s internal control system through
the Internal Audit and Supervision Department and the Audit
Committee.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the Group’s
assets are safeguarded and there is no significant area of concerns
that may affect shareholders.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at general meetings

In accordance with Section 566 of the new Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“New CQ”), the directors
are required to call a general meeting if the Company has received
requests to do so from members of the Company representing
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a
right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state the
general nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and
may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting. Such requests may
sent be sent to the Company in hard copy form (by depositing
at the registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Board) or in electronic form (by email: ir@cre.com.hk); and must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it. In accordance
with Section 567 of the New CO, the directors must call a meeting
within 21 days after the date on which they become subject to the
requirement under Section 566 of the New CO and such meeting
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the
notice convening the meeting.

Besides, Section 615 of the New CO provides that the Company
must give notice of a resolution if it has received requests that it
do so from (a) the members of the Company representing at least
2.5% of the total voting rights of all the members who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 members who have a right to
vote on the resolution at the annual general meeting to which the
requests relate. Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company
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in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by
email: ir@cre.com.hk); (b) must identify the resolution of which
notice is to be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or
persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not
later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given
of that meeting. Section 616 of the New CO provides that the
Company that is required under Section 615 of the New CO to
give notice of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the annual general meeting (a) in the same manner as the
notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as
reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

Procedure for shareholders to propose a person for
election as director

Pursuant to Articles 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors, be appointed a
director at a general meeting unless at least seven days’ previous
notice in writing (to be lodged no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election
and no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting)
shall have been given to the Company of the intention of any
member qualified to vote at the meeting to propose any person
other than a retiring director for election to the office of director
with notice executed by that person of his willingness to be
appointed.

Not less than three nor more than twenty-eight days before the
date appointed for holding a general meeting notice shall be
given to all who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting of
any person in respect of whom notice has been duly given to the
Company under Article 112.1 of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The aforesaid procedures is available on the website of the
Company.

Investor Relations

The Company’s Articles of Association was revised on 29 May
2009 by special resolution in the 2009 Annual General Meeting in
order to ensure compliance with amendments to the Listing Rules,



%3k 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

EHRAM ST OME s EEERTAZE
BRERRARIGRDIZER] - REABEREA
AE =Rl B BRITEN 2

RRBBRANEEGBMANEE - EHIHE
BERER - KAt fEL BB RE -
PR AG R EREQTFRBERIKE - T
HAKE KL BRITEDL A -

ARBDELRRBBERE - WO BZBR
EERARRR A, - AHER -

REBEAQNR LAWK E - ERARKEEN
MEIEME  HREFSEEMNDE ZEEE
BREEMENREERERN  BAREE
BERREATENSHZEE -

ARBWBER - BEE BRHRARBHEK
57 - WA AR RNBLESERE
FERTHROER o E AL T ML P
BERETA  AIBHARBNREAWMER
HY -

BRAERAEESHELERARKERT
BRLERAUERANRAIREERER - B
HWEMIT ¢

ERHAEAERAF
REERERED
BE

EE265

K E3912

EBH : ir@cre.com.hk
FERE  852-2829 9889

B R 2 N RE R A
B BPERERY °

ACENNS]

AEEGW
R EA
]

7E —T-NOF=A-+H

{EEEIR4E Corporate Governance Report

in particular, relevant CG Code provisions in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules and amendments to the Companies Ordinance, and
to bring the Articles of Association up to date and in line with the
current practice in Hong Kong.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and fair disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for
shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and
performance of the Group.

The Company has established a Shareholder’s Communication
Policy and the said policy is available on the website of the
Company.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Investor
Relations Department is responsible for managing investor
relations and will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts’
enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on
the Company’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such
information can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon
written request.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company. The contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Resources Enterprise, Limited
39th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: ir@cre.com.hk

Tel No.: 852-2829 9889

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food and beverage
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and property investment. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are shown on pages 184 to 189. An
analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

Group Profit

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 117
and shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK$0.13 per ordinary share amounting to
HK$313 million was paid to shareholders during the year.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.14 per
ordinary share amounting to approximately HK$337 million to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 6 June 2014. The final dividend, if approved, is
to be payable in cash, with an option to receive new and fully paid
shares in lieu of cash (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”). Subject to
the approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, a circular containing details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme
together with the relevant election form will be sent to shareholders
on or around 13 June 2014. The Scrip Dividend Scheme is
conditional upon the granting by the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) of the
listing of and permission to deal in the new shares to be issued
under the Scrip Dividend Scheme. It is expected that the dividend
warrants and the share certificates for the Scrip Dividend Scheme
will be sent to shareholders on or around 10 July 2014 to all
persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 6 June 2014.

Fixed Assets

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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Properties

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on
pages 190 to 193.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note
29 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 30 to the financial statements respectively.

Charitable Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$8 million.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman)

Mr. Hong Jie (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Liu Hongji (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Du Wenmin

Mr. Wei Bin

Mr. Yan Biao

Mr. Huang Daoguo

Mr. Chen Ying

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric,
Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu
Kwing Chue, Gordon shall retire by rotation and are eligible for
re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set
out on pages 52 to 61.

Share Option Scheme

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication
to the objectives of the Company by the participants (“Scheme”).
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on 20
August 2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders,
and expired on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible participants including any
executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), any discretionary object of a
discretionary trust established by any employee, executive or non-
executive directors of the Group, any executives and employees,
consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or
persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associated companies of
the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and substantial
shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder and where a substantial shareholder is a company,
employees of subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, the exercise
price shall be such price determined by the board of directors at its
absolute discretion and shall be no less than the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
proceeding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a
share on the date of grant. The maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Scheme (including options to be granted
to the directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or any of their respective associates) is equivalent to
the maximum limit permitted under the Listing Rules. The scheme
mandate limit under the Scheme was refreshed and renewed by an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 20 August 2004 which enabled the grant
of further share options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares
representing 10% of the shares in issue as at the said date. As
at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 2,026,000 shares which represent
0.08% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately
after the date of grant.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted
(or granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme during the year
in relation to each of the directors or their respective associates,
employees, and other participants of the Scheme.

(a) Directors or their associates
As at 31 December 2013 and during the year, the following
directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for
shares granted under the Scheme. Share options held by
directors granted under the Scheme are set out below:

HiTES Executive Director
A Hong Jie 25/05/2004

BUFHTES  Independent
Non-Executive Director
LiKa Cheung, Eric 02/06/2004

Total

e~
S
s

ol

9.15 290,000 = = = - 290,000 =
9.55 200,000 - 200,000 = = - 25350
490,000 - 200,000 = - 290,000
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

(2)EE (b) Employees

METEIENITESIN RARZFA Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the
Company are employees of the Group and details of share
options held by them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above.
Summary of share options granted to employees of the
Group (other than directors of the Company) under the
Scheme are set out below:

EEZHR/AEEZRE  RERBAZ
BREABE N EX(F)BRKRE - A
TRAEERE (TEEARRAESR)
RIBFZAT B &R M B AR BR

14/04/2003 6.29 4,000 - 4,000 - - - 25.800
08/10/2003 8.90 2,000 - 2,000 - - - 22.450
14/01/2004 9.72 639,000 - 394,000 - - 245,000 26.063
20/04/2004 9.89 390,000 - 390,000 - - - 25.455
25/05/2004 9.15 112,000 - 34,000 = - 78,000 25.074
04/10/2004 1035 2,566,000 - 830,000 = - 1,736,000 26.912
&t Total 3,713,000 - 1,654,000 - - 2,059,000
B 5 Notes:

—

2.

o ASIZRERETTE B R B RBE T during the year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on Eo?
B W rT (8 2 ke E ¥ 81 o the Stock Exchange immediately before the date of exercise of options. B

)

= F.>
OB FEREMEMNNS S REFENTB The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in g ]
BAEHEE—FR o note 2Q to the financial statements. e %”g

(]

3. FXETE R RS BRI A% 3. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date §
wHEZAEY MErETEREIREA falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is 2
MY T o HK$1.00.

4. MR EEEETERLERE NI EERKY 4. As no share options were granted during the year under review, no price
TEA - disclosure is applicable.

5. R — AN 2 R PR NN ERERE S Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a period

MBS B BT R 2 AR RIRRRD

RENBITEBBRERMRE 2 ARRKNE

BREANFLHBRART  URERXHZA
R EBE T FRTTE -

Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share options.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised

of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant and
exercisable within a period of not more than 10 years immediately after
the date of grant.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
SFO, including interests and short positions which the directors
and chief executive of the Company are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of SFO, or which are required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to section
352 of SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(a) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
shares of the Company

BREA oy
Chen Lang Long position
AR iE
Hong Jie Long position
by g A
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
xR )
Du Wenmin Long position
) e
Yan Biao Long position
FRE )
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position
RER A

Bernard Charnwut Chan Long position

BT

1. ¥ EX [BERGERT &) | —fi sl B R B A A
BEMARRREBRD - ZEERESBRIE
ETAEDZREBRATETA -

=

2. BARRARN MAABEROTOFREEBERR
AR-ZE-—=F+_"A=+—HEBITERLE
HEBESLL

3. EXMEBE GRS EEUABRSEAEA LY
NHEA -

500,000 = 0.02
350,000 290,000 0.03
110,000 = 0.01
100,000 = 0.01
500,000 = 0.02
200,000 = 0.01
40,000 = 0.01
Notes:
1. This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by share

options granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, such options being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2013.

3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
shares of associated corporations

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the
issued ordinary shares and underlying shares covered
by options granted under the share option schemes of
associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO), such
options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives:

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of
an associated corporation, China Resources Land
Limited (“CR Land”):

Rtk Sy}

Lai Ni Hium, Frank

Long position

HXE e

Du Wenmin Long position
i e

Yan Biao Long position
RE e

Chen Ying Long position
5T

1.

ARSI R B AT S R B AR A
DB -

BFR TS RMERERG RAERGEH
HEHEMNR =T —=F+=-A=1+—HE#
TRANBHEHE DL -

EXFBBE R MASEETUNERRRETA
ZHINEE -

Notes:

10,000 = = = 0.01
640,000 = = = 0.01
1,992,000 = = = 0.03
500,000 = = = 0.01

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Land covered by the share options.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR
Land as at 31 December 2013.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
shares of associated corporations (continued)

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of an
associated corporation, China Resources Gas Group
Limited (“CR Gas”):

g8 e

Liu Hongji Long position

Rak e

Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

¢ e

Du Wenmin Long position
MEE

—

B AR B B HE B A PSR B A SRR R A%
DEEE -

2. BIFA TS RERRERG RABERGEH
HEIRER =T —=F+=-A=1+—HE%#
TRABENES L -

3. EXAEBEzEGEARSERAEREEAA
ZEINEE -

372,000 = = = 0.02
10,000 = = = 0.01
54,000 = = = 0.01
Notes:
1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of

CR Gas covered by the share options.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued share capital of CR
Gas as at 31 December 2013.

3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying

shares of associated corporations (continued)

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of an
associated corporation, China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (“CR Power”):

it He - 152,700° 4641 18/11/20082 0.01
Chen Lang Long position 203,600° 6.925  05/09/2006°

A e 5,000 - - - 0.01
Hong Jie Long position

AR e 61,080 - - 0.01
Liu Hongji Long position

Wnk e 10,000 - - - 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

HXE 37 480,240 - - - 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position

R e 570,080 - - - 0.01
Yan Biao Long position

B3 Notes:

—

o
o

2. BRES>AHRE  8fEs 2+ TAEE 2. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the §
HHBAREBFES  REEARE—AFR date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. 8 b
i 2NEREER_Z—RF+—A+NAR All options expire on 18 November 2015. Consideration for each of the gw
B o b EAEENREREEIT - grants mentioned above is HK$1.00. g ]l’\j”g

(]

3. BRE > APRLY §8HE 2=+ ATEKE 3 Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the §
HEBAEEBFRS  REEBHT—BER date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. 8
o 2HEREKR T "FLARBE All options expire on 5 September 2016. Consideration for each of the
e FIEREENRERBE 1T - grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

4. AP RNERENRD LABRMDEE 4. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
HEHENR=ZE—=F+=A=+—B2E and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of CR
BITRABHENADLL © Power as at 31 December 2013.

5. BREAZ MR A A H L8 2 356,300k 1EFE 5. Mr. Chen Lang was deemed to be interested in 356,300 underlying
[ fn z few o shares through interests of his spouse.

6. RIS S BRIEEI - EXFEBEZAAEE 6. Save as otherwise specified under note 5, all interests disclosed above

ARSI R B ATS R A EHE AR
DAL -

HRBEEUNERREAZENEE

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Power covered by the share options.

are being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities (continued)

(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying
shares of associated corporations (continued)

(iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options
outstanding under the share option schemes of an
associated corporation, China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (“CR Cement”):

HA A
Hong Jie Long position
e e
Liu Hongji Long position
gtk i
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
RE i
Chen Ying Long position
MEE

—_

AR B B HR B AR A8 I ey B R NORAR RE AR
[GEE

2. BIFR S R OEEERRRD RARRI A 48
HEBKER-_F—=F+-A=+—RHE%
TRALBNBEDLL

3. EXmEBE GRS ERAEREAA
ZH0EE -

500,000 = = - 0.01
922,000 = = = 0.01
40,000 = = = 0.01
230,000 = = = 0.01
Notes:
1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of

CR Cement covered by the share options.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Cement to the total issued share capital of
CR Cement as at 31 December 2013.

3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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BEEEREZHRER Shareholders with Notifiable Interests
RZTE—=FE+_A=+—8 B LXFAE
BEREREARI UM TTATRAEAQATNRK
B RIEERD P EEEBRBE(ESLBEER
1) EXVEBSE = M 28 = 5 BB A1 AR &) 3 52 8k
ERBEARRAFEMNELHMAMOEZRS

As at 31 December 2013, other than the interests and short
positions as disclosed above, the following persons have interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as they fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of SFO or as recorded in the register

e required to be kept by the Company:

FEZEHEAR China Resources National Te 1,232,764,380 51.29
([EBRRA]) Corporation (“CRNC") Long position
(H=ET) (Note 1)

EZHRHBRAR] China Resources Co., Limited & 1,232,764,380 51.29
(M=EB”RH 1) (BT ("CRC") (Note 1) Long position

CRC Bluesky Limited CRC Bluesky Limited HE 1,232,764,380 51.29
(PF3E1) (Note 1) Long position

EH(EE)BRAT China Resources (Holdings) A& 1,232,764,380 51.29

(T#=MmER ) (H:E1) Company Limited (“CRH") Long position
(Note 1)
tEHIREFRAQA] Globe Fame Investments HE 1,232,764,380 51.29
(HisE1) Limited (Note 1) Long position
Commonwealth Bank of ~ Commonwealth Bank of TR 157,360,628 6.55 S
Australia (FfzE2) Australia (Note 2) Long position g
e
e
o)
Genesis Asset Managers, Genesis Asset Managers, HE 144,188,662 6.00 g »
LLP (Bt3E3) LLP (Note 3) Long position 3
=]
o
(o]

Notes:

=
M

HEREERARCEBAENER (BIX)F 1.
RAR)AZEBREENZENBRARNESRESR
AZ S EERY - 2 H%E ACRC Bluesky
Limited 8 & & i & A 7] + M CRC Bluesky

Globe Fame Investments Limited (currently known as CRH (Enterprise)
Limited), a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, held the shares in the
capacity of beneficial owner. CRH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC
Bluesky Limited, which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC,
Limited BE RO EME AT - mE B which is in turn held as to 100% by CRNC. So, CRH, CRC Bluesky
MAIREFEATIFEE100%EZS o Bty - = Limited, CRC and CRNC are deemed to have corporate interest in the
JHEE - CRC Bluesky Limited + ZEM 1 &3 shares.

BRRAEARRNRMIES DR

—_
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Shareholders with Notifiable Interests (continued)
Notes: (continued)

2. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of SFO, other than the following corporation which was
held by Commonwealth Bank of Australia in the manner described below,
these shares were held by corporations controlled directly or indirectly as
to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

Colonial First State Investments Limited

3. Genesis Asset Managers, LLPLAIR & &8 & 1)
BERD -

ERRR2EHEBITEE

RIEETER MR EHEEBEEEAR
NARD35%BE EITRASEFEIERLAR
AE—HRARRZEN(THEEXERE
WEBAREEFREEBAER) RZ_T—=
F+-_A=Z+—8 AEREREREBETLLE
Tz BERABEBEAEBE118.0BIT  ZE5E
REENR - E—NF—AE2-_F—XFHA
fE R o

BR 5 14 R B =t &

ARAFN-_B—=%F=A-_+—HEH—E
PRI SEEN AT E] o RIE EMARAE17E - R
Bl SR TR B —EERETEE A
AATH—HREE o RHIERETEE
EXRGREBASBESNEE  RILEE
I A EERBERERE REFHEIME
8 UBEINARRNRAEERZAKS
REEESERZ -

AR RER I R EIK L —IBE
o MPRBEREBRBETERIACDE
RIERZFEA - RIBERFIELERFE - 5T
AAIEAARRBTRHENRESRAFRTS
BERD - XEAEZTEARBAHAE
BESABERNZESBESTEARA
ERDETRMNNES% o RIEFEZTE - AQA
ANREBREZABHERTTABER
¥ B A RE) AR P £ M UREE o (E{A 28R
%ﬁﬁAﬂ%%%%%$%%ﬁﬁﬁEﬁ%
Rl o

50%

3. Genesis Asset Managers, LLP held the shares in the capacity of
investment manager.

Specific Performance Obligations on Controlling
Shareholder

According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain
as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the issued share capital of
the Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether
directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at
31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of the facilities subject
to such obligation were HK$11.8 billion. Such facilities will expire
from January 2014 to May 2016.

Restricted Incentive Award Scheme

The Company adopted a restricted incentive award scheme on
21 March 2013. The restricted incentive award scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company. The
purpose of the restricted incentive award scheme is to: recognize
and motivate the contribution of the Group’s employees; provide
incentives and help the Group in retaining its existing employees
and recruiting additional employees; and provide them with a
direct economic interest in attaining the long-term business
objectives of the Company.

A trust has been set up under the restricted incentive award
scheme and BOCI Prudential Trustee Limited has been appointed
as the trustee. Pursuant to the restricted incentive award scheme,
the trustee may purchase shares from the public market out of
cash contributed by the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which the trustee may purchase during the term
of the scheme out of the funds contributed by the Group is 5% of
the total number of issued share of the Company from time to time.
According to the scheme, the Company can utilize the proceeds
generated from the disposal of the shares purchased and held by
the trustee for awards made under the scheme. Grantees of any
award under the scheme do not have any right to the Shares.
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Restricted Incentive Award Scheme (continued)

Unless otherwise sooner terminated as determined by the Board,
the restricted incentive award scheme will be effective for an initial
term of three years from the date of its adoption.

During the year, the Company has paid to the trustee
HK$450,308,000 for purchase of the Shares and 18,852,000
shares were purchased by the trustee with such sum. The
trustee has during the year not disposed of any shares. As at 31
December 2013, the trustee held 18,852,000 shares and cash of
approximately HK$2,488,000 on trust under the scheme.

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules. These transactions are
also regarded as “Related Party Transactions” under applicable
accounting principles, which are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements and with respect to which the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those continuing connected
transactions which are subject to the reporting requirements under
Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are summarised as follows:

(a) Facilities management agreement and godown
management agreement
On 28 June 2012, China Resources Logistics (Yuen Fat
Wharf & Godown) Limited (“Yuen Fat”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, renewed facilities management
agreements with CRH, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of management services by Yuen
Fat on the port premises and facilities developed on a site
owned by CRH in Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat
had paid CRH a monthly fee of HK$0.77 million from 1 July
2012 in consideration for the right to keep, as the service
fee payable by CRH to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all
cargo handling fees, service charges and other payments
collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from independent
third parties. The agreement was for a term of 3 years
commencing on 1 July 2012.

On 28 June 2012, Yuen Fat renewed godown management
agreement with Dragon Rider Development Limited
(“DRDL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, for the
management, by Yuen Fat, of a godown owned by DRDL
in Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had paid
DRDL a monthly fee of HK$2.2 million from 1 July 2012 in
consideration for the right to keep, as the service fee payable
by DRDL to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all license
fees and other payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own
expenses from independent third parties. This agreement
has the same term as the above facilities management
agreement. The above facilities management agreement and
godown management agreement are vital to the operation of
Yuen Fat.

9oUBUIBAOY) 81eI0dI0D)
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(@)

(b)

Facilities management agreement and godown
management agreement (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
receipt of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen
Fat amounted to HK$163,515,000 while the aggregate
payment of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL
amounted to HK$35,640,000.

Tenancy agreement

On 21 December 2012, a framework agreement was entered
into by the Company and CRH with a term commencing
from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 pursuant to
which the Group may lease various premises from CRH
and its subsidiaries or associates. According to framework
agreement, CRH and its subsidiaries or associates may also
lease various premises from the Group. It was agreed, inter
alia, that any tenancy agreements to be entered into by CRH
and its subsidiaries or associates (no matter as landlord or
tenant) and a member of the Group (no matter as landlord
or tenant) should be on normal commercial terms. Each
transaction should be either conducted at market price or
at such other prices as the parties may agree fairly and
reasonably in the circumstances as if they were independent
third party. In addition, each transaction to be entered into
will be documented in a separate written agreement with
a duration not exceeding twenty years for premises mainly
used for retail or its incidental purposes. For premises not
used for retail or its incidental purposes, the duration of the
written agreement should not exceed three years. As CRH
is the intermediate holding company of the Company, CRH
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the framework
agreement will enable the Group to secure a supply of the
premises for its business as well as enable the Group to
better utilize its existing resources to generate revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
amount of the rent, management fees and other related
charges payable by the Group to CRH and its subsidiaries or
associates was HK$96,243,000 and the aggregate amount
of the rent, management fees and other related charges
payable by CRH and its subsidiaries or associates to the
Group was HK$2,460,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

()

Decoration agreement

On 19 November 2010, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new contracts
for the design, decoration and furnishing of the Group’s
offices, retail outlets and investment properties under the
framework terms with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”), a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC, and its subsidiaries
(“Uconia Group”) for the three years ending 31 December
2013. According to the framework terms, each provision
of decoration services by the Uconia Group to members
of the Group would be documented in a separate written
agreement with duration not exceeding three years and
each contract of decoration services would be entered
into on normal commercial terms and the prices would be
either at market prices or at prices no less favorable to the
Group than those available from independent third parties.
The granting of contracts to Uconia Group for the design,
decoration and furnishing of the retail outlets, supermarkets
and offices are in the usual and ordinary course of business
of the Group. As CRNC is the ultimate holding company of
the Company, CRNC is a connected person of the Company
and Uconia Group is an associate of CRNC under the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
amount charged by the Uconia Group totaled
HK$9,699,000.

The aforesaid agreement has been renewed by a new
framework agreement dated 13 December 2013 for a period
commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016
as announced by the Company on 13 December 2013 on
substantially the same terms as the existing framework
terms. The proposed annual caps for the decoration services
by the Uconia Group for each of the three years ending 31
December 2016 is HK$100,000,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(d)

(e)

Construction agreement

On 21 December 2012, a framework agreement
(“Framework Agreement”) was entered into by the Company
and FEHZEEAR A F)(China Resources Construction
Corp.) (“CR Construction”) with a term commencing from
1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015. It was agreed,
inter alia, that any construction, incidental design and
construction management services to be provided by CR
Construction and its subsidiaries (“CR Construction Group”)
or its associates to a member of the Group should be on
normal commercial terms. Each transaction should be either
conducted at market price or at such other prices as the
parties may agree fairly and reasonably in the circumstances
as if they were independent third party. As CR Construction
is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRNC which in turn
is the ultimate holding company of the Company, CR
Construction is an associate of a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement will enable
the Group to have a sizeable construction service provider.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no
charges of provision of construction, incidental design
and construction management services provided by CR
Construction Group and its associates to the Group.

Finance related arrangements pursuant to
Master Lending Agreements and Strategic
Cooperation Agreement

On 22 November 2010, the Company issued an
announcement in connection with, among others, (i) the
proposal to provide greater flexibility in intra-group lending
between members of the group of CRC, CRH and their
respective subsidiary companies; and (ii) the provision of
general banking services including deposits services by
Zhuhai Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. (now known as China
Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd., “CR Bank”) to the
Company, CR Land, CR Power, CR Cement, CR Gas
(collectively “China Resources Group Listed Companies”)
and China Resources Microelectronics Limited and their
subsidiaries.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(e)

EEEFARLA" =g ERANT
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd.* " CRC CRNC
EREFARAA R ERANT
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd.* " CRC CRNC
EEEFARLA" ZERA ERONT
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd.** CRC CRNC
EHERERAA" =50 ERENT
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd.** CRC CRNC
EEEFARAT =0 EEGLT
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd" " CRC CRNC
FHERRRAA ZREM(LR)  BHERLT
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd." ! ERERDNE  KeenMind

Limited

Finance related arrangements pursuant to
Master Lending Agreements and Strategic
Cooperation Agreement (continued)

With respect to the intra-group lending arrangement, on
22 December 2010, the resolution to approve the master
lending agreements (“Master Lending Agreement”) and the
related annual caps were approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting. The term
of the Master Lending Agreement is three years ending 31
December 2013. The Master Lending Agreement constitutes
a non-exempt continuing connected transaction under
the Listing Rules and are subject to annual review by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company and
the auditors of the Company. Information on all the above-
mentioned lending made by the Group during the year ended
or remained outstanding as at 31 December 2013 were as
follows:

- AR 500,000,000 10/8/2012- 5.04% =
RVB 10/2/2013

- ARE 500,000,000  5/2/2013- 5.04% =
RVB 9/5/2013

- AR 500,000,000 10/5/2013 - 5.04% =
RVB 91712013

- AR 400,000,000  9/7/2013- 5.04% =
RVB 29/9/2013

- AR 100,000,000 10/7/2013- 5.04% =
RVB 29/9/2013

ERRG AR 500,000,000 12/4/2013 - 5.04% =

CRC RVB 11/10/2013
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BERXS (&) Connected Transactions (continued)

(e) EREFEHBEREMKSIERZE () Finance related arrangements pursuant to
Zb BT HE(E) Master Lending Agreements and Strategic
Cooperation Agreement (continued)

ERERER(RE)HRAT" 30 £S5 O - ARE 700000000 1842013 5.04% =
CRC CRNC RIB 18/10/2013

SRR (RE)ERA" £330 ERANT - ARE 700000000 144012013 5.04% -
CRO CRNC RVB 14129013

EESRE(E)BRAA" E30) EEANT - ARE 700000000 121202013 5.04% ARE 700,000,000
CRO CRNC RVB 12/6/2014 RIB

ERSRER(RE)FRAT £8R0 £ OG - AEE 1000000000 20112013 5.04% -
CRC CRNC RIB 21202013

EEERE(E)ARAA B30 £H807 - ARE 1000000000 2422013 5.04% AR 1,000,000,000
CRC CRNC RIB 20612014 RIB

EERE(RE)RERRAAY £330 ERANT - ARE 100000000 15802012 5.04% =
CRO CRNC RVB 15212013

EFRE(RE)RERRLA" E30) EEANT - ARE 100000000 502013 5.04% -
CRO CRNC RIB 5/5/2013

EERE(RE)RERRAAY &30 EBA07 - ARE 100,000,000 9500013 5.04% =
CRC CRNC RIB 971013

EERERAMA AN RAR B30 B - ARE 200000000 16/4/2013- 5.04% -

China Resourcss C'esthon Food & CRC CRNG RMB 1610/2013

Beverage (Shenzhen) Co,, Lid™

ERREREAHIVBRAR ERRN ERglT - ARE 200000000 16/10/2013- 5.04% ARE 200000000
China Resources C'estbon Food & CRC CRNG RVB 16/4/2014 RVB
Beverage (Shenzhen) Co,, Lid*

EERERRAH (R ERAT 34 ERgT - ABE 200,000,000 90812013 5.04% =
China Resources C'esthon Food & CRC CRNG RVB 911/2013
Beverage (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd*



3R 2013 ANNUAL REPORT EEZIRE Report of the Directors

BERXS (&) Connected Transactions (continued)

(e) ENEBRAHEREMKSIEHE (e) Finance related arrangements pursuant to
Zb BT (E) Master Lending Agreements and Strategic
Cooperation Agreement (continued)

ERRERRSE (R ERAT E30) EEANT = ARE 200000000 11/11/2013- 5.04% ARE 200,000,000
China Resources C'estbon Food & CRC CRNC RMB 11/6/2014 RMB
Beverage (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd"™
L EEEH CRH (Land) Limted ~ £F%E AET 800000000 124012012 2.85% -
the Company CR Land ('CRHL) CRH HKS 522013
K7 EEEY CRHL £EER AT 300,000,000 TH12012- 2.85% =
the Company OR Land CRH HKS 8/2/2013
KA EEEH CRHL EEEE BT 720000000 141272010 285% -
the Company CR Land CRH HKS 6/2/2013
KR EHEN CRHL EEEE 1100000000 141202012 281% -
the Company (R Land ORH US$ 1172013
L] 2REH CRHL £pLR AET 900,000,000 20112013 1.79% -
the Company CR Land CRH HK$ 20812013
YN EEEY CRHL 314 A&7 700,000,000 18/8/2013- 1.79% =
the Company CRLand CRH HKS 23/8/2013
KRR #HEN CRHL £pER 183,000,000 16/8/2013- 191% -
the Company CR Land CRH Uss 16/12/2013 S
kel
o
KRR EEEN CRHL EEEE AETT 1,000000,000 18/9/2013- 2.04% - = ;&
the Company CRLand ORH HKS 13122013 é’ ]1”5
> I
1 KRARRABE ARG LT EEEHHTE AR 1 a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland for 8
retail business
*2 N AR AR B b AT 42 8 RS AT B A A *2 a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland for
beer business
*3 AARRFBEAALERHEEHIE AR *3 a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland for
food business
*4 AN T AT B R LS LB L SR A ) 4 a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the Chinese Mainland for

beverage business
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(e)

Finance related arrangements pursuant to
Master Lending Agreements and Strategic
Cooperation Agreement (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
amount of interest received by the Group under the Master
Lending Agreement totaled HK$120,086,000.

With respect to the provision of general banking services
by CR Bank, pursuant to the strategic cooperation
agreement entered into by, among others, CR Bank, the
China Resources Group Listed Companies and China
Resources Microelectronics Limited (“Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”), any deposit made with CR Bank under the
Strategic Cooperation Agreement will bear the same interest
and be on the same terms and conditions as would apply
to a similar deposit made by any other customer of the
bank, which rates are in accordance with the applicable
requirements of the People’s Bank of China from time to
time. Under the Strategic Cooperation Agreement, the
maximum exposure of outstanding deposits and interest
paid and anticipated to be paid in relation to the Group’s
deposits with CR Bank is RMB2,580,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the maximum
daily aggregate amount of outstanding deposits placed by
the Group with CR Bank totaled HK$3,202,336,000, and
the aggregate interest income arising from such deposits
was HK$17,313,000, which in aggregate represents
approximately 15% of the total cash and bank balances of
the Group as at 31 December 2013.

The Master Lending Agreement and the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement have been renewed respectively
by the Framework Loan Agreements 2013 and the
Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 as announced
by the Company on 20 December 2013. The Framework
Loan Agreements 2013 were for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016
and the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 were for a
term of two years commencing from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2015.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(e)

Finance related arrangements pursuant to
Master Lending Agreements and Strategic
Cooperation Agreement (continued)

The proposed annual lending cap for the Group on any
single day for the term of the Framework Loan Agreements
2013 is HK$3,000,000,000. The proposed maximum daily
deposit amount, inclusive of interest payable rounded to
the nearest million, placed by the Group with CR Bank for
the term of the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 is
HK$3,000,000,000. The proposed maximum daily amount of
financial services and products provided by CR Bank and CR
Trust respectively to the Group (excluding deposit services
and financial services provided by CR Bank and CR Trust
where only the fees and commissions paid by the Group
are used to calculate the relevant percentage ratios) for the
term of the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 are
both HK$3,000,000,000. It is expected that the aggregate
annual amount of fees and commissions paid by the Group
for the financial services provided by CR Bank and CR Trust
respectively during the term of the Strategic Cooperation
Agreements 2013 will not exceed 0.1% of the percentage
ratios, other than the profits ratio, of the Listing Rules, and
these arrangements will constitute de minimis transactions
under the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(f)

Supply Framework Agreement

On 21 March 2013, a supply framework agreement
(“Supply Framework Agreement”) was entered into by
China Resources C’estbon Food & Beverage (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“CR Beverage Shenzhen”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, with China Resources
Packaging Materials Co., Ltd (“ CR Packaging”) and Zhuhai
China Resources Packaging Materials Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
CR Packaging”), indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
CRH, with a term commencing from 21 March 2013 to
31 December 2015 pursuant to which CR Packaging and
Zhuhai CR Packaging agreed to supply from time to time
the packaging materials that are required for the production
of beverage containers and bottles to CR Beverage
Shenzhen. The transactions shall be conducted on normal
commercial terms which are no less favourable than those
terms regarding packaging materials of similar specifications
and quality provided or quoted by independent third party
suppliers to CR Beverage Shenzhen. It is estimated that the
maximum amount of purchases to be made by CR Beverage
Shenzhen under the Supply Framework Agreement will not
exceed RMB1,070,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,334,720,000), RMB1,600,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,008,310,000) and RMB2,300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,869,000,000)
respectively for the three years ending 31 December 2013,
2014 and 2015. As CR Packaging and Zhuhai CR Packaging
are both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of CRH
which in turn is the intermediate holding company of the
Company, CR Packaging and Zhuhai CR Packaging are both
associates of a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate
amount of purchases made by CR Beverage Shenzhen under
the Supply Framework Agreement was RMB671,401,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$844,383,000).
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain work on
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has provided
a letter to the directors of the Company and confirmed that, for the
year ended 31 December 2013, the above continuing connected
transactions:

(@)  had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

(b)  involving the provision of services by the Group had been
entered into in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company;

() had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(d)  had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

9oUBUIBAOY) 81eI0dI0D)
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Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as
at 31 December 2013 are set out on pages 184 to 189.

Transactions in Securities of the Company
and Subsidiaries

Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by
the Company are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above under “Restricted Incentive Award
Scheme”, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company'’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the Group’s total value of
purchases and total turnover.

Auditors

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2012, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the auditor
of the Company and Messrs. PricewaterwaterhouseCoopers was
appointed as the new auditor of the Company.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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To the shareholders of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to
189, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s balance
sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated profit
and loss account, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014
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HE-_T—=F+=-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

[ Turnover 6 146,413 126,236
SHE R A Cost of sales (109,040) (95,835)
EF Gross profit 37,373 30,401
HAb U A Other income 7 2,647 4,459
HERDHE A Selling and distribution expenses (27,566) (21,891)
—MRERITHER General and administrative
expenses (7,131) (6,003)
Ui Finance costs 8 (304) (361)
FE(RE & AR B F R Share of net results of associates 27 48
R 5 A A Profit before taxation 5,046 6,653
B Taxation 13 (1,894) (1,631)
IRFFE S F Profit for the year 9 3,152 5,022
DR : Attributable to:
FN/NGT 3 Shareholders of the Company 1,908 3,945
FEE IR R Non-controlling interests 1,244 1,077
3,152 5,022
BREF Earnings per share 15
- PIN Basic HK$0.79 HK$1.64
e Diluted HK$0.79 HK$1.64

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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Consolidated Statement 7f CW&WU? Incewme

HEZT—=F+=A=+—HI%FE For the year ended 31 December 2013

AN F R A
Hit2mks (BA)

BRAESEEZRE2EE ¢
BIEBZERER
AERERABEAR
TESRTARARBEHAR
ENERE

—AHEHRBRR,HERA
MEH ERER

TUESEERHZER
MEREGLES

YR E RSN
REFEEMEE W (BRBR)
FEEZEWEAR
DER

RRRPR
FERE IR A A

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/
(expenses):
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations
Fair value adjustment on available for
sale investments
Fair value adjustment on
derivative financial instruments
Reclassification adjustments:
— release of exchange differences
upon disposal of subsidiaries/
associates

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Surplus on revaluation of properties

Income tax relating to surplus on
revaluation of properties

Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
BEEHEBR BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
3,152 5,022
1,435 8

21 7

- 8

(13) (6)

1,443 12
1,881 132
(150) (64)
1,731 68
3,174 80
6,326 5,102
4,615 4,022
1,711 1,080
6,326 5,102
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FRBEE
REER
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s
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RD R RREGER

FEIEHI R R
Mg

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties
— Interests in leasehold land held
for own use under operating
leases
— Other property, plant and
equipment
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Interests in associates
Available for sale investments
Prepayments
Deferred taxation assets

Current assets

Stocks

Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Short term loans
Taxation payable

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long term loans

Deferred taxation liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

BREA Chen Lang
E % Director

B aE

Notes

16

25
26A

26B
27
28

29
30

#REBEAER Consolidated Balance Shest

—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
BEBEER BEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
15,952 12,735
8,492 6,266
44,673 37,970
19,428 14,948
562 295
388 389
142 128
876 2,258
1,540 992
92,053 75,981
25,021 21,242
16,428 138,744
251 125
336 391
21,200 16,005
63,236 51,507
(69,178) (53,104)
(3,357) (4,374)
(1,155) (706)
(73,690) (58,184)
(10,454) (6,677)
81,599 69,304
(19,346) (13,352)
(1,831) (1,499)
(811) (669)
(21,988) (15,520)
59,611 53,784
2,403 2,401
41,670 38,341
44,073 40,742
15,538 13,042
59,611 53,784

54 Lai Ni Hium, Frank

EZ Director

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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(E IV T
Balance Sheet

RZZE—=F+=-FA=+—H At 31 December 2013

—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
Lz BEHEBR B EETT
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
FREBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets
—REME — Investment properties 16 66 66
—EfhE MR — Other property, plant and
Bigi] equipment 16 8 8
SN e Interests in subsidiaries 18 26,797 24,960
26,871 25,034
REBEE Current assets
& 5 N H th fE W gaaE Trade and other receivables 24 1,398 4,034
AR B I8 Taxation recoverable 4 _
Be RIRITER Cash and bank balances 5,446 1,731
6,848 5,765
REEE Current liabilities
B 5 REMERNRIE Trade and other payables 25 (6,722) (5,270)
FERT I8 Taxation payable - 5)
(6,722) (5,275)
REBEEFE Net current assets 126 490
BEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 26,997 25,524
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
FET B A RIFRIA Amount due to subsidiaries 25 (9,069) (7,343)
EEBBEE Deferred taxation liabilities 27 (1) (1)
(9,070) (7,344)
17,927 18,180
BARFHE Capital and reserves
A% A Share capital 29 2,403 2,401
1 Reserves 30 15,524 15,779
17,927 18,180

BREA Chen Lang
% & Director

B4 Lai Ni Hium, Frank

ZZ Director
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BAY AR
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEZT—=F+=A=+—HI%FE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
B 5E BEHEEBTR BEBEET
Notes HK$ million HK$ million
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating
activities
KEFRBZHRE Cash generated from operations 31A 12,827 10,622
B BB ER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (211) (144)
B R B A S A Chinese Mainland income tax paid (1,909) (1,544)
EfEINMEH Overseas profits tax paid - @)
REBERBFER Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 31 7
RIBEPE A TSR Chinese Mainland income tax
refunded 42 -
RETH2HLSRATFE Net cash from operating activities 10,780 8,939
RETBHZHESRE Cash flows from investing
activities
& E T & EMSRIE Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets 394 1,883
HEEREMEHIE Proceeds from disposal of
available for sale investments - 5
HE B A R 2B s Proceeds from disposal of partial
FriS50H interest in subsidiaries 4 =
BB & R R TS 58 Proceeds from disposal of
associates 5 -
HEWB AR, %5 Disposal of subsidiaries/business
(CRBRHEZRE X (net of cash and cash equivalent
HEZE) disposed of) 31B 98 629
S WNE N Dividends received from
associates 36 38
BUWIE LRI ERERE Dividends received from unlisted
available for sale investments 2 1
2 FI B Interest received 527 387
EXBNHE Receipt of government grants 490 595
W ElEF &N RIEENE Repayment of loan to fellow
NEIER subsidiaries 2,466 =
BERT—HERAR Loan to a holding company (1,867) (740)
=6 Gl S /NCTE ] Loan to a fellow subsidiary
{ij=PNE] - (2,455)
BEREEEZ Deposits paid for purchase of
=R fixed assets (655) (1,961)
IWWEEHI B AR Z Deposits paid for acquisition of
SN subsidiaries - ®11)
BABTEEE Purchase of fixed assets (6,440) (6,933)
BAEMEREE Purchase of other intangible
assets (96) (14)
EEUN L NE] Acquisition of associates (13) =
G =INCIE 3 Acquisition of subsidiaries/
CRBRUEEFTTS 2 business (net of cash and cash
BHe&RkBEEEE) equivalents acquired) 31C (4,847) (1,565) .
BERMIRITETZES) Changes in pledged bank 5
deposits 55 (160) 8 o
RETHEAZFRE Net cash used in investing Py
activities (9,841) (10,901) %’ e
[0}
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BAHAE TS E
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HEZT—=F+=A=+—HI%FE For the year ended 31 December 2013

—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
BEEHEBR B EETT
HK$ million HK$ million
METHZ2EERE Cash flows from financing
activities
RS Dividends paid (673) (1,128)
SRR EPNGIE S 2] Dividends paid to non-controlling
AR 2 % B shareholders of subsidiaries (124) (111)
B AR & Interest paid (334) (324)
1T E AR FT S FOEE R Net proceeds from issue of
ordinary shares 18 21
BR1T R E M & E RS KIA Proceeds from bank and
other borrowings 9,405 10,458
FEPE IR R R IR A Contribution from non-controlling
interest 1,520 -
EEBTREMBES Repayment of bank and
other borrowings (4,720) (9,095)
MBS A R Purchase of additional interests in
subsidiaries (650) (87)
B8 5 PR i1 S A 8 M AR 1D Purchase of shares under
restricted incentive award
scheme (451) _
BMETBHEL(FEH)2Z Net cash from/(used in) financing
FRE activities 3,991 (266)
FRHERELEE Net increase/(decrease) in cash
#in, Crd) and cash equivalents 4,930 (2,228)
PR 7 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 265 (23)
R—A—BzH&Rk Cash and cash equivalents at
ReEE 1 January 16,005 18,256
R+=-—BA=+—H2Z Cash and cash equivalents at
ReERBELEE 31 December 21,200 16,005
BeRBSEEEBR DN Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents
B RIBITHET Cash and bank balances 21,200 16,005
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AN E ML B %
Consolidated Statement ojf CW% in Equity

HE—_T—=F+=-_A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

RZE-=F-A-A At 1 January 2013 2,401 12,976 9 1mn 3,609 - 21,485 40,742 13,042 53,784
BAEH ERES Exchange diferences on
trangiating foreign operations - - - - 968 - - 968 467 1435
TERENLBERE Fair vaug adjustment on
avaiable for sale investments - - il - - - - 2 - 2
it Release of exchange dffeences
gt EE2E upon disposal of subsiciares - - , - (13) - . 19 . iE]
it ENERT Release of valuaton reserve upon
Mgt 2 iBsE disposal of subsidiares - - ] . ; . 3 ) ) )
NEEfRE Surpls on revaluation of
propertes - - 1,73 - - - - 1,781 - 1,731
RER ) Proft for he year - - - - 8 T 08 1 3R
KERRENG Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 1,749 - 955 - 1911 4615 1,111 6,326
REEETRN Shares issued at premium 2 16 - - - - - 18 - 18
FeslREaRA Contrbution from
non-controling Interest - - - - - - - - 1,520 1,520
WENBAR Acquistion of subsidiaries or
EENELTES purchase of additonl
Interest in subsiciaries - - - - - - (178) (178) (459) (637)
HERBAAS Disposalof sbsicares or
HEARERRD decrease I shareholdings of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (152) (152)

BERHERB=HMRA  Purchase of shares under

restricted incentive

award scheme - - - - - (451) - (451) - (451)
k& Dividends - - - - - - (673) (673) (124) (797)
2 16 1,749 - 955 (451) 1,060 333 249 5827

WoF-z% At 31 December 2013
+tZA=t-8 2408 12,992 1,848 1 4564 (451) 22,545 4,073 15,538 59,611

jusWIale)S [BlouBUlY
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AR ENE
Consolidated Statement af CW% in Equity

HE-_T—=F+=-A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2013

RZE-25-F-H At 31 January 2012 2,399 12,957 24 172 (@] 3,611 18,680 37,839 12,633 50472
BhER EREE Exchange differences on
translating foreign operations - - - - - 4 = 4 i) 3
fESBIR Fair value acjustment on
MBERE derivative financial instruments - = . - 4 ; ; s ' 8
TEREMAEERE  Fairvalue adiustment on avalable
for sale investments - = 7 - - - _ 7 _ 7
RiHERERE Release of exchange differences
& EX2R upon disposal of subsidiaries = = - - - 4 i, 4 - 4
RiLERERA Release of exchange differences
nEHzEXEE upon disposal of associates = - . - . (10) - (10 _ (10
NEEfRS Surplus on revaluation of
properties = - 68 - - - = 68 = 68
FERER Proft o the year - . . - . , 3,045 3,045 107 502
FER2ENG Total comprehensive income for
the year - - 75 - 4 2 3,945 4,002 1,080 5102
RREEARN Shares issued at premium 2 19 = = - - - 9 - 94
FEEREESRA  Controution from non-controling
Interest - - - - - - 14 14 12 26
HENELRER Purchase of acditional interest in
subsidiaries - - - - - = 26) 26) (61) 67)
WEHELR Acquistion of subsidiaries - - - - - - . . 1 1
HENBAT Disposal of subsiaries - - - - - - - - (512) (512)
ke Diidends - - - - - -8 (g ) (129
2 19 75 - 4 2 2,805 2,903 409 3,312
RZE-2% At 31 December 2012
+-A=1-8 200 12076 ) 72 -39 2485 702 1300 538
e R=Z2——F  NEBHEERRERL 240%%E  Note: In 2011, the Group disposed of its 40% interest in beverage business for
o BB EREBETZRESNRE - RERFH a net cash consideration of approximately HK$3.2 billion. Pursuant to the
o EIEHIARR A B R AR BN B E N\ shareholders agreement, the non-controlling interest shall have the right
AFNE+=—AFUTE AR BEKERLI0% K to cause the Group to purchase all the 40% equity interest at fair market
¥ o value upon the eighth anniversary or the thirteenth anniversary of the date

of the agreement.
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General

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liabilities and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company to be China Resources National Corporation
(“CRBNC”), a company established in the Chinese Mainland.
The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beer, food
and beverage businesses. The principal activities of the
Company are investment holding and property investment.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are
shown on pages 184 to 189.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as
specified in the principal accounting policies as set out in
note 2, the financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

TR
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

General (continued)

Adoption of new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations on Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that are effective or available
for early adoption for the financial year beginning 1 January
2013. In the current year, the Group has adopted the
following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations.

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial Statements
- Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
(Revised 2011) Ventures

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2009-2011
(Amendments) Cycle

HKFRS 1 Government loans
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
(Amendments) Assets and Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS Interpretation
20

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

The adoption of the new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations has had no material effect on the results
or financial positions of the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustments are
required.
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B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General (continued)

D(ii) Accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations that are not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans:

(Amendments) Employee Contributions

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
(Amendments) Liabilities

HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
(Amendments) non-financial assets

HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation
(Amendments) of hedge accounting

HKFRSs Annual Improvement 2010-2012 Cycle
(Amendments)

HKFRSs Annual Improvement 2011-2013 Cycle
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Hedge Accounting

and Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39)

HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS Levies

Interpretation 21

The Group has not early applied the new standards,
amendments and interpretations that have been issued by
the HKICPA but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
standards, amendments and interpretations but is not yet
in a position to determine whether these new standards,
amendments and interpretations would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Principal Accounting Policies
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include
the financial statements of the Company and of all its direct
and indirect subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s
interests in associates on the basis set out in note 2C below.
The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or
disposed of during the year are included from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate. All material intra-group transactions and
balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

Prior to 1 January 2010, increases in interests in existing
subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the
acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised where appropriate. For
decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of whether
the disposals would result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries, the difference between the consideration
received and the carrying amount of the share of net assets
disposed of was recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account.

From 1 January 2010 onward, changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not involve
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
with no impact on goodwill or profit or loss. When control of
subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event or other
circumstance, the Group derecognises all assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests at their carrying amount. Any
retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at
its fair value at the date the control is lost, with the gain or
loss arising recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the group has control. The group controls an entity
when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases. In the Company’s balance
sheet, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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B F%¥R 25 FffaE Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a
jointly controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position
to exercise significant influence through participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate. In
the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are
stated at the Group’s share of net assets of the associates
plus goodwill arising on acquisitions. Goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate, which forms part of the carrying
amount of an investment in an associate, represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary prior to 1
January 2010 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary on or after 1 January 2010
represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the previously held
equity interest in the acquiree over the net fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating
unit to which the goodwill relates may be impaired. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. An impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account and is not reversed in a
subsequent period. On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001
continues to be recognised as a deduction from equity and
is not recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
when the Group disposes of all or part of the business to
which that goodwill relates or when a cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Prior to 1 January 2010, a discount on acquisition arising on
an acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess of the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Gain
on bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
on or after 1 January 2010 represents the excess of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed over the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the previously held equity
interest in the acquiree. Discount on acquisition or gain on
bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss”, “loans and receivables”
and “available-for-sale investments” dependent on the
purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial liabilities
are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss” and “financial liabilities other than financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (other financial liabilities)”.
Details of classifications and measurements are as follows:

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and have two sub-
categories: financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.
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- SETEE (&) 2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
372 %,ﬂﬁ?&ﬁﬁ( &) E Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(Z) Eﬂ&lgl&m (b) Loans and receivables
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market which are initially measured
at fair value. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Objective evidence of impairment includes
significant financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

—. FESHEE(E) 2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
kK tREERE&E(E) E Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(A) TERE (c) Available for sale investments
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Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories.

The Group holds certain investments in equity
securities, that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be measured
reliably. These available for sale investments are
stated at cost less impairment losses. Apart from this,
available for sale investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised directly in equity, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity
and recognised in the profit and loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the
equity investment is impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with the operations of the
investment.

For those investments carried at cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the equity investment
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not
reverse in subsequent periods. For those investments
carried at fair value, any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such equity investments is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
valuation reserve.
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—. FESHBE(E) 2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
X SREENEE(EA) E Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(T)BEARBEIFAEBDHE® (d) Financial liabilities at fair value through
BB profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet
date subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
the profit and loss account in the period in which they
arise.

(X) BttE@Ea s (e) Other financial liabilities
Hiv & MAB BV LRI BEEST Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
EEKRABRAERMN R AILE value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
SHRKANETE o using the effective interest method.

(2) BUE R () Derecognition
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Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in the profit and loss account.

F Fixed assets

(a)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings which are held for long term rental and/or for
capital appreciation. Such properties are carried in the
balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in fair value
of investment properties are recognised directly in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

SRR
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—. FESHEE(E) 2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
C BEEEE(E) F Fixed assets (continued)
() EBIE (b) Construction in progress
BIELEESITHREGR 2 EEZYE - Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
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(c)

construction for production or administrative purposes,
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes all construction expenditure,
professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and
other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred
to the appropriate category of fixed assets when
available for use.

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties
and construction in progress are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write
off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight line method. The
residual values and useful lives are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being 20 to 50 years

- HEMEEE HIE10F 8K - Leasehold improvements 3o 10 years or over the
LRI & F 5 unexpired term of lease,

BELEVSES whichever is shorter

- mE 5154 - Vessels 510 15 years
- RE® 106 - Cold storage facilities 10 years
- SR 5254 - Plant and machinery 5 to 25 years
- FEMREER RE[ok:= —  Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years
- RE 3%E8F - Motor vehicles 3to 8 years
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B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
F Fixed assets (continued)
(d) Leased assets

(i

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases
that transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases and
are accounted for as if purchased whereby an
amount equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed
assets and as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided in accordance with the
Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to the
lessor are treated as consisting of capital and
interest elements. The interest element is charged
to the profit and loss account.

Operating lease charges

All leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from
operating leases (net of any benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease) is recognised in the profit and
loss account on a straight line basis over the
periods of the respective leases except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property.

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
=y 3



[=!

Bt 7% ¥R 25 Fff5E Notes to the Financial Statements

FESHBEER)
EEEE(H)
(1K) Bl E&EE 2 BE

REFEEH  RITEREADRE
RREMENIIBEEEET 2R
B AEBRINRZEBENTES
AZRE - MEBTRBRBERE -
BEREENTWEEES T M
it W(ARE) BRRERE - A
7 5% IR A EE MU = H AT [ BUFE o

ZEREBBEERERER

HREREDREER AIZEE
EMREESIEMNELERT O
AT W O SREE - M X TR B B B
THRBBAZREEMNNBEFEL
ERRREEBEMAENREE -
RN (75 18 18k 10 U 1 R R B B 3R AR Y

FREFFABER °

HEXRERREEEEMEL 2IBER
HEMBSHAREERAEMERZE

B RERRPHER -

HiELEE

RERERE - HHBAKRKBEBKHE
ZEMBEED BIRRARA A BERE
R RNEXRERR  ZEERAERFH
ZEMETEERRARER TR Z R
WEBEIE - BREERFHZH M
B EBERKASIRR - LR HEAE R FH
WIABARA SRS - # 55 h & 2 A 2 R B
FBETE - U T REREANEAFHHE

B\ EEZ fhat I EREH

R 10E204F
17204

ZEEVEENSEGE A ETRERN
i FARNEKREEREL KD SHE
{ELLRR - AR R FERE - RER
BEBRRNG  EUSEHEEEREH
AREEEE - R RBEODRERER &
ZEEEAREEKER AR
o BEUREEBREUER AT FERE

REEBEMEEE < EEREERR -

#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

(e) Impairment of fixed assets
At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess
whether there is any indication that fixed asset other
than investment properties are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss
is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in the
profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount. Such
reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the profit
and loss account in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of fixed asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired
separately and from business combinations are recognised
at cost and at fair value respectively. After initial recognition,
other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets with finite useful lives are stated at
cost and are amortised on the straight line method over their
useful lives with amortisation commences when the asset is
available for use. The estimated useful lives of other intangible
assets with finite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names
Exploitation rights

10 to 20 years
17 to 20 years

These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts. Where indication of impairment
exists, an impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss
account to reduce the assets to its recoverable amount.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements, with
limited exceptions. Deferred taxation assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties, the presumption that the carrying
amount of the investment properties will be recovered
through sales is not rebutted.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which
is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to management
estimates based on prevailing market conditions.

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables
and packing materials, work-in-progress, finished goods and
merchandise for resale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value or amortised into expense based upon
periods of usage.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the
case of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-
out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling
price less all further costs of production and the related costs
of marketing, selling and distribution.
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Derivative financial instruments (including put options issued
by the Group over non-controlling interests in subsidiary
companies that may be settled by exchange of a variable
amount of cash for a fixed number of shares of the subsidiary
companies) are recognised at fair value at each balance
sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as
effective hedging instruments. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

(a) Fair value hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges
are made to hedge against exposure to changes
in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair values of hedging
instruments and hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk are recognised in the profit and loss
account in the periods in which fair value changes
arise.

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when
hedges are made to hedge against exposure to
variability in cash flows that are attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting,
the effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the
changes in fair value of hedging instruments is initially
recognised in equity and transferred to the profit and
loss account when the hedged item affects the profit
and loss account. The ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss account.

For the hedge of a forecast transaction that
subsequently results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset or a non-financial liability, the associated
gains or losses are removed from equity and included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or
liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or
are classified as held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are
taken directly to the profit and loss account.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the profit and loss account over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business and net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and
loss account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is amortised to
the consolidated profit and loss account over the guarantee
period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis
and charged to the profit and loss account in the year
incurred, except for costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of that assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities
and debt securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on a
monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in
the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect
of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account in the period which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the translation reserve.
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B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign exchange (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
before 1 January 2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign
currency items of the acquirer and reported using the
historical cost prevailing at the date of acquisition.

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees
and other participants, for their services rendered, to
subscribe for shares of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s share option scheme. The fair value of services
received is determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (employee share-based
compensation reserve).

Critical Accounting Estimates

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined
annually by independent valuer on market value for existing
use basis or calculated on the net rental income and allowing
for reversionary income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given
to assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the balance sheet date and appropriate
capitalisation rates of the net rental income. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and
transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2D. Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts of cash
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
recoverable amounts have been determined either based on
value-in-use calculations or the cash-generating units’ fair
value less costs to sell. Details of the key assumptions are
disclosed in Note 17.

SRR

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY



Bt 7% ¥R 25 Fff5E Notes to the Financial Statements

MEEBEREBEERBE

AEE 2 EBUESANEBAAZ SR
BRE  eREERR  RBESER
NEERREEER EEERNEER
ERZEAR - RN REA RIS o

EERK

R-ZZE—=F+_A=+—H " A5EBHE
RS A KREBITEAME Y BAEERBK
MBBANEERR  SallGEeEESR
BRI EERSHEENRABAR -

AREZEERBREESRE S MHME
WHR - RITEFERCRILZITESRT
Ao

AEENE S REMEKFAZEERR
TEEEDETER  AAKENTFE
HETEERTER - TEEBK RN
BB RRMmEBHRS - HEMREEHN
BT - ARECHIFTERE - BEREK
EFMBEE  HERENEELE &
EEREEERR  BERHEERBMNL
FETEEFNMG  LRTEOERER
MRS B R S8 B IS SRERERAE 1T © LS
TRE BRI R R D & 1FE iR a - R
TREM D EIFRIA - 1B H T80 HO IR (BB 1R
# o

ERROIEARESNTESRTAZR
5 ARBCE MEFRBE  BRRS
T EERRRL

B R = T ATl AR Rl4R T EOET TS 1B R
Hh s REBR -_Z—=F+_A=1+—8
WERHANEMEEFEAEEREGREE
[RLBS ) FEAR o

#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Financial Risk Management Objective
and Policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, bank balances and derivative financial
instruments entered into.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk to
trade and other receivables as its customer bases are widely
spread across diverse industries and geographical locations.
For its retail businesses and some transactions in its beer and
beverage businesses, sales of products are made in cash.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that open account
customers are financially viable and with an appropriate
credit history. To minimise its credit risk exposure, credit
evaluations are performed for the determination and approval
of credit limits granted and other monitoring procedures are
implemented to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, regular reviews on aging
and recoverability are performed to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving
derivative financial instruments, the Group has procedures
and policies in place to ensure they are made to
counterparties with good credit rating.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company
as set out in note 34, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk as at
31 December 2013.
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—E-=F 2013

BEHAZRES Variable rate borrowings
FITER Bank loans

—B-CE 2012

BHAEEE Variable rate borrowings
RITER Bank loans

B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial Risk Management Objective
and Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of adequate committed
credit facilities to fund capital, prospective investment
opportunities, debt servicing obligations and dividend
payments. Management also closely monitors the Group’s
rolling forecast and actual cash flows and maturity profiles of
financial liabilities.

Other than short term loans, long term loans and derivative
financial instruments, all other financial liabilities of the
Group are non-interest bearing. The following table details
the outstanding contractual maturities at the balance sheet
date of the Group’s borrowings and derivative financial
instruments, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.

(3591)  (9273)  (10,286) B (8153 (22709

(4,621) (2,898) (10,744) ®) (18,266) (17,726)
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Financial Risk Management Objective
and Policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long
term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed and
floating interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. To cover
interest rate risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a
preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and review regularly.
To avoid undue concentration of risk, the Group entered into
interest rate swaps to mitigate current and future corporate
profitability from interest rate volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would decrease/increase
by HK$227 million (2012: decrease/increase by HK$177
million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the
analysis is used for reference purpose and should not be
considered a projection of the future profits or losses.
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Financial Risk Management Objective
and Policies (continued)

Currency risk

Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong
Kong and have their local currencies as their functional
currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 99% (2012: 98%) of the Group’s sales
are demoninated in the group entity’s respective functional
currencies, whilst approximately 99% (2012: 98%) of costs
are denominated in the group entity’s respective functional
currencies.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

—E—=fF —ET——F
2013 2012

BE aE BE =L
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BERERT BEEER AB¥EET BEEER
HK$ million HKS$ million  HK$ milion  HK$ million
2,207 - 674 106
1,184 5,874 1,392 3,853
74 - 17 -

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against
the Renminbi. Under the linked exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between Hong
Kong dollar and US dollar will be immaterial and therefore no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at year end for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit and other equity where
the relevant foreign currency strengthens 5% against Hong
Kong dollars. For a 5% weakening of the relevant foreign
currency against Hong Kong dollars, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and other equity.
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Financial Risk Management Objective
and Policies (continued)

110 28 - =

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the
analysis is used for reference purpose and should not be
considered a projection of the future profits or losses.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 26, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the raise of bank borrowings or
the redemption of existing debt.

Turnover and Segment Information

BEEAIERBTHIEB 2  Turnover comprises revenue from:
WA -
HEER Sales of goods 136,777 118,520
TR AR AS K E AU A Rendering of services and others 8,922 7,060
s ON Rental income 714 656
146,413 126,236




&3k 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

N EXBERSEERGE)
LEED
o

APEmE A

okt

B2-8-=f
tZRA=T-ALEE
LS
e
ABREE

=)
PEER
FEABHD
BT
HEHA
BITSERA
BB ATRA
i
REERF
RoE-=E
+2A=1-A
EE
NEREE
BRHEAE
AREFHE
RENEHAT
BHAE
GREESE

&
pE
EMHE
EEHBAR

AENENHDF
S
FRAEAE

RtEH
AXRX
EREH

AR ERR
PEVESA

LEE D EAEERIERRANMEZA

For the year ended
31 December 2013
TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales?

Total
Segment result®

Unallocated corporate
EXENses

Interest income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year
As at 31 December 2013

ASSETS
Segment assets
Deferred taxation assets
Taxation recoverable
Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Taxation payable
Deferred taxation
liabilities
Unallocated corporate
liabilities
Consolidated total
liabilities
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and
amortisation
Impaiment loss recognised
Valuation gain on Investment
properties

95,072
102

B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

Turnover and Segment Information

(continued)

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting for resource allocation and assessment

of performance.

32,835 11,
159

267
802

7,239
66

146,413
(1,129) -

95,174

32,994 12,

069

7,305

(1,129) 146,413

1,973

2,581

208

224

- 4,986

78,652

43,694

6,051

1,753
112

280

55,052 9,

31,367 2,

9,343 1

1,834
109

777

396

283

201
60

4,342

2,870

724

100

(170)
534
(304)

5,046

(1,894)

3,152

- 147,823
1,540
251

5,675

165,289

- 80,327
1,155

1,831

12,365

95,678

1 17,402

1 3,889
- 281

- 280
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

N BEXERSEERR) 6. Turnover and Segment Information
(continued)
EEE D (&) Operating segments (continued)
RER
At
e i) R $@T Investments i At
Retall Beer! Food  Beverage' and Others  Elimination Total
AEEET AEEER A¥EEn  BMEEn  ANEST  B%EER  A¥ESD
HKS milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ millon  HKS$ million
BEZ-E--EfZF  Forthe year ended
=t-HLEE 31 December 2012
g£x7 TURNOVER
HNHE External sales 83,415 21,978 10,106 4,742 - - 126,236
EHRHEE Inter-segment sales? 91 91 273 24 - (479) -
Ch Total 83,506 28,064 10,379 4,766 - (479 126,236
PEER Segment result® 3,695 2,362 508 181 - 6,746
FELBHAF Unallocated corporate
ek expenses (118)
FEHA Interest income 26
BISERA Finance costs (361)
BB AIER Profit before taxation 6653
B Taxation (1,631)
REE R Profit for the year 5,022
K-%-ZF As at 31 December 2012
+=Az1-H
BE ASSETS
PHREE Segment assets 68,751 41878 7,583 2,280 - 120,492
ELREEE Deferred taxation assets 992
REHE Taxation recoverable 125
FESHHNFLTE  Unallocated corporate
B assets 5,879
GREESE Consolidated total assets 107488
2 LIABILITIES
PHRER Segment liabilities 36,434 21,285 1,092 1,028 - 59,839
FERHIE Taxation payable 706
BEHEERE Deferred taxation
liabilities 1,499
FESHNHDF Unallocated corporate
BHaE liabilities 11,660
GREELE Consolidated total
liabilities 73,704
EthEH OTHER INFORMATION
ERREY Capital expendfture 9,686 3,859 495 70 1 14111
TERBHE Depreciation and
amortisation 1,533 1,462 214 82 1 3,292
FERREEE Impairment loss recognised 7 220 5 - - 232
RENEEHRAR Valuation gain on Investment
properties 2,166 = 1 = = 2,167

B &E - Notes:

1. EL S E B G AN F oA H IEFE HI AR R AE 1. These segments have significant non-controlling interest to
= HBETIENREIBABEEF 189 2T E the Group, details are set out on the principal subsidiaries and
NG NG associates on pages 184 to 189.

2. EEREENIRERNTISERIKE - 2. Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates.

3. SREEE BRI BWA - B A KT 3. Segment result represents earnings before interest income, finance

TERT&F] costs and taxation.
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N EEERSBEERER) 6. Turnover and Segment Information
(continued)
it E &5 Geographical segments

BLE—Z-—=% Turnover for the
+=HA=+—-H year ended
LFEENEXEE 31 December 2013 8,100 138,192 121 146,413
R=-B—=% As at 31 December 2013
+t=BA=+-—H
FEMBEE Non-current assets
(Pit3E) (Note) 15,637 74,733 1 90,371
Bit-—E——%#+—A8 Turnover for the
=t+—-HIEEHN year ended
=E 3 31 December 2012 8,740 116,331 1,165 126,236
R-Z——F As at 31 December 2012
+ZA=+-H
FRBEE Non-current assets
(Pi5E) (Note) 13,756 61,103 2 74,861
izt : FERBEETRIEASRERELEHIBE Note: Non-current assets excluded available for sale investments and
E- deferred taxation assets.
+. Hilg A 7. Other Income

Hiplg AB3ET 5K\ :  Other income includes the following:

REFLTAERE Dividends from unlisted available for

HIAR S sale investments 2 1
2 A Interest income 534 386
KEYHXEH ARG Valuation gain on investment properties 280 2,167
HENBAR, ¥5% Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/

B {54 A business 1 192
HE BN |l A5 0% Fl Profit on disposal of associates 1 65
& B E & EFTFR T Profit on disposal of fixed assets 174 307
B HERR U # B Government grants recognised 345 319

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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N\, BAFE RS

—E—=F —ET——F
2013 2012
BEHEBT BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million

AR AFRNBHEECRIT Interests on bank loans and other loans
ERREMERFE wholly repayable within five years 329 323

MESZH(BEER WKL Financing charges (including exchange
E18) gain or loss) 7)) 67
327 390

B ABEREERATEA Z Less: Amount capitalized in cost of
B A AN FIE qualifying assets* (23) (29)
304 361
* RER - —RIEROINEFEHEREFE * During the year, the weighted average capitalization rate on funds

BEBER120% °

. NEEEF

8. Finance Costs

#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

borrowed generally is 1.20% per annum.

9. Profit For the Year

—EB-—=F T4
2013 2012
BERET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
REERZFNSHIBRTHIEIE :  Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:
1% ELAN B & Auditors’ remuneration
N — current year 33 20
—PARTEE DE — underprovision in prior year - 3
33 25
BINAN(BREESHE) Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) 16,468 13,833
e Depreciation
-BEEE — Owned assets 3,853 3,274
B RERR EEE Impairment loss recognised on
(BIEEHEERA - (included in cost of sales,
HERDHERK selling and distribution expenses or
—BRITHRERA) general and administrative expenses)
-EEEE — fixed assets 88 39
-HEMEAE - other intangible assets 2 1
-F& — stocks 183 192
/NG - associate 8 =
HAb B E Amortisation of other intangible
(BREE—RE assets (included in general and
THREAA) administrative expenses) 36 18
T REF 2 Operating leases charges on land and
EEROER(ME—) buildings (Note 1) 4,715 4,142
BEEEmKA Cost of goods sold 108,656 95,481
WEFTA : And after crediting:
He WAFEZRE Gross rental income 714 656
R AE B Less: Related out-goings (63) (21)
HEe WA F=E Net rental income 651 635
B3 - Note:
1. BRERIARBEEBSIBEL(ZE—= 1. Including contingent rent of HK$151 million (2012: HK$125 million).

FRBI126BET)  ETWEZRAA
SREEXFETADLAEE

Contingent rent for certain properties was determined by a certain
percentage of turnover of the leases.
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+. EEEE 10. Directors’ Emoluments

we Fees 1.50 1.62
AT & KRR Basic salaries and allowances 11.04 12.94
NHESHR Provident fund contributions 0.42 0.41
TE4T Bonus 7.36 7.65

20.32 22.62

B Chen Lang 0.08 2.63 0.14 1.78 4,63 4.45
A Hong Jie 0.08 2.27 0.14 0.77 3.26 2.82
Ee:S Liu Hongji 0.08 2.33 0.07 3.05 5,53 5.16
Ronik Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0.08 3.81 0.07 1.76 5.72 5.54
HXR Du Wenmin - - - - - 0.08
b4 Wei Bin - - - - - 0.08
e Yan Biao 0.07 - - - 0.07 0.08
HiEH Huang Daoguo 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.05
3 Chen Ying 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.05
N Houang Tai Ninh 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
FRE Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
B8 Cheng Mo Chi 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
BREE Bernard Charnwut Chan 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
HE Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.19 - - - 0.19 0.19
Bty Qiao Shibo - - - - - 3.30
hEE Shi Shanbo - - - - - 0.03
Rl Zhang Haipeng - - - - - 0.03
5 Total 1.50 11.04 0.42 7.36 20.32 -
—E—-fF 2012 1.62 12.94 0.41 7.65 - 22,62
1 AR ERMEBE 2 RBELE @RIALT ! The bonus is determined with reference to the operating results,
TERBREETSGAHFEET - individual performance and comparable market statistics during
both years.

jusWIale)S [BlouBUlY
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t-ENEESHESE 11. Five Highest Paid Employees
FRAANESHFRERERE=((=F The five highest paid employees during the year included
—Z R EF - FBEER EHE three (2012: four) directors, details of whose remunerations
+ o  HBMA(ZE——F ' —()Ro5 are set out in note 10 above. The details of the remunerations
RBEFTES N ZMEEIBHT ¢ paid to the other two (2012: one) highest paid employees are
as follows:

HEARE© KIFRL Basic salaries and allowances 4.01 1.95
NEE - Provident fund contributions 0.22 0.14
TEAT Bonus 4.31 1.39
8.54 3.48
IR (ZE—ZF : —h) &= HMN T The emoluments of this two (2012: one) highest paid
THEE : individuals were within the following band:

3,000,001-3,500,000 3,000,001-3,500,000 - 1
3,500,001-4,000,000 3,500,001-4,000,000 1 -
4,500,001-5,000,000 4,500,001-5,000,000 1 -
T BEAES 12. Staff Provident Fund
B BA A Hong Kong
REBRAELZEHREEZBESLHEZTE The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
BEFORRETE - ZFFT 82 EERASE schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees.
EEESHAERE  UHBYEEZESRH The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
B HBRENRBEEEAF S ZHTER of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
D ETE  MEERES TEEZE 2 I8 amount of contributions is based on a specified percentage
Wit SRR B LORE AR EE 2 R - of the basic salary of employees and any forfeited

contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff leavers
are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

REBHBENES ZHK Group contributions to staff
BirAEmEINR provident fund, charged to
consolidated profit and loss
account 45 42

AR B) A2 R TR Un-utilised forfeited contributions - -
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12. Staff Provident Fund (continued)

B

Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the respective local government in the Chinese
Mainland. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss
account in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the
Chinese Mainland amounted to approximately HK$1,815
million (2012: HK$1,469 million).

BRIE 13. Taxation
—E-=F —E-CfF
2013 2012
BETETT BERETT
HK$ million HK$ million
REEHIE Current taxation
B Hong Kong 175 155
R R A, Chinese Mainland 2,200 1,524
PEZN Overseas - 3
2,375 1,682
IEFERIE Deferred taxation
s> Hong Kong 5 (9)
AR A i Chinese Mainland (486) (42)
1,894 1,631
BEFE TRE*ETFﬁEVZHnﬂE R Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)
FIERLR16.5%(—FT——4F : 16.5%) 7t on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based
on the estimated assessable profits in accordance with the
relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese
Mainland. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

=y 3
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== BAIZAER A 7 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

T=HIE (&) 13. Taxation (continued)
REEF BB RSN Z HIEA BIR R The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from
AR EARRAE 2 BRBAEA the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic
E3-1 N rates applicable to the country concerned as follows:

B 0 B A (T B HE A

Profit before taxation (excluding share of

BN R 2 455 58) net results of associates) 5,019 6,605
LA BB E AR & Tax calculated at the domestic rates
FTE I applicable in the country concerned 1,166 1,360
BIAMRBLZ A Income not subject to taxation (108) (630)
AR HIkR 2 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 294 206
FRERIAEER ZTE Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses (219) (132)
REERZFIE Tax loss not recognised 798 614
EFE /() B2 TR Under/(over) provision on taxation in
previous year (29) 83
i M)A B EA G TR (T ) Income earning companies exempted
from taxation (note) (18) (81)
RAMHEZ BHFTER Withholding tax on undistributed profits 10 211
TIEX Taxation charge 1,894 1,631

MEE

Note:

AEEBHEFENMEENMBLR A ZE TR
BREPARBES - TR EBEFEEHR IR
FRAMBAEH o

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are
eligible for certain tax holidays or concessions and were exempted and
reduced from Chinese Mainland income taxes for the year.
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14. Dividends

2013 interim dividend paid of HK$0.13
(2012: HK$0.15) per ordinary share

2013 proposed final dividend of HK$0.14
(2012: HK$0.15) per ordinary share

313 360
337 360
650 720

At the meeting held on 20 March 2014, the directors
proposed final dividend of HK$0.14 (2012: HK$0.15) per
ordinary share. This proposed dividend, which is calculated
on the Company’s number of ordinary shares as at the
date of the board meeting, is not recognised as a liability in
these financial statements. The total dividends paid by the
Company, including the final dividend for the year 2012 and
the interim dividend for the year 2013, amounting to HK$673
million (2012: HK$1,128 million) are reflected in the current
year financial statements.
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TEERER 15. Earnings Per Share

FRERREERFNTEE T  The calculation of the basic and diluted
BB E earnings per share is based on the
following data:

B Earnings
AU EGREARREERF Profit attributable to shareholders of
KN 7] B R PR Y 7 the Company for the purposes of
calculating basic and diluted earnings
per share 1,908 3,945
R EE Number of shares
AT E S RER BT Weighted average number of ordinary
- 378 A% N T35 2 shares for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 2,402,658,243 2,400,353,822
HE BRI 2 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
BEEETE shares:
—fE AR — Share options 1,927,606 3,425,292
AUGTE S REER T/ Weighted average number of ordinary
378 A% N -39 B shares for the purpose of calculating

diluted earnings per share 2,404,585,849 2,408,779,114
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16. Fixed Assets

The Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012
Relating to acquisition of subsidlaries/
business
Relating to disposal of subsiolaries/business
Addttions
Disposals
Reclassfications
Adjustment on valuation
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Relating to acquisition of subsidlaries/
business

Relating to disposal of subsidlaries/business

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Adjustment on valuation

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2012
Relating to disposal of subsidlaries/business
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals
Impairment loss recognised
Reclassifications
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013

Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/business
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

Impairment loss recognised
Reclassifications

Exchange ifference

At 31 December 2013

Net book values

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012
Representing assets stated:

At cost
At 2013 professional valuation

B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

11,180 6,769 15,250 33,290 18540 66,489
- 5 1,567 148 1715 1,769

- i 80 1997) (1.077) (1078)

9 564 3 7199 75% 8128
194) (152) (w4 2,09 (2.509) (3,569)
313 1 817 (1,200 (389) (7
2167 - 122 - 182 2299
- (16 bl 1 6 (10
12,73 7239 17543 3,416 53,959 73,983
% 73 1,107 1743 2650 3753
) (45 ) (19 64 (19)
1 %9 13 7,668 8125 9105
(1) (@ il (1,020 (1,047 (1063
295 (1.228) 1,880 (8.705) (1.825) 8
20 1,615 2% - 2% 2161
2% 307 99 2241 3210 3543
15,962 972 2,124 13350 65,474 91,15
- 868 28% 12,485 15,381 16,249

- - 63 1586) (649) (649)

- 150 591 2533 3124 3274

- 9 ) (1529 (1,800 (1849

- - 4 % % 3

= (1) (10) (64) (4 (75)

- 5 ) (1) ®) o)

- o3 3127 12,862 15,089 16,962

= @) 4 3) (o) 8]

- 206 637 3010 3647 3853

- (i (15 (180) (19%) (19

- - 3 50 8 8

- (28 (30) (1) (4 (76)

- & 44 1484 1925 2012

- 1,23 41% 16,605 20801 2,03
15,952 8492 17928 26,745 1473 69,117
12,73 6266 14416 23,554 37,970 56,071
- 9726 2,104 13,350 65,474 75,200
15,962 - - - - 15,952
15,962 972 2,124 £330 65,474 91,152
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16. Fixed Assets (continued)

The Company
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2012
Additions
Adjustment on valuation
At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Additions
Written back on disposals

At 31 December 2013

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013

Charge for the year
Writen back on disposals

At 31 December 2013

Net book values
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

Representing assets stated:
At cost
At 2013 professional valuation

== A AR 8 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

54 2 28 82
- 1 1 1
12 - - 12
66 27 29 %
- 2 2 2
- () () ()
66 24 2 9%
- 19 20 20
- 1 1 1
- 20 21 21
- 2 2 2
- () () ()
- 17 18 18
66 7 8 74
66 7 8 74
- 24 2 2
66 - - 66
66 24 2 9%
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16. Fixed Assets (continued)

—E—=F —ET——F
2013 2012
BEEERT BB EET
HK$ million HKS$ million
V¥ FEERE Carrying amounts of the property interests
comprise:
rEH The Group
"E Hong Kong
BREBRZLFEZYE Properties held on long lease 10,289 8,571
IR R X)iE G 2 Properties held on medium-term
lease 3,823 3,726
B HRAEE 2 ME Properties held on short lease 12 -
R E A it Chinese Mainland
REBAZNIEE 2 WE Properties held on long lease 96 253
R ERR AR 2 E Properties held on medium-term
lease 26,536 19,471
BRI HRLEF 2 W Properties held on short lease 1,616 1,396
42,372 33,417
VNN | The Company
b Hong Kong
IR R A)iE G 2 Properties held on medium-term
lease 66 66
R E A ith Chinese Mainland
B HRAEE ZME Properties held on medium-term
lease 1 1
67 67
T ZE-=HE+ZA=1+—HZEREWHEE A Theinvestment properties have been valued at 31 December
BBV EXAEMBERITERAGED 2013 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent
h1E - HENURE RS o MERIKRE professional valuer. The valuation is determined on an
Wzs B RE R AT IS L BUEES B RS - existing use basis. The valuers have relied on the income
R EEREMRAZREZERERE capitalization approach and cross-referenced to the direct
(EXEBRNBASER) N T2.5%%9.0% comparison method. The income capitalization rates (the
ZE—F :25%F9.0%) ° unobservable input) in the range of 2.5% to 9.0% (2012:
2.5% to 9.0%) were used in the income capitalization

approach.

=y 3
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

EE&EE(E) 16. Fixed Assets (continued)
EIMIEQFIE FJEEEI& - B Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress,
Bt HEWEEE MM 28 plant and machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels,
1% R R MR o cold storage facilities, furniture and equipment and motor

vehicles.
ERIR BEXE EENEEE
Construction Plantand  Leasehold Hft A3t
inprogress  machinery improvements Others Total
AEEET  A¥EET  A¥EEn  A¥EER  AMEER
HK§milion ~ HK$milion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmillon  HK$ million
E5E The Group
HAgEfE Cost or valuation
R_B-—%-A- At 1 January 2012 3,383 20,445 5,165 4,297 33,290
WEHBRR/ £RHEA Relating to acquisition of subsidlaries/
business 2 4 57 45 148
HENBAR/ ERREL Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business (17) 42) - (878) (997)
AE Additions 4,445 601 1,409 744 7,199
HE Disposals ) (1,400) (209) (#14) (2,029)
ENNE Reclassifications (3.227) 1610 151 260 (1,206)
EXEE Exchange difference 15 $) 3 4 11
RIB-ZETZA= + BR At 31 December 2012 and
_T— =F—F-H 1 January 2013 4,535 21,255 6,576 4,050 36,416
RENEAT/ 2HEEA Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/
business 274 1,319 150 1,743
HENBRR/ EHREL Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business ] ) () 8 (19
AE Additions 4431 898 1,577 782 7,688
e Disposals ] (490) (189 (33) (1,020)
Eipd Reclassffications 6,067) 2,119 17 126 (3,705)
EREE Exchange difference 104 1,781 219 137 2,241
RZE-=E+A=1-H At 31 December 2013 3,267 26,875 8,299 4,909 43,350
ZHTERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment
R_B——%-A- At 1 January 2012 - 8,09 2,260 2,133 12,485
HERBAR/ EREEH Relating to dlisposal of subsidiaries/
business - (24) - (662) (586)
TEENE Charge for the year - 12338 602 593 2,533
HEAR Written back on disposals - (1,024) (153) (352) (1,529)
BRI RERE Impairment loss recognised - % (1) 10 35
EEipE] Reclassffications - (135) - i (64)
EiZE Exchange difference - (1) () () (12)
RZB-ZF+ZA=1-Ak At 31 December 2012 and
_f_‘ﬁ_ﬂ_ﬁ 1 January 2013 - 8,272 2,703 1,887 12,862
HENBAR/ ERREY Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business = Y] - (1) §)
TEENE Charge for the year - 1,609 706 695 3,010
HEAD Written back on disposals - (369) (136) (275) (780)
B2 AERE Impaiment loss recognised - 4 2 4 50
Eipd Reclassffications - (31) 2 15 (18)
EiZE Exchange difference - 1,290 87 107 1484
RZE-=F+-f=1-H At 31 December 2013 - 0,813 3,360 2,432 16,605
EEE%"{E Net book values
R=F-=F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2013 3,267 16,062 4,939 2477 26,745
“Z--F+-B=1-H At 31 December 2012 4,535 12,983 3,873 2,163 23,054
ET’J’UHWIEEZQE : Representing assets stated:
RAA At cost 3,267 26,875 8,299 4,909 43,350
B-E-ZFEZfEE At 2013 professional valuation = - - - -
3,267 26,875 8,299 4,909 43,350
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+t. B8 17. Goodwill
BEEET
HK$ million
EE The Group
KA Cost
R=_ZT—=—%—F—H At 1 January 2012 10,772
ENZERE Exchange difference )
g = ONCIPE 3 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 4,200
R-T——&F+—-_A=1+—HK At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013
—T—=%—H—H 14,965
ERZERE Exchange difference 328
WEEMB AR %% Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 4,248
HEHB AT, %K Disposal of subsidiaries/business (96)
RZE—=F+=A=+—8H At 31 December 2013 19,445
ZFTREEE Accumulated impairment losses
R-ZE——&F+-_A=+—H" At 31 December 2012, 1 January 2013 and
—FT—=F—H—HK 31 December 2013
—E—=%+=-H=+—H 17
BREE Carrying values
RZE—=F+="RA=+—8H At 31 December 2013 19,428
RN-ZZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 14,948
HEREAEI EEZERELE BN The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash
(TCGUJ) " I AEBEETHEE R generating units (“CGU”), each of which represent an
MEEREENEBCEEERE - U operating entity within the operating segments identified by
REENBRZOERE the Group for the purpose of segment reporting. A segment

level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

below.

—E—=F —E——fF
2013 2012
BEEEBR BEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
=5 Retail 8,782 8,598
i Beer 9,965 5,836
B Food 652 486
R Beverage 29 28
CGUz Al B e iR AEEEAE The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
E o REESERAREBEREERAY on a value in use calculation. These calculations use cash
hEMBEEmMEL 2B RERE flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
BRAFH 7R RERAARERES management covering a five-year period and a discount rate ;T
B8 MABRESREVIREINERT of 8.5% per annum. Cash flows beyond the five-year period 2w
DZNBER AT - are extrapolated using the nominal growth rates stated Zﬁ
2 of
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Tt EmE (&) 17. Goodwill (continued)
FERBEFELAZTEREK Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

=E Retail 8% 8%

i Beer 8% 8%

B Food 8% 8%

R Beverage 8% 8%
TARH B AR 2R 18. Interests in Subsidiaries

¥ /N The Company

LIRS - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 14,932 12,628

FEUZ BT 8 A RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 11,865 12,332
R-E—=ZF+_A=+—BZEENE Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013
NalHBTHEHRE184HEE1898 ° are set out on pages 184 to 189.
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ThEMtEFEEE 19. Other Intangible Assets

rEE The Group
B Cost
RZT——F At 1 January 2012

—A—H 499 82 10 591
NE Additions 14 - - 14
HEMBAR, %% Disposal of subsidiaries/

business - — (10) (10)
RZT——F At 31 December 2012

+-A=+—-HEK and 1 January 2013

—E—=F

—H—H G)e 82 - 595
NE Additions 96 - - 96
WEEHNBRE,/ Acquisition of subsidiaries/

S business 200 - - 200
ERZEHE Exchange differences 19 2 = 21
RZT—=4F At 31 December 2013

+=ZA=+—~ 828 84 - 912

ZEEHEKRE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
RZT——F At 1 January 2012

—A-B 276 5 - 281
REEHH Charge for the year 14 4 = 18
BERRZRERRE Impairment loss recognised 1 _ _ 1
RNZT——F At 31 December 2012

+-A=+—-HEK and 1 January 2013

—E—=F

—B—o 291 9 - 300
REEHH Charge for the year 31 5 = 36
BRERZREERE Impairment loss recognised 2 _ _ 2
ERERE Exchange difference 192 _ _ 19
RZT—=4F At 31 December 2013

+-A=+—H 336 14 - 350

BREFE Net book values
RNZT—=F At 31 December 2013

+=-A=+—-H 492 70 - 562
NZE——F At 31 December 2012

+=A=+—8H 222 73 — 295

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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-t REEE NS 2R 20. Interests in Associates

AEE The Group
LT Unlisted
EIhEEFE Share of net assets 236 242
EES Goodwill 152 147
388 389
RZE—=FF+_A=+—HZ2EXEHZ Particulars of the principal associate at 31 December 2013
NEFETEHNFE184BEE189H ° are set out on pages 184 to 189.
ANTRATE AR EBEE AR 2 MOTEE The summarised financial information in respect of the
o Group’s associates is set out below:

EEAE Total assets 2,256 2,149
BERE Total liabilities (1,693) (1,521)
BEFE Net assets 563 628
REEELBSAREEFE  Group’s share of net assets of associates 236 242
Wz Revenue 3,038 3,856
ARE A Profit for the year 65 107
AEEEREE R A Group’s share of profits of

RNEE T associates for the year 27 48
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- AERE 21. Available for Sale Investments

AEH The Group
RE AN TG - ARE[E  Listed equity shares in Chinese
Mainland, at fair value 128 106
EEIELTRD Unlisted equity shares in Hong Kong 11 11
AR A i IE T AR Unlisted equity shares in Chinese
Mainland 3 11
14 22
142 128
DHTEAT - Analysed as:

IERE Non-current 142 128
EHREREN AR BBEELBMSRE The fair values of investment in listed equity shares are
MmEE ° determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.
FEEMRMIZN BN S EE B 2R ER The investments in unlisted equity shares are measured at
2 ARAB AR BEMTBERK @ & costs less impairment at each balance sheet date. As the
AR SEMEEE AR BE - range of parameters for estimating the reasonable fair values

is so significant, their fair values cannot be ascertained
reliably.
ST ENRIE 22. Prepayments

AEH The Group
ERHES Prepaid rent 221 301
BEETEEZF £E Deposit payment for purchase

of fixed assets 655 1,957

876 2,258

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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23.

St EE

=A% A R 8 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Stocks

REM The Group
HEYE Properties held for sale 63 63
R Raw materials 1,707 1,632
S R BEME Consumables and packing materials 7,438 6,694
ERT Work-in-progress 692 572
BIRK Finished goods 1,487 767
HEE NG Merchandise for resale 13,634 11,514
25,021 21,242

“tE B S REMERRIE 24,

Trade and Other Receivables

BB 5 83K Trade receivables 2,308 1,466 - =
BIRER Provision for doubtful debts (63) (39) - -
2,245 1,427 - _
AU EEER Value-added tax recoverable 5,051 4,159 - -
BAFE Prepayments 2,432 1,750 1 1
Bi&RE Deposits paid 1,332 1,260 3 3
Hth e E Other receivables 2,658 1,895 24 3
FEMHT B 2 Rl FRIR Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 1,370 1,563

M — R AR A A F0E Amount due from a holding
company 2,689 740 - -

BB ARIEE Amounts due from fellow

MBARRR subsidiaries - 2,485 - 2,464
FEMHE & D R FR0R Amounts due from associates 21 28 - -
16,428 13,744 1,398 4,034

AEE-—RETEPUATZEER

(F) 8RN Rk
() =tEATRRIR

The Group normally trades with its customers under the
following credit terms:

(@
(b)

cash upon delivery; and
open credit from 30 to 90 days

e —BEHE R A B FUR A EER - RFF
£5.04 %51 B RARBHE BENNEAR
MEE -

Amount due from a holding company is unsecured, bear
interest at 5.04% per annum and repayable within six months
from the reporting date.
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B R &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

24. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the
balance sheet date:

AEE The Group
0 - 30K 0 - 30 days
31 - 60K 31 - 60 days
61 - 90K 61 — 90 days
> 90K > 90 days

AEERARNRNERBNE S R EME
WHBEAABEEEREERS

RIRERZEE

1,205 776
341 231
126 80
573 340

2,245 1,427

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
other receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to
the corresponding carrying amount.

Movement in the provision for doubtful debts

R—H—H At 1 January 39 68
BER Z WA Impairment losses recognised 25 8
HeE AR BT &5 Amounts written off as uncollectible (5) (17)
U BE BT B A A) Acquisition of subsidiaries 3 1

HEHE AR Disposal of subsidiaries - 1)
EHZER Exchange difference 1 =
R+t—_A=+—8H At 31 December 63 39

B H B AR R B R R 9 PR R

Aging of past due but not impaired

mHEE30H Less than 30 days past due 165 84
#HI31—60H 31 - 60 days past due 187 60
#HI61—90H 61 — 90 days past due 55 22
#IHAQ0 A LA £ Over 90 days past due 119 68

526 234

WAREE - TMEREREEFR - B R
RERINES - ML FIEIEREHE -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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St B REHMENTIE 25. Trade and Other Payables

e B 5 BR Trade payables 25,822 20,288 - -
FEWKIE Receipt in advance 16,580 14,552 - =
TEiRE M Accruals 10,544 7,080 30 21
BliEE Deposit received 6,900 5,850 - -
Hip MR Other payables 9,212 5,252 1 3
FEHE B A RIZUE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 6,691 5,246
ENEAREER Amounts due to fellow
BB A Bl ZE subsidiaries 116 76 - =
JE T B A R R Amounts due to associates 4 6 - =
69,178 53,104 6,722 5,270
REEZBNENEZE SRR KRR TN The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
™ balance sheet date:

rEH The Group
0 - 30K 0 - 30 days 17,919 13,649
31 - 60K 31 - 60 days 3,787 3,293
61 - 90K 61 — 90 days 1,406 1,339
> 90K > 90 days 2,710 2,007
25,822 20,288
$%@&$’“ﬂﬁ(\ FEHME S M EME The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
NRBEBAREERALRMERS - other payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the
corresponding carrying amount.
NARISEREER R 2 BT HI B A R FKEE The Company’s non-current portion of amount due to
FEERE,003A BT ° WERAEIK subsidiaries include an advance of HK$9,003 million which
I % F F RHIBORA.55%5 &, ° is unsecured and bears interest at HIBOR plus 1.55% per

annum.
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- BEIRIRITEN

MASRITREMER R
(B¢ S

- H3

-

I RHIER

FEE

ARAFAREEREZ
ERIRITER
ARAFARERZ
EEMRITER
BEANAFANTBREEZ
EIEIPIRITE R

FIRRE B B2 BV ES 1

26A. Short Term Loans

The Group
Current portion of long term loans

— secured bank loans
— unsecured bank loans

Short term bank and other loans
and trust receipts
— secured
— unsecured

26B. Long Term Loans

The Group

Secured bank loan repayable
within 5 years

Unsecured bank loans repayable
within 5 years

Unsecured bank loans not
wholly repayable within 5 years

Current portion included
in current liabilities

B R &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

38 -
2,701 4,327
34 -
584 47
3,357 4,374

38 -
22,044 17,676

3 3
22,085 17,679
(2,739) (4,327)
19,346 13,352
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26B. Long Term Loans (continued)

—E—=F —E—CF
2013 2012
BEHBT BEBEETT
HK$ million HK$ million
AEE The Group
REAE &2 FERNEASR (A EIZ LA The non-current portion of long term
TEHER liabilities are repayable as follows:
RITER Bank Loans
—FUAEERER After 1 year, but within 2 years 12,443 2,701
MENEZERFR After 2 years, but within 5 years 6,900 10,648
AF®% After 5 years 3 3
19,346 18,5162

AEBUBHHANCAEEERERREE
226 5B c RZE—=F+=A
=+—H  EBARIBERBE223.4ETT

REASEARDFAERZ EBERRT
Bz &GN FREERRAEAER
BEARRARDIBL%ZEERRE 2D
ST EERARRE-—RARR 2 H )
(TwmAEENEBEMNBARMERS
Bz

AEBFULEY ZTRARBREMZ
FRAER - BEDHIEHIBOR - fRBERTT
RZHFE(TLIBOR)) RFEARRITRE
Z R R A o

AEBZEERZ2ERFNEEIER
0.77%ZE9.18%( —F— — 4 : H40.59%
27.65%) T o

The aggregate amount of committed borrowing facilities
available to the Group is HK$22.65 billion. As at 31
December 2013, a sum of HK$22.34 billion has been drawn
down.

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured
bank loans repayable within five years, CRH, a holding
company, is required to remain as a beneficial owner of at
least 35% of the voting shares of the Company or remain
as a single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly
through its subsidiaries) of the Company.

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates
linked to HIBOR, London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”)
and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China
respectively.

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating rate
borrowings range from mainly 0.77% to 9.18% (2012: from
0.59% to 7.65%) per annum.
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Tt IEEBE 27. Deferred Taxation
FRELEHBEENABZESHWOT The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities
recognised during the year is as follows:

r5E The Group
BEHEEE Deferred taxation assets
R=A—H At 1 January 86 58 906 704 992 762
ERARRR Credlted)(Charged] to
iR/ (M%) consolidated proft and
loss account (10) 21 519 205 509 232
YEHBAT Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 1 - 1 -
ExR% Exchange rate adjustment 3 1 35 @) 3 ?)
Wt-A=t-H At 31 December 79 86 1,461 906 1,540 992
BT IBEEAEENREH =S E A # Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses
RRFERR BN ER R LR - ATEEIRE carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
HEEmMER R_T—=F+=-A=+— benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31
H AEERBRIUBEEELSE December 2013, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
7203 B L(ZE—=F : #¥3,7287 HK$7,203 million (2012: HK$3,728 million) which is uncertain
Bir) MASERERTASHRAZE as to whether it can be utilised to set off against future
FRIBERRAERBURA L - WS EE taxable income. Out of this amount, the unrecognised tax
ERAFAMRMZ RER BBEIEF B loss of HK$6,909 million (2012: HK$3,582 million) will expire
#6,909F B (=T — =4 : B¥3,582 within 5 years.
BEJL) °
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STLIRERIR (&) 27. Deferred Taxation (continued)
UTAEEGAEERBRTRAZEL The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised in
MIBEEEKBO RNERNZEH) the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during

the year are as follows:

REE The Group
RZE——F At 1 January 2012
—H—H 36 440 530 1,006
AR BRANR/ Charged/(credited) to
(3t A) consolidated profit
and loss account 7 (37) 211 181
W B AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - 257 - 257
BHEM2EE Charged to other
ks comprehensive income 64 - - 64
ERHE Exchange rate adjustment ) () - 9)
R-E——F At 31 December 2012 and
+=ZA=+-HBk 1 January 2013
—T—-=%—-f—H 99 659 741 1,499
BirABRERNR Charged/(credited) to
(FFA) consolidated profit
and loss account 9 9 10 28
R 2 Al Acquisition of subsidiaries - 157 - 157
HEMRBAR Disposal of subsidiaries () (14) - (18)
BEMZEKE Charged to other
k comprehensive income 150 - - 150
EXRE Exchange rate adjustment 11 4 = 15
RZE—=F At 31 December 2013
+=ZR=+—H 265 815 751 1,831
RiERIEARENRIEE - FBIRAER Under the Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
EHPEMNBARNE -_ZEENFE—F—H dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
B EL A FSE BT = 4 B9 RS B Bk o B IE subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
BMEUASEANBEETERNERE has been provided for undistributed profits to the extent that
I B A EIRETEM - declaration of dividends are anticipated in the foreseeable
future.
RARZIELERIEA ERIE T REFIA The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relate to the
NEAEEMN IR IERE © accelerated tax depreciation of its land and building and other

assets.
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B E B ERE T thamaL -

Zth R A

28.

29.

VETE Authorised
SFRREESE1T Ordinary shares of
2 &R HK$1 each
BEBITREZRA Issued and fully paid
Rn—A—H At 1 January
175 B A% Exercise of share
options
R+t—A=+—8” At 31 December

ARABRIBERETE  ERESEEY
ARRIZEYE  BOEEARRRZBRE
(MZatElD) -

ZETER =TT _F—A=+—RAZKRE
Ae LEME  EER_ZZTWUENA
T HERFBRETERERIER] LB
R-ZE——F—A=+—HBEH - AA7
EEGRRAERIHERHERE %
ERERSHRERERER 2T RHMITHR
IENITER (HERHREZEZAL) BAE
B EAREE RITESHIERTES
st BB ErE 255t AEE 2
fAITTHRAEG - BB - EXRERM - BEEM
FEMER (KEERZEE ERAL) -
KRR EEHITBRABREERRE - A5EH
ZHENR] C ARBIZESE  &mTHRA
BENFEREMHEA FEREMNES
B ETERREAT)EEREAME
NAEIMES -

BRE-RIR2IE TR AR LB
PRERRANFZHRAET » WEEE
RHZ AR+ FRTRE -

B F%¥R 25 FffaE Notes to the Financial Statements

Other non-current liabilities

At 31 December 2013, other non-current liabilities included
government grants of HK$718 million (2012: HK$600 million)
recognized as deferred revenue. The government grants
mainly represent subsidies granted by PRC governmental
authorities towards the purchases of leasehold land.

Share Capital

—ET—=F —E—=
2013 2012
g -4 HE f&H B HE
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
BER BEBEER BER ABEET
million HK$ million million  HK$ million
3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
2,401 2,401 2,399 2,399
2 2 2 2
2,403 2,403 2,401 2,401

The Company operates a share options scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication
to the objectives of the Company by the participants
(“Scheme”).

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently
amended on 20 August 2004 by an ordinary resolution
passed by shareholders, and expired on 31 January 2012.
The board of directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible participants including any executive or non-executive
directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed
as such), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust
established by any employee, executive or non-executive
directors of the Group, any executives and employees,
consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or
persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associated
companies of the Group, associates of director, chief
executive and substantial shareholder of the Company, and
employees of substantial shareholder and where a substantial
shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries of a
substantial shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over
a period of time up to a maximum of four years after the
acceptance of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10
years immediately after the date of grant.

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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ey NE =D 29. Share Capital (continued)
TRIE S 2IIE Y > B IS R B 25 2kt Details of the movement of the share options granted under
W the Scheme are summarised as follows:

Fatdl
The Scheme
14/04/2008 6.29 4,000 - 4,000 - - - -
08/10/2003 8.90 2,000 - 2,000 - - - -
14/01/2004 9.72 639,000 - 394,000 - - 245,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 390,000 - 390,000 - - - -
25/05/2004 9.5 402,000 - 34,000 - - 368,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - 200,000 - - - -
04/10/2004 10.35 2,566,000 - 830,000 - - 1,736,000 -
4,208,000 - 1,854,000 - - 2,349,000

ARELSfE
Exercisable at the

end of the year 2,349,000
IETSE(RET)
Weighted average

exercise price(HK9) 10.05 - 10.00 - - 10.10
BREFEADTOT : Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Zitdl
The Scheme
ZZDirectors 490,000 - 200,000 - - 290,000

[EZEmployees 3,713,000 - 1,604,000 - - 2,059,000
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IR () 29. Share Capital (continued)

Zatdl
The Scheme
07/02/2002 717 84,000 - - - 84,000 - -
05/03/2002 7.35 361,000 - 70,000 - 291,000 - -
19/04/2002 7.40 138,000 - 128,000 - 10,000 - -
02/08/2002 8.32 150,000 - 150,000 - - - -
14/04/2003 6.29 4,000 - - - - 4,000 -
08/10/2003 8.90 2,000 - - - - 2,000 -
14/01/2004 9.72 1,248,000 - 609,000 - - 639,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - 450,000 - - 390,000 -
25/05/2004 9.15 440,000 - 38,000 - - 402,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
04/10/2004 10.35 3,310,000 - 744,000 - - 2,566,000 -
6,777,000 - 2,189,000 - 385,000 4,208,000

AIRERTTR
Exercisable at the

end of the year 4,203,000
METAAEE(EST)
Weighted average exercise

price(HK9) 9.77 - 9.65 - 7.31 10.05
EREFAADTNT : Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Hitd
The Scheme
EZDirectors 490,000 - - - - 490,000
[E&Employees 5,926,000 - 2,119,000 - 94,000 3,718,000
A 28EOther participants 361,000 - 70,000 - 291,000 -

B3 Note:
1. FREITEBRERITEB B2 NEFEY 1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
BREAABE262T(ZT——4F: B share options exercised during the year was HK$26.22 (2012:
25.787%) ° HK$25.78).
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30. Reserves
The Group
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 123 to

NG|
RZZE-Z4-A-H
BRHEE
REEER
®E
WZE—=F
+-A=1+-H
RZE-=%
—A—H
BRHEE
REERT
EER I RE
HEIMRG

e
RZZ-=F
+-A=1+-H

AAR A DR FTREZFEEABE
——F : BE25708

2,749B 8 L(=%
g) -

The Company

At 1 January 2012
Shares issued at premium
Loss for the year
Dividends

At 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013

Shares issued at premium
Profit for the year
Purchase of shares under
restricted incentive
award scheme
Dividends

At 31 December 2013

124.

12,957 172 - 3780 16,909
19 - - - 19

- - - 1) @1)

- - - (1,128) (1,128)
12,976 172 - 2,631 15,779
17 - - - 17

- - - 852 852

- - (451) - (451)

- - - (673) (673)
12,993 172 (451) 2810 15,524

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to
the shareholders amounted to HK$2,749 million (2012:
HK$2,570 million).
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B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

31. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow

Statement
A Cash flows from operating activities

—ZB-—=F T4
2013 2012
BYEEET BEBEET
HK$ million HK$ million
Profit before taxation 5,046 6,653
Adjustments for:
Share of net results of
associates (27) (48)
Profit on disposal of
subsidiaries/business (1) (192)
Profit on disposal of associates (1) (65)
Profit on disposal of available
for sale investments - (2)
Dividend income from
unlisted available for sale
investments (2) (1)
Exchange gain (181) =
Interest income (534) (386)
Interest expenses 306 294
Net profit on disposal of fixed
assets (174) (307)
Impairment loss recognised on
fixed assets 88 39
Impairment loss recognised on
other intangible assets 2 1
Impairment loss recognised on
stocks 183 55
Impairment loss recognised on
associates 8 -
Depreciation 3,853 3,274
Amortisation of other intangible
assets 36 18
Valuation gain on investment
properties (280) (2,167)
Government grants recognised (345) (319)
Operating cash inflows before
working capital changes 7,977 6,847
Prepayment for rental deposit 77 7
Changes in other stocks (3,242) (855)
Changes in trade and other
receivables (2,210) (81)
Changes in trade and other
payables 10,225 4,704
Cash generated from operations 12,827 10,622

SRR
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#FEHAIE AR 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

- FEERERERMT(E) 31. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement (continued)

Z HEMBLAT %K B Disposal of subsidiaries/business

HEEEFME Net assets disposed of:
BEEEE Fixed assets 184 429
BES Goodwill 96 _
HihmpEE Other intangible assets - 10
NI s Interests in associates - 22
AERE Available for sales investments 7 =
A Stocks 12 433
2 5 & H e RIE Trade and other receivables 53 386
BEHEMRITET Pledged bank deposits - 27
B MIRITHTF Cash and bank balances 218 151
B 5 M EAh RN FROR Trade and other payables (65) (349)
R IE Tax payable 3 (11)
REE® Short term loans - ©2)
RIEFIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities (18) =
484 1,096
FEF2 i AR R A 2 Non-controlling interests (156) (512)
fEmE Reserve released (13) 4
HEHBAR, %% Profit on disposal of
Fir 15 i Kl subsidiaries/business 1 192
316 780
LATRH 5 AT - Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 316 780
HEWB AT EKHRE Analysis of the net inflow of
ZHERAESEBERA cash and cash equivalents
FESN in respect of disposal of
subsidiaries/business
BUYER &R E Cash considerations received 316 780
HEBRE MRITET Cash and bank balances
disposed of (218) (151)
98 629
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31. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement (continued)

WESH B AR, ¥ C Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
—E—=F —F——4F
2013 2012
BEHEBR B EET
HK$ million HK$ million
REEBMSEERARE The assets acquired and
liabilities recognised at the
dates of acquisition:
BEE&EE Fixed assets 3,753 1,769
HAth B E Other intangible assets 200 =
BIET A= Deferred taxation assets 1 =
BE Stocks 383 159
B 5 & H At e W IE Trade and other receivables 967 763
Be MRITHET Cash and bank balances 492 460
Z 5 RHEMERFKIE Trade and other payables (2,327) (1,660)
SHIEX Short term loans (219) (696)
FERT IR Tax payable 1) 4)
REEMR Long term loans (68) (170)
HEMIEREB AR Other non-current liabilities (6) -
RIEFHIB A E Deferred taxation liabilities (157) (257)
3,018 364
SR Il AR B A o Non-controlling interests (13) (1)
WEREEZEHE Goodwill on acquisition 4,248 4,200
7,253 4,563
LATRF A A AT Discharged by:
Be Cash 5,339 2,025
FERRE Balance of consideration
payable 1,914 717
EXFENZES Cash consideration paid in
last year - 1,821
7,253 4,563
WEHEAR, K2R e Analysis of the net outflow of
RREEERBFEIN cash and cash equivalents
in respect of acquisition
of subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
BERNBESRE Cash consideration paid (5,339) (2,025)
WERFTISIR & MR THTE Cash and bank balances
acquired 492 460
(4,847) (1,565)

—E-—FRENRBRAR EBTEARE
AR 64 8BITHIR S REUIESEE
BEHBEAE - DHEMEEEY - 21548
BRRRERMEE ARBEEZHE
N BABH3,9028 &7 0 TYEERFTEE
¥75 2 BT EFIRE N R iR o

The acquisition of subsidiaries/business in 2013 mainly
represents the acquisition of Kingway Brewery’s business
in relation to beer production, distribution and sales, and
including the related shareholder’s loan and debts, for a
total cash consideration of HK$6.48 billion. Goodwill arising
on acquisition was amounting to HK$3,992 million, which is
attributable to the profitability and the synergies expected to
arise from the acquired business.

SRR
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32.

= AI%£ AR A T CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Capital Commitments

REEHBARTHZ Capital commitments
BAAEWT : outstanding at the
balance sheet date
are as follows:
B3R A1B 5 R BT Contracted but not
(P E) provided for (Note)
DHEER M ARELD Authorised but not
contracted for
B &E -

BREEERTEE B ANRER B AETT
(ZZ—=%F : B¥%6,902687TT) °

STT ERMHEARE
B EREEA

11,048 7,768 - _
3,150 12,688 - -
14,198 20,456 - -

Note:

Including contractual commitments for the acquisition of fixed assets of
HK$9,925 million (2012: HK$6,902 million).

. Operating Lease Commitments

As lessee

REER - REBETA

At the balance sheet

FEHE FRNER date, the total future
RN SR P minimum lease
EREFIEERE : payments under non-
cancellable operating
leases are payable as
follows:
-E—FA — Within one year 4,540 3,664 4 13
- EF_FEFRF - In the second
(BEEEMF) to fifth year
inclusive 15,154 10,434 - 4
-hEFZE — After five years 29,484 19,929 - =
49,178 34,027 4 17

EEMERBREASERAETTEMD
AEMENzES BHETRR—=
—+HFEZHEFHEE - A TTEMMH
BEHEERS T UARTEMN T RERE
HEXUHERAENES(URSES
£)RIE - LAREREERER ST
E_ o

Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the
Group for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases
are negotiated for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to
20 years. The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets
are based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental of the relevant outlets. The minimum
guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at the above
commitments.
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ST EEHORE(E) 33. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)
Z fEREMEA B Aslessor

REEH - BERA At the balance sheet

FEHEFERNTR date, the total future
70 B Y ER 2 minimum lease
IR ERIEEE payments under non-

cancellable operating
leases are receivable

as follows:
-E—FR — Within one year 1,325 1,072 1 1
-EFE_FEERF - In the second to fifth
(BEERME) year inclusive 2,355 1,589 - =
-hEzi& — After five years 642 403 - -
4,322 3,064 1 1
hEMERTEER AT TEZHATH These properties and retail outlets have committed tenants
NFAE20%F - for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 20 years.
IR HREE 34. Contingent Liabilities

REEH - "2FAT At the balance sheet
F QB IRTT R E date, there were
B RIERMEEZ contingent liabilities
NARBE in respect of

guarantees for banks
loans provided to
subsidiaries - - 12,953 12,619

jusWIale)S [BlouBUlY
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= AI%£ AR A T CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

STLERBEERS 35. Material Related Party Transactions

B AAREERBAR(BRAATZEE A Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
AD)#ETZRSGEREREREREE -
WEEARWEFIEE - BRATBRSE ST
WEZRPREHRIN  REBET IS
HERBERS °

which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

—EB-—=F T4
2013 2012
BEHEBT BEBEETT
HK$ million HK$ million
R RFARIEBAE SR Purchase of goods from
BRREEZHERA R Fellow subsidiaries 885 25
G Associates 88 102
BX TR R 2 R Receipt of services from
— AR A 7] A holding company - 1
ISPNGIESE i)=Y Fellow subsidiaries 42 122
i /NG| Associates 20 22
M T3 ARIHEE R Sales of goods to
—RZER AT A holding company 15 7
BATIEEHEBAT Fellow subsidiaries 14 16
[ 7 A R RS Rendering of services to
BRREEZHEAR Fellow subsidiaries 3 3
AN Associates 9 9
EEMLFIE Operating lease payment to
—EERR AR A holding company - 14
BRREEZHEAR] Fellow subsidiaries 96 66
SN Associates 2 2
M T2 B URERFE Interest received from
— AR A F] A holding company 91 21
ISI/NIESIE ol b= NG A fellow subsidiary 47 17
RBIEEMEEEMREEIER:R  Transaction under godown
EITR G management agreement and
facilities management
[R5 A m U ER BR 7% & Receipt of service fee from
— A ERR A A A holding company 87 89
BAREEZHBAFR Fellow subsidiaries 77 93
ERNIANEIFEEPEE - Payment of monthly fee to
—MZER AR A holding company 9 9
[SNGIE SISl b= VNG Fellow subsidiaries 27 25

AEFERKESEBRETROBRADNT
F(BIEE S RBITEBIEIRIFRTT
R)BBE18EBIL(ZE——F : &
#2558 & TT) °

Cash and bank balances or pledged bank deposits included
deposits of HK$1,668 million (2012: HK$2,558 million) made
by the Group to China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd.
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35.

A

36.

B 753k &5 KisE Notes to the Financial Statements

Material Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(continued)

The above transactions also constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules and with respect to
which the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in Chinese Mainland

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies
under CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government.
Apart from the transactions with CRNC group and the
associates of the Group, it also conducts businesses with
entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the
PRC government in the ordinary course of business. The
directors are of the opinion that those entities other than the
CRNC group do not have the power to govern or participate
in the financial and operating policies of the Group. The
transactions including sales and purchases of goods and
services and bank deposits and corresponding interest
income, with these entities are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business. The Group believes that
it has provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate
and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions as
summarised above.

Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration paid for key management personnel are
disclosed in note 10 and note 11.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements set out on pages 117 to 189 were
approved by the board of directors on 20 March 2014.

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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1M nABHE LT
Principal Subsidiavies and Associate

R-Z—=%F+=-H=+—H At 31 December 2013

(=) Zg&
(1) Retail
REERRE L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
BE(FB)ARAA 5,000,000R B REEAK10T 2 ERR 100.0 - 1000 Z&£E
Chinese Arts & Crafts (H.K.) Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Retall business
ERER (BB ARAT 90,000,001 ERAESE T2 EBR 1000 - 1000 &k REFRREmHE
China Resources VVanguard 90,000,001 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Supermarket operations,
(Hong Kong) Company Limited investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise
ZEIE(ER) ARAR WrERAEEE 1T EBR 100.0 - 1000 REARRNEER
CRE Properties (Hong Kong) Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding and
property management
CRE Property (Nan Fung Centre) MREBREEES 1T EBR 100.0 - 1000 #ERE
Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Argyle Centre) Limited ~ 2REREEAE1 T2 LB 100.0 - 1000 #HERE
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Silvercord) Limited WREREEBS 1T LRR 100.0 - 1000 WERE
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Star House) Limited 2R BREEEE 112 EER 100.0 - 1000 WERE
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Hennessy) Limited WRERAEBEE T EBR 100.0 - 1000 ¥EiRE
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
RABEZHBRMAL

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

Gain Land Limited (Note 4) TRERAEEIFT LER 100.0 - 1000 #RARR
7 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
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FEMB D 7 R EE A 8 Principal Subsidiaries and Associate

BRLRRRAEE/ L
HMER Percentage of capital
Noninal value of issued AREEE  ARARE WERARE

HBAR ordinary share capital/ attributable to held by heldby FE£K
Subsidiaries registered capital the Group  the Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
() 2&5(8
(1) Retail (continued)
RAE R
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
v EREZRERLA AR¥3,376,600,0007T (T &) 100.0 - 1000 BmES
(China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd.)  RMB3,376,600,000 (Registered capital) Supermarket operations
AR#3,376,600,00070 (EREX)
RMB3,376,600,000 (Paid up share capital)
v IEARERERARRAT AE#90,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 BmES
RMB90,000,000 Supermarket operations
IHEIEREMBRAA ARH197,360,40070 100.0 - 1000 BmEH
RMB197,360,400 Supermarket operations
’ FRETARAR ARH582,820,0007 85.0 - 850 BuEk
(Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd.) RMB582,820,000 Supermarket operations
* MIERERERTERAR A 124,000,0007C 100.0 - 1000 BIER
(China Resources Cikelong (Zhejiang) ~ RMB124,000,000 Supermarket operations
Supermarket Co., Ltd.)
' EREFLEET (BM) ARAR  ARH60,000,0007 100.0 - 1000 BHEK
(China Resources Vanguard RMB50,000,000 Supermarket operations
(Guangzhou) Superstore Co., Ltd.)
' EEEXOERDT (D) BRAE  AR%128,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 BmEE
(China Resources Vanguard (Zhejiang)  RMB128,000,000 Supermarket operations
Superstore Co. Ltd.)
v REEFERLEEMARAA ARH120,000,00070 100.0 - 1000 BHER
RMB120,000,000 Supermarket operations
v RBERERLEETERAA AE#60,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 BmEH
RMB60,000,000 Supermarket operations
BRERETARAA AR5,000,0007C 100.0 - 1000 BUEBREER
RMBS5,000,000 Supermarket operations and
investment holding
TEHEEEARAT AE#10,000,0007C 55.3 - 553 BmEBRRELR
RMB10,000,000 Supermarket operations and
investment holding

=y 3
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Beer

REBELE R ME L

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

ERERREERAR)
China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited

R B RS R L

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

ERSTRE(BR)ERAELT

EESERE(EH)ERAE
China Resources Snowflake Brewery
(Jilin) Co., Ltd.

FESTEE(RE)ARAA
China Resources Snow Brewery
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd.
ERSTRE(hE)ERAR
ZESTEA(KR)ARAA
China Resources Snow Brewery

(Dalian) Co., Ltd.

FESTEE(vE)RAERAR

FEMB D T B A 8 Principal Subsidiaries and Associate

42,800,400R B RAEI T2 EBR
42,800,400 ordinary shares of US$1 each

ARH245,792,5017C
RMB245,792,501

23,200,000% 70
1S$23,200,000

AR570,000,0007C
RMB570,000,000

6,500,000% 7T
US$6,500,000
32,797 869% 0

US$32,797,869

617,673,544.385 T
US$617,673,544.38

== BAIZAER A 7 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

51.0

51.0

51.0

459

51.0

51.0

100.0

100.0

90.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

RARK

Investment holding

HENHHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENHHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

D EER

Distribution of beer products

HENHHERER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

RARR

Investment holding



&3k 2013 ANNUAL REPORT

(=
@

5 (%)

Beer (continued)

B R A ()
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
(continued)

FHSERE(EE)ARAT

ERETRR(ZRET)ERAA
China Resources Snow Breweries
(Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd.

ERSRBE(IH) ERLR
China Resources Snow Breweries
(Jiangsu) Limited

ERETRE(ZR)ERAA

ERSLRE(AMAERAR

ERERWE(AR)ERARA
China Resources Snow Breweries
(Datong) Co., Ltd.

ERSTERECANBRAR

109,252,889% T
US$109,252,889

25,800,000% 70
US$25,800,000

114,000,000% 70
US$114,000,000

20,103,388%
US$20,103,388

24,000,000% 70
US$24,000,000

150,000,007
RMB150,000,000

AKEH150,000,00070
RMB150,000,000

FEMB D 5 KRB A 7 Principal Subsidiaries and Associate

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

51.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

HENAHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENDEREER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENDEREER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HENAHEBER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

HEMHHREER
Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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(m)
0

**

RR
Food

REREREL

Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERLEARAT
China Resources Ng Fung Limited

RAEREERRL
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

MM EEHANERRAT
(Hangzhou Ng Fung United Meat Co.,
Ltd)

ZERSEHE(MERAA

mImERARAERAF

it

Beverage

WA E AR L
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

EERERGAH () BRAR
(Hf&m014518158
RENTARAZRLENH
(hE) ARAR)
(China Resources C'esthon Food &
Beverage (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.)

(Subsequently changed the name to

ERREHRH (PE) BRAF
on 15 January 2014)

1,046,258,000 % SR EEAE0.1 T
LEER

1,046,258,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each

AR #50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000

AR 500,000,0007C
RMB500,000,000

AE#100,705,2107
RMB100,705,210

AR #560,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

== BAIZAER A 7 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

100.0

65.0

100.0

248

60.0

100.0

65.0

100.0

248

100.0

S RivERR
Abattoir operation and
investment holding

NEHEREE
Wholesale and distribution of
meat

EEERERRRA HERR R
Production of preserved foods
and distrioution of foodstuffs

RERRINIREE
Food Processing and
distribution of meat

Manufacturing and distribution
of beverage



37 2013 ANNUAL REPORT FEMB D 5 KRB A 7 Principal Subsidiaries and Associate

() #RERAM
(5) Investments and Others
RE B L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
ERARHB(EB)ARAA ARBRAEEE 1T SRR 100.0 100.0 - B
CRE Finance (Hong Kong) Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Financing
REEHEEMAL
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
Purple Finance Limited SREREEIET L ERR 100.0 100.0 - B
3 ordinary shares of US$1 each Financing

5T

Notes:

—. EERR 2EIIFAMBRBMEARNBEEEREARIIE N EREHINHAEEXENEEASAZEN I MBRRARBER
AR -

1. The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or assets of the
Group.

Z. BRIBAFPEIN SRAZEEEEMERRIENE MK LAEME -

2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

= EPBERMEMKI AT EENEEARSEZHATEET

3" For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company.

M. RZZT—=%F+H—H ' Gain Land Limited&2Tesco PLCEIS. —BH (KHMRABERBEEAE St 2RH - BE=_Z—=F+=A
=+—H  ZXRFEKRTK °

4. On 1 October 2013, Gain Land Limited has entered into a conditional agreement with Tesco PLC for a subscription of 20% of its shares,
As at 31 December 2013, the transaction was not completed yet.

& N

o Associates

© AAGE

* Equity Joint Venture

* INEREE

> Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

S SIS S
Schedule of Principal Properties

RZZE—=F+=-FA=+—H At 31 December 2013

A&E  BEEDE

FiibEs  (FAK)
g Bk iR 5 Group’s  Floor Area A HHNFH
Location Lot number Interest (sg.m.) Type Lease term
RIEREMF
Properties held for investment
B
Hong Kong
i AL —H NERHER 12625 100% 7,216 & £
HWEAZRD - R ER1-41E - 48T R - 5 AR - BERHER C Long
R 1 7 SR ZETHHIHE
DEEHNINGRESR Certain parts or
TLRERT B R B 6885 i & £ 1655 shares of and in
Argyle Centre, Phase | Sections A, Band H
Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F, of Kowloon Inland
1to 4/F and Flat Roof of 4/F, 5/F and Lot No. 1262
Part of External Walls and the Signboard of Portion A of
Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung Choi Street South and
Argyle Street and Scavenging lane,
688 Nathan Road, 65 Argyle Street
Mongkok, Kowloon
Ll TEMME 100% 7,075 B/ i
31 67 BB 2585 2 C/CP Medium
AQ34-A041 + AD44 + A128 * ETHE
A4201 + A4301 * A4502 K A4602 AL - Sundry shares of
B ERERE(ETR) and in Tsuen Wan
RIEBHBRAEERRARKERE 2 ZMH Town Lot No. 258
MAEEE L AK264-2985%
Nan Fung Centre
Lorry Parking Space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units AO34-A041, A044, A128, A4201, A4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with
Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F
264-298 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
EHAT NEBER 100% 3,889 5 =
i FOASEHE-10ASR 4 R — 2 A-CH 105RABR 2 C Long
NEXDEF BB T #65
Star House Part of and in
Shop 9A-10A on G/F & Shop A-C on 1/F Section A of

3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Kowloon Marine
Lot No. 10
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rEE  BEAEE
fribEs  (FIK)

fivk:s HER RS Group’s  Floor Area R# AL EH
Location Lot number Interest (sg.m.) Type Lease term
BEREWME(E)

Properties held for investment (continued)

BB ()

Hong Kong (continued)

ZEBAL P ER83475% 2 100% 8,982 ] =8
1 5-18%F + 20A * 20B K 20CH &Hfir - ETHHRHE C Long
BMEARAAR)BHARBAR) - Certain parts or

1232 ERIEBRETA shares of and in

BAMERERE19-315R RIEH2-8% Inland Lot No. 8347

Lok Sing Centre

Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F

Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)

Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level

19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

AL TLEERHER 10656% 2 100% 7,849 H/ B K8
1T 38554 ET#HmE C/CP Long
11230545 218 415748 Certain parts or

13, 14, 15, 16 %1755 AL shares of and in

NERDIEERE305: Kowloon Inland

Silvercord Lot No. 10656

Shop No. 38 on the G/F,

Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F

Tower 1 and Car Parking Spaces

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement

30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

RAEREAE HNE R ER54625 100% 14,782 I/ i
T 5-1112 1388 - 1622022 B (BEXE) EA T ER IR I/CP Medium
Rt T 1-2385R B hr - The Remaining portion of

NEERD EBME115% New Kowloon Inland

Chung Dah Godown Building Lot No. 5462

Ground floor, 5 to 11/F, 13/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)

and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor
115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

=y 3

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY



FEYEME Schedule of Principal Properties

BERENE(E)

Properties held for investment (continued)

BE ()

Hong Kong (continued)

ERHL

181015 % 28 RIEE[ET A

6iEER

21124 E1EEH

B{7P1-P103 * L1-L15 * L17-143

R ERRRIESSHE

Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Godown on 6/F,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces P1-P103, L1-L15, L17-L43,
88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

EHE

JLBETR 8 233-239

JD Mall, 233-239 Nathan Road,
Jordan, Kowloon

HEFAE

wTE48

BB R EHETE488-4905%
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

== BAIZAER A 7 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

L EHHE450
K3 R E 9375
Lot No. 937 in
Demarcation
District No. 450

NERHER140257CE R
BATE ~ NLER
11821993 % 19945%
Section C and

the Remaining portion
of Kowloon Inland

Lot No. 1402,

Kowloon Inland Lot

Nos. 1993 and 1994

g EX 3655
ABRIDE K
C&zETHH
Certain parts or
shares of and in
Sub-section 1 of
Sections A and C of
Marine Lot No. 365

100%

89%

100%

31,234

9,599

3,125

/%
|/CP

k-

Medium

ki

Medium

=H
Long
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BERANE(R)

Properties held for investment (continued)

HER

Chinese Mainland

BREIMMEREREENER TE 100% 59,447 % FER
L R #1965 N/A © Medium
e —E  ZEAER—E=ENEHR
REMRDEREDHRI0%R TER 100% 28,058 ] FH]
=ENE N/A © Medium
ZHARETERE R L3 5E66% ENEN 100% 55,939 [ e
—ZE N/A C Medium
B aE - [EREEES = : EHE5 WWAE T:T¥%
Note: C: Commercial CP: Car Park O: Office |: Industial

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
SR



h F S ERHEE Five-Year Financial Summary

2H M BB
Fwe-Year chéalfwmmwf/v

e
CE -
PSR 4G 5 A

BRERRF
TS

T H

R

RREERMEX

EEEE
BE

H A
EHRE

B B A
ERNSRAR

PTEEmMT A

B RIR
EETIREE
REEE (AR
e
BEwER

N

fFé

PR 2s
FEHE I AR SR A AR
REER
TEEMTA

HitRHAE

EEBBAE
EERES

Consolidated results
Turnover

Profit attributable to
shareholders

Basic earnings per share

Dividend per share
Interim
Final

Consolidated balance
sheet

Fixed assets

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Long term investments

Financial assets at fair
value through profit and
loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Prepayments

Deferred taxation assets

Net current assets/
(liabilities)

Employment of capital

Share capital
Reserves

Shareholders’ funds

Non-controlling interests

Long term loans

Derivative financial
instruments

Other non-current
liabilities

Deferred taxation liabilities

Capital employed

#HAIZEAER 2 5 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

—TENF —F-TF —FT——F —FT-—F ZB-=%F
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
BEEET SEEET AKEET AKEET BE¥EER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
71,629 87,138 110,164 126,236 146,413
3,109 5,863 3,013 3,945 1,908
HK$1.30 HK$2.45 HK$1.25 HK$1.64 HK$0.79
HK$0.14 HK$0.14 HK$0.15 HK$0.15 HK$0.13
HK$0.35 HK$0.38 HK$0.32 HK$0.15 HK$0.14
HK$0.49 HK$0.52 HK$0.47 HK$0.30 HK$0.27
38,158 41,443 50,240 56,971 69,117
9,225 9,654 10,755 14,948 19,428

95 219 310 295 562

537 399 463 517 530

419 — - — -

10 - - - -

261 311 305 2,258 876

338 556 762 992 1,540
(2,889) (678) (2,383) (6,677) (10,454)
46,149 51,904 60,452 69,304 81,599
2,396 2,398 2,399 2,401 2,403
24,566 29,725 35,440 38,341 41,670
26,962 32,123 37,839 40,742 44,073
9,601 10,475 12,633 13,042 15,538
8,819 8,158 8,442 13,352 19,346

26 14 - - -

236 347 532 669 811

505 787 1,006 1,499 1,831
46,149 51,904 60,452 69,304 81,599
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RERBEASEEIRE Summary of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Summary %Noﬁce fﬁm General Meeting

NTHEESRFBFAGSBREZHRES  §
MBEEXKENABIRT % ZBEA -

EHEEBRAAZIIN_E-—NFRA=+
EE,HH__TE—FLF:HT:+ @X@%/ﬁ/ 1%/%/
BORERABSORBITRRAFKE - UE
B3R T3 EIE

k;ﬁ.—\—-
HIRR =
1. AEREEBE-F-=Ft-A=t-

BULFEREZ M BRERESTERE
KB HEN RS -

2. EMRERBRES

3. (1) ERIFABEALEAES:
(2 BEEFRHEBLAES:
(3) ERBRTELAES
(4) EBEEREBREERES:
(6) EEBAFLERAES K
(6) ETHMEEEZHRSE -

4. BECZBOREEREFSETHEMSE -

5. BTEE—REEUBERDTBBAERITR
HEEZ10% °

6. RTIEFMREEABTITEBESHITK
NHRERZ20% °

7. BEMAEERREARZRFSAEMELD
ZBEMEE  WBEATNRERF6REM
BITRRAD 2 — RRIRAE -

Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general
meeting, the full version of which is set out in the circular to be
dispatched to shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited
will be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 30 May 2014 at 3:30 p.m.
for the following purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and
the Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

2. To declare a final dividend.

—

To re-elect Mr. Houang Tai Ninh as Director;

(1)

(2)  To re-elect Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric as Director;

(3) To re-elect Dr. Cheng Mo Chi as Director;

(4)  To re-elect Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan as Director;
(5)  Tore-elect Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon as Director; and
(6)  To fix the fees for all Directors.

4.  To re-appoint Auditor and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase
shares not exceeding 10% of the issued shares.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue
additional shares not exceeding 20% of the issued shares.

7.  To extend the general mandate to issue shares under item
6 hereof by the addition thereto of the number of shares
repurchased under item 5 hereof.

TR

jusWale)S [BIouURUIY
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Corporate Z@‘mfmmfim

TERIYTES BYFHTES
Chairman and Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pk BA Chen Lang =A% Houang Tai Ninh
¥ Li Ka Cheung, Eric
BEIHITERHTES EZ%  Cheng Mo Chi
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director [R% =  Bernard Charnwut Chan
EEMAE  Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

B Hong Jie

BEERYTES

Vice Chairman and Executive Director

ARANE

Company Secretary

2 E  Liu Hongii

BEFEMBERIUTES

Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director

B
Auditor

B4 Lai Ni Hium, Frank

Bt Lai Ni Hium, Frank

FUITES

Non-Executive Directors

B E R RN B S

PricewaterhouseCoopers

==

MR DuWenmin
Zx®  Wei Bin

B  Yan Biao
#3EE  Huang Daoguo
[REE  Chen Ying

BAA G4t

Registered Office

BB EBE26E B AEI9E
39/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Znﬁmwu‘im /%V Investors

DR FEER
Announcement of Annual Results

201493 H20H
20 March 2014

EBERBRAREREERRG 2

R R

Last Day of Dealings in Shares with
Entitlement to Final Dividend

201456 H3H
3 June 2014

T ENEROGBFELFE
Closure of Register Period

EEARLERRBAFEFRGINAE L
SEZBREED

20145826 H=5A30H (BRMX
BIEEA)

To determine the identity of
members who are entitled to attend
and vote at the annual general
meeting:

26 May 2014 to 30 May 2014 (both
days inclusive)

T MR = A R 2 R B 2 R
2014F6 A6H

To ascertain the members’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend:

6 June 2014

REREARE

Payment of Final Dividend

20147 5108 kA1
On or about 10 July 2014

B ELRE

Share Registrar
EEEERRAR

B

ERRNBR1835

&M 221

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

RERER
Depositary

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
PO Box 358516

Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8516

USA

[ EX
Stock Codes

EEEE X FF : 00291

=18 : 291 HK

BB 1 0291.HK

ADRFSE - CRHKY

CUSIP: 16940R109

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 00291
Bloomberg: 291 HK

Reuters: 0291.HK

ADR symbol: CRHKY

CUSIP: 16940R109

REEBE

Investor Relations

FH : ir@cre.com.hk
Email: ir@cre.com.hk
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